
Date Published:31 August 2021     

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 7 September 2021 at 10.00 am

A remote access meeting via Webex

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any declarations of interest (please refer to the notes section of 
the agenda).

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2021 (attached)

Chair

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 (Pages 9 - 38)

To receive the Annual Report of the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 
Board 2020/21

Independent 
Chair of the 
Gloucestershire 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board 

5  MARKET MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW (Pages 39 - 54)

To consider information on the management of the local care market.

Executive 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Public Health



    

INFORMATION REPORTS

6  ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT (Pages 55 - 62)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters relating to adult 
social care, including the response to the COVID-19 Emergency.

Executive 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Public Health

7  CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 63 - 82)

An update on matters relating to the delivery of services within the 
portfolio of services of the Interim Chief Fire Officer of the Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service and included in the remit of the Adult Social Care 
and Communities Scrutiny Committee (Trading Standards, Civil Protection 
and Coroners Services).

Interim Chief 
Fire Officer

8  PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT (Pages 83 - 96)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters relating to public 
health, including the response to the COVID-19 Emergency. 

A Covid-19 intelligence summary update will be circulated prior to the 
meeting to provide members with the latest data and information.

Executive 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Public Health

9  QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT 2021/22 (Pages 97 - 104)

To consider performance data in relation to the delivery of services within 
the remit and context of this committee.

Members are requested to consider the information and submit any 
questions to jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the meeting. 

Chair

10  WORK PLAN 

a) To consider items for consideration at future meetings and agree 
the committee work plan

b) To note the dates of future meetings

09 November 2021
25 January 2022
08 March 2022 (Joint Meeting with Health Scrutiny Committee)
10 May 2022
05 July 2022
06 September 2022
15 November 2022 

Chair

Membership –  Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair), Cllr Alastair Chambers, Cllr Cate Cody, 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Lisa Spivey, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Suzanne Williams, 
Cllr Terry Hale and Cllr Steve Robinson 

mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring 
Officer/Head of Strategic Planning, Performance & Change.  01452 328506 e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser :01452 
324196/fax: 425240/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk

 

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
held on Tuesday 6 July 2021. The meeting was held remotely and can be viewed on the 
Gloucestershire County Council website here.

PRESENT: 
Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair)
Cllr Alastair Chambers
Cllr Cate Cody
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington
Cllr Lisa Spivey

Cllr Pam Tracey MBE
Cllr Suzanne Williams
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Steve Robinson

1. APOLOGIES 

No apologies were made at the meeting.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on 26 January 2021, (joint meeting with the 
Gloucestershire Health Scrutiny Committee), and 9 March 2021 were agreed as a 
true record of those meetings. 

4. PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT 

Professor Sarah Scott, Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health at 
Gloucestershire County Council, gave an update on current issues relating to public 
health services, including the response to the COVID-19 Emergency. The update 
included information on plans to invest national funding on rough sleeping and adult 
weight management services; health inequalities; public mental health issues and 
suicide; and domestic abuse. 

A Covid-19 early warning indicator summary report, (for the period 24 to 30 June 
2021), was presented at the meeting, providing members with the latest information 
on confirmed cases of COVID-19, (including registered COVID-19 related deaths in 
Gloucestershire). The summary report is attached. 

Member’s attention was drawn to the escalating repercussions of school children 
having to self isolate due to testing positive or coming into contact with someone 
with COVID-19. It was confirmed that over 200 cases of school children with 
COVID-19 had been reported in recent weeks and that a huge number of children 
was having to self-isolate. It was noted that a significant number of schools in 
Gloucestershire were located in rural areas, with home to school transport another 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/online-meetings-archive/july-2021-online-meetings/adult-social-care-and-communities-scrutiny-committee-tuesday-6-july-2021-1000-am/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

area of concern in relation to the current emergency situation. The resilience of 
local schools in response to the pandemic was noted and commended.

Noting the success of the roll-out of the COVID-19 vaccination programme across 
the county, members enquired into the arrangements for extending the programme 
to reach the younger residents of Gloucestershire, including young people aged 20-
24. It was explained that every effort was being made to encourage young people 
to take up the vaccination programme. A key area of work for the public health team 
was to establish a balance of encouraging young people to return to a more normal 
lifestyle via the protection and reassurances offered by the vaccination programme, 
whilst at the same time, highlighting the importance of adhering to safe and 
controlled COVID secure measures. It was confirmed that a huge amount of 
communications work, including the use of social media, was being invested in 
promoting key messages to young people. 

Noting concerns about the impact of COVID-19 on mental health, particularly young 
people’s mental health, it was agreed to provide a more detailed briefing on mental 
health issues at a future committee meeting. It was later suggested that a joint 
briefing to the members of this and the Health Scrutiny Committee might be useful 
in relation to the work of the Be Well Gloucestershire Initiative. Wellbeing 
Gloucestershire. Another proposal suggested as an item for future consideration 
was a briefing on the impact of COVID-19 on obesity across the county and 
whether the issue had been accentuated during the pandemic. In terms of obesity, 
the committee agreed to wait until more data was available issue before requesting 
an update on the issue at a future meeting. Action by – Executive Director of 
Adult Social Care and Public Health

One member enquired into the sharing of information/communications with 
members on details relating to vaccination drop in centres and the roll out of the 
vaccination programme in local areas. It was confirmed that key messages relating 
to COVID-19, (when received from the NHS and Public Health England), were 
shared with members via email/member publications. The Executive Director of 
Adult Social Care and Public Health agreed to liaise with the Gloucestershire NHS 
Clinical Commissioning Group to request that details/up to date information relating 
to vaccination drop-in centre be communicated with members. 

Another member enquired about the roll-out and take up of the vaccination 
programme with the Traveller Community. The committee was reassured that the 
work of the Gloucestershire Traveller Liaison Service was very effective and that 
good work had been undertaken at the Horse Fair in the Cotswolds District in May, 
including the communications of key messages and the distribution of over 1000 
boxes of COVID-19 tests. 

Members attention was drawn to the work involved in addressing health inequalities 
in Gloucestershire. It was noted that the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019-
2030) (JHWS) was the key driver for the work on prevention and health inequalities 
in Gloucestershire.  Alongside this, the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) provided an 
overarching framework for the work of the Integrated Care System (ICS) regarding 
prevention and health inequalities. The Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Board (GHWB), ICS Board and other member organisations were committed to 
embedding action on health inequalities and had agreed to take forward multiple 
programmes of work to address health inequalities, including agreeing to convene a 
Countywide Health Inequalities Panel to coordinate the developing health 
inequalities agenda for Gloucestershire. In addition, part of the Covid Outbreak 
Management Fund (COMF) was being invested in measures to mitigate disparities 
in the longer-term impact of COVID-19, including resources to support community 
resilience.   

Noting concerns about the protection and well-being of victims of domestic abuse, it 
was noted that, on implementation of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021, a significant 
amount of funding had been awarded by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLC). The County Council had received an allocation of 
£1,105,661, (2021/22), including funding to support domestic abuse victims and 
their children. District councils had received a further combined total of £198,956 to 
cover any administrative burdens specific to their areas. A key focus of work 
relating to providing safe accommodation for domestic abuse victims was to protect 
people in their own homes rather than transferring to safe houses. A cabinet report 
would be considered at the Gloucestershire County Council Cabinet meeting on 21 
July 2021, seeking a decision on a number of initiatives and agreeing how the 
funding would be used to support such schemes. 

The report was noted

5. ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT 

The committee received an update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care 
and Public Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters relating to adult 
social care, including the response to the COVID-19 Emergency.

Key points referred to at the meeting included: 

a) Work to roll out the Enhanced Independence Offer (EIO) was progressing. It 
was explained that the project was focusing on the home-based and bed-
based pathways out of acute and community hospitals and in meeting the 
needs of people suffering with ill-health in the community. It was anticipated 
that the new service would be functioning from 1 November 2021. In the 
meantime, improvements were being made to improve the overall capacity of 
the Home First (Reablement) Service, including rationalising the assessment 
bed pathway to ensure the right type of bed based service is available to 
meet demand. Alongside this will be a review of therapy services to ensure 
the right type of therapy is available for each person.

b) Updating members on some of the outcomes of the financial support 
allocated to social care providers during the pandemic, members noted that 
the Rapid Testing Funding had been used to fund COVID-19 testing in care 
homes. Of the £1,964,902 funding received in respect of 6,018 care home 
registered beds and 90 residential drug and alcohol beds, the full £1,945,793 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

had been allocated to care homes. It was noted that £19,109 funding 
remained unspent due to the funds not being accepted by providers. 

c) As of May 2021, the Gloucestershire Care Sector had received £23.7m 
financial support. By June 2021, this had been anticipated to reach £27.9m

d) A member requested a more detailed update on the Park Homes Project at a 
future meeting and this was noted. It was explained that initial funding from 
the Disabled Facilities Grant had provided additional funds in 2018-19 to 
enable a pilot project to insulate some of the park homes located at various 
sites around the county. Concerns about the a higher prevalence of long 
term conditions including respiratory and cardio vascular issues amongst 
park home residents were noted. Action by – Executive Director Adult 
Social Care and Public Health 

e) It was reported that Gloucestershire had achieved one of the highest 
performances in the South-West Region for the number of people 
undergoing an annual health check. Gloucestershire achieved an overall 
position of 74% health checks completed, from a target of 67%. 

f) A Review of the Gloucestershire Care Partnership (GCP) Care Home Estate 
will need to be continued to meet the requirements of the council’s duty 
under the Care Act 2014. The Integrated Commissioning Team to work with 
the independent care market to ensure the council focusses on promoting 
the individual’s wellbeing, commissioning quality care provision and 
developing sustainable models of care to meet the needs of 
Gloucestershire’s diverse population. It was noted that the wider impact of 
the pandemic had created additional stresses on the care market, with many 
independent care homes experiencing significant loses and having to review 
the viability of their businesses.

g) Members were advised that the number of older people aged 65 and above 
in Gloucestershire was expected to continue to rise at a faster pace than the 
number of older people nationally, rising from 126,800 in 2015 to 206,300 by 
2039, with an estimated 25,400 older people anticipated to have a long-term 
illness or disability limiting their day-to-day activities. 

h) One significant consequence of the pandemic had been the decision by 
many residents not to go into residential care, and instead, choosing to 
purchase retirement accommodation/remain at home rather than seek care 
home placements. Continuing review of the Gloucestershire Care 
Partnership Estate may involve consideration of the decommissioning, 
repurposing and re-developing of sites within the estate, with the aim of 
matching provision with identified demographic needs. 

The report was noted.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

6. CHIEF FIRE OFFICER UPDATE 

The committee received an update from the Interim Chief Fire Officer on matters 
relating to the delivery of services included within the portfolio of services covered 
by the Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service in context to the remit of the 
committee. These included: Trading Standards, Civil Protection and Coroners 
Services. 

The new members of the committee were informed that the County Council had a 
legal duty to provide a fire and rescue service for the county and that the 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service fulfilled this duty on the council’s behalf.  

At the Gloucestershire County Council Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2021, 
the Council agreed to establish a new, (stand alone), scrutiny committee, 
comprising seven members, to scrutinise the Fire and Rescue Service. The new 
committee was asked to carry out the scrutiny functions of the County Council, as 
set out in Article 8 of the Constitution, in the context of matters relating to 
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service, including: - 

a) Response to fire and other emergencies
b) Fire regulation, prevention and promoting fire safety
c) Performance against Key and Local Performance Indicators 
d) Progress against recommendations from inspections and delivery of the 

Improvement Plan
e) Co-operation and partnership working with other local responders to 

enhance co-ordination and efficiency and increase community resilience
f) Cross-boundary co-operation with other Fire and Rescue Authorities 
g) Civil contingency planning
h) Leadership, culture and workforce development across the service

Members were advised that the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee was no longer required to consider any of the above, fire related, 
aspects of work as part of its remit. Going forward, the committee to receive 
strategic update reports from Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) on 
key issues relating to community safety provision and non-fire related services.

Interim Chief Fire Officer, Mark Preece, presented a short power-point presentation, 
outlining some of the work undertaken within the three Community Safety 
Directorate service areas for which the committee would be scrutinising at future 
meetings. These included: - 

1) Civil Protection Team 

a) Working with all service areas across GCC to strengthen Business 
Continuity Management

b) Ongoing work with GCC colleagues to revise, resource and train staff 
members involved in emergency response

c) Working with district colleagues in accordance with Service Level 
Agreements

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

It was explained that the Civil Protection Team continued to support both County & 
District Councils to be compliant with the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and to work 
closely with multi-agency partners as a key member of the Gloucestershire Local 
Resilience Forum. All functions, (except for live face to face training), had now 
resumed. 

2) Coroner’s Office 

a) Looking to return to ‘Business as Usual’ arrangements as quickly as 
possible; 

b) Continuing to work towards fulfilling statutory duties; 
c) Continuing to operate from Barnwood
d) Mortuary service arrangements operating under the guidance of the 

Senior Coroner
e) Complex inquests to be scheduled later in the year

The Coroner Service was continuing to work towards fulfilling its statutory duties 
under the Coroner & Justice Act of investigating all sudden, suspicious, unexpected 
or unexplained deaths. All Coronial functions continued to operate from the 
Coroner’s Court at Barnwood, Gloucester, whilst Mortuary arrangements continued 
to operate under the guidance of the Senior Coroner. Any complex inquests 
postponed during the pandemic were now being re-scheduled later in the year. 
Essentially, the service was looking to return to ‘business as usual’. There remained 
a small number of back-logged longer-term inquests which needed to be 
scheduled. Visitors to the centre were still being limited but staff were now largely 
working from site, with some staff still utilising working at home arrangements, 
when possible. 

3) Trading Standards

a) Work had resumed in all areas
b) Programme inspections and new investigation work was underway
c) Legal processes had resumed
d) Food Premise Inspections were being carried out
e) Product Safety arrangements (post EU Exit) to continue 
f) All work to be aligned with GCC requirements
g) The on-going review of Work of Service to continue

One member highlighted the various elements of work provided by Trading 
Standards. In terms of work with the County Council and the District Councils, it 
was suggested more information on the work with District Councils be included in 
the next report to the committee. Action by – Interim Chief Fire Officer

A member with a particular interest in animal welfare invited the Interim Chief Fire 
Officer and the Head of Regulatory Services, Consumer Protection and Trading 
Standards to meet with him in the Forest Dean to observe any potential issues 
relating to the abuse of animals by small holders. The invitation was noted and it 
was suggested officers liaise with the member/other members of the committee 
before considering the arrangements for a visit later in the year. Information on 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Trading Standards work associated with Animal Welfare to be included in the next 
report to the committee. Action by – Interim Chief Fire Officer/Democratic 
Services

One member of the committee expressed concern about road safety and enquired 
about the progress of the recommendations made by the Road Safety Cabinet 
Panel in 2020, (the recommendations were considered at the committee meeting 
held on 26 January 2020). In response, it was suggested the committee may want 
to consider a piece of work on road safety at a future meeting, with the focus of the 
next GFRS, (Community Safety), report to include background information on this 
aspect of work. The committee was reminded of the potential overlap in work 
covered by the various scrutiny committees and the need to avoid the duplication of 
certain issues. Action by Interim Chief Fire Officer/Democratic Services

The report was noted 

7. QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT (2020/21) 

Members were presented with an analysis of performance relating to delivery of 
services within the remit of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee. The report was prepared by the County Council’s Performance & 
Improvement Team, using data up to 31 March 2021.

Cllr Carole Allaway Martin, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care: Commissioning, 
gave a useful explanation of what aspects of the performance report members 
might wish to concentrate on at future meetings, including the use of targets and 
symbols. It was suggested members may wish to make comparisons with previous 
performance reports and to prepare questions in advance of the meeting on areas 
they wished to seek clarification or further explanation on. 

The committee reflected on the impact of the pandemic on delivery and 
performance and the unknown certainties anticipated from the easing of restrictions 
on 19 July 2021. 

The report was noted.

8. WORK PLAN 

The committee was asked to suggest items to add to the committee work plan and 
informed of items considered at previous meetings. 

Highlighting the impact of the pandemic on the delivery of services going forward 
and the likely outcomes of pressures being placed on the NHS and Public Health 
Team over the winter months, it was suggested that the committee engage with the 
members of the Health Scrutiny Committee in considering the NHS Winter Plan 
proposals for 2021/22. An in-depth review of the Winter Plan 2021/22 to be 
considered at a joint committee meeting on the date of the scheduled Health 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 8 March 2022. The date of the Adult Social Care 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

and Communities Committee meeting scheduled on 15 March 2022 to be held in 
reserve (if required).

One member of the committee asked for an update on the Shingles Vaccination 
Programme to be included in a report to the committee at a future meeting. 

Other items suggested for consideration at future meetings included: 

1) Market Management Overview 
2) Gloucestershire Safeguarding Board Annual Report 2020/21
3) Adult Social Care (Care Act) Three Tier Offer 
4) Contain Outbreak Management Funding 
5) Domiciliary Care Report
6) System Flow (New Guidance)
7) Health Inequalities 
9) Covid-19 Funding/Community Grant Schemes Overview

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.10pm 

Page 8



1

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 
Board

Annual Report 2020/21

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2

Contents 
Foreword: Introduction from Chair ................................................................................3
1.Vision .............................................................................................................................6
2.Key Achievements 2020/21 and Strategic Plan 2018/21 ...........................................7
3.Key Issues & Challenges for the coming year...........................................................9
4.Case Studies ...............................................................................................................10
Case Study 1 ..................................................................................................................10
Case Study 2 ..................................................................................................................10

5.Partnership Achievements 2020/21 and Priorities 2021/22 ....................................12
5.1Gloucestershire Constabulary………………………………………………………………………………………….12 
5.2 Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust (GHC)….…………………………..…..….15
5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT)………………………………………….16
5.4 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)……………………………………..……………17

6.Safeguarding Adults Reviews ...................................................................................19
7.GSAB Business Planning Group ..............................................................................22
8.Sub Group Achievements 2020/21 and Priorities 2021/22......................................22
8.1 Workforce Development ...........................................................................................22
8.2 Fire Safety Development. .........................................................................................23
8.3 Communication & Engagement ................................................................................24
8.4 Policy & Procedures..................................................................................................25
8.5 Activity & Data 2020/21.............................................................................................25
8.6 Quality Assurance .....................................................................................................27

9.The Board’s Resources..............................................................................................28

Page 10



3

Foreword: Introduction from Chair 

This report covers an unprecedented year during which we were in the midst of the 
Covid 19 Pandemic, which has raised the profile of adult social care and the 
importance of Adult Safeguarding to a new level. Whilst the virus has affected all 
communities, it has had a significant impact on our more vulnerable, including 
individuals with a learning disability and our older generations, many of whom 
receive care and support, often in residential and nursing homes, or within their own 
homes

I would like to offer my condolences on behalf of the Board to all those individuals 
who have been affected by the pandemic, especially those individuals who have lost 
loved ones.

Despite the impact of the pandemic, during the past year the Board and its sub 
groups have continued to operate on a virtual basis; Board members have also 
participated in many meetings and forums designed to monitor and respond to the 
impact of the virus, to ensure that the health and well-being of adults with care and 
support needs is prioritised and that lessons are learnt.

During 2020 we continued to focus and deliver on the final year of the priorities that 
were set out in our 3-year strategic plan 2018/21, namely: Making Safeguarding 
Personal, Prevention and Improving Safeguarding Practice and Board Effectiveness. 

Once again, our annual report includes:

• how the Board has achieved its objectives, set out at the start of the year, and 
how we implemented our strategy; 

• how each of our partners has implemented the strategy and worked to deliver 
effective safeguarding services; 

• the findings of ‘Safeguarding Adults Reviews’ – these are reviews which have 
been concluded between April 2020 and March 2021 where an adult has died 
or where there have been serious issues and concerns; and where it was 
identified that there could be learning and improvements made by 
organisations to ensure that similar issues do not recur.

Our Safeguarding Adults Review sub group has been heavily engaged in a number 
of reviews that have been focusing upon individuals with complex health and social 
care needs and the Care Act requires us to provide updates on these in the Annual 
Report. The Board is looking to develop the findings from these reviews to help 
influence how the County and its Health and Social Care partners can work together 
to produce better person centred outcomes. 

The Board is also responding to the findings and recommendations of the first 
National analysis of Safeguarding Adults Reviews in England that looked at all 

Page 11



4

published reviews during the period April 2017 – March 2019 and included those 
submitted by Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board. The analysis provides a 
real opportunity for Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board to benchmark itself 
and to deliver real improvements in safeguarding practice for the benefit of adults 
with care and support needs.   

Our Workforce Development Group has been particularly agile and creative owing to 
the fact that all face to face training was postponed and subsequently cancelled for 
the year. As an alternative to face to face training, the Safeguarding and Mental 
Capacity Act level 2 programmes were translated into e-learning content and 
launched as e-learning packages in May 2020. Later in the summer, the multi-
agency Safeguarding Level 3 day was successfully launched as a remote learning 
programme and was then delivered throughout the year. 

At the beginning of 2021 we commenced our consultation and engagement with 
other Boards and partners including the voluntary and community sector, on what 
our new priorities should be, with a view to establishing a new 3 year strategy. 
Consultation will be widened during 2021 to include Healthwatch and the wider 
communities across Gloucestershire.  

Some of the work delivered by the Board and its sub groups during this period is 
outlined below:

 
 our Audit sub group undertook a comprehensive programme of audits 

including a number of multi-agency and single agency audits, which have 
highlighted good practice and also areas for improvement;

 Reviews of a number of key Board partnership guides, policies and 
procedures were conducted;

 we have produced and disseminated our Quarterly GSAB Newsletter covering 
a variety of themes;

 A total of 22,747 individual GSAB approved Safeguarding and MCA course 
places were taken up by Gloucestershire staff (and volunteers). This includes 
6417 and 6256 courses of Safeguarding Adults Level 1 and 2 courses 
respectively; 

 Agreeing to conduct three Safeguarding Adults Reviews during this period. 

Finally, I would like to pay tribute to all those who have been working tirelessly during 
the pandemic to keep adults with care and support needs safe. The safeguarding of 
some our most vulnerable members of the community remains a key priority for the 
Board and all its partners.

I have witnessed some great examples of partnership working in Gloucestershire, in 
which the voluntary and community sectors have played a key role. This puts us in a 
good place to respond to the ongoing impact of the pandemic that will have a strong 
influence on the work of the partners well into 2021 and beyond. 

Page 12



5

As always I would like to extend my thanks and appreciation to my Board Business 
Manager, the Board and members of our various sub groups, for their continued 
support and commitment to developing and promoting the work of protecting adults 
with care and support needs, especially during these unprecedented times. 

I would also like to acknowledge the work and commitment of our front-line 
practitioners, as safeguarding adults at risk would not happen without the dedication 
and professionalism of our front-line staff. 

Paul Yeatman

Independent Chair
Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board 
Back to Contents

Page 13



6

1. Vision 

“Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board seeks to empower and protect adults with 
care and support needs who are at risk of abuse and neglect, as defined in legislation 
and statutory guidance”.

There continues to be an increasing focus on the profile of safeguarding adults work. It is 
clear from national developments that partnerships are a critical aspect in sustaining the 
impetus for improvement and hence the importance of pressing ahead with a local vision 
for Gloucestershire. The Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB) Strategic 
Plan sits alongside a number of other key documents, enabling the Board to strategically 
review and plan work.  Each provides direction and continuity to the strategic annual plan, 
ensuring that the achievements of the Board are built upon each year and actions are 
focused on the Board’s overall priorities and objectives.

The priorities reflect the direction set out in current national drivers for change. For this 
reason the priorities are designed around the six key principles that underpin all adult 
safeguarding work (Care Act, 2014), as reflected in the Strategic Plan 2018/21

To achieve this vision the Board will need to work throughout the partnership and with 
local communities to:- 
 prevent abuse and neglect from happening; 
 identify and report abuse and neglect; 
 respond to any abuse and neglect that is occurring; 
 support people who have suffered abuse or neglect to recover and to regain trust 

in those around them; and 
 raise awareness of safeguarding adults and the role everyone can play in 

responding to, and preventing, abuse and neglect. 

GSAB Vision – sets out the overall vision of the Board and the outcomes it wants to 
achieve for adults at risk in Gloucestershire.
GSAB Priorities – establishes the strategic themes that need to be delivered to achieve 
the Board’s vision; providing the overarching direction to inform subsequent years’ 
strategic plans.
GSAB Strategic Plan – provides a detailed plan of specific key actions, supporting actions 
and timescales required to deliver the Board’s vision and priorities.
GSAB Annual Report – reviews progress in relation to the actions laid out in the strategic 
plan.

The Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board has worked to promote an 
understanding and taken action to demonstrate that “safeguarding is everybody’s 
business”. The development of this vision marks the commitment from partners to a 
shared aim of keeping adults safe and protected from abuse and neglect.

Page 14



7

2. Key Achievements 2020-21 and Strategic Plan 2018-21 

The Board’s key achievements during the past year:

 GSAB Roadshows were held in April 2021, a week of morning events, held 
virtually, shining a light on safeguarding during the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
particular focus was on the Voluntary and Community Sectors contribution to 
keeping people safe during this challenging time. Each day had a specific theme; 
these were Financial Abuse, Domestic Abuse, Substance Misuse, Mental Heath 
and Disability. These were attended by approximately 400 people across the 
whole week. 

 Identification of two new tools for the 2021/22 Safeguarding Adults at Risk Self 
Assessment Audit by partner agencies, including the Voluntary and Community 
Sector for the first time.  

 Further development of the GSAB Quarterly Report, using Power BI, as the 
reporting tool.

 Receiving Multi-Agency High Risk Behaviour referrals, as a result of the High 
Risk Behaviours Policy.  

 Producing and disseminating four issues of the GSAB Quarterly Newsletter, 
covering a variety of themes, including one which focused on the content of the 
GSAB Roadshows, for those unable to attend the events. 

 Undertaking three Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SARs) during the last year, 
primarily on the theme of complex needs including homelessness, substance 
misuse, trauma and Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). 

 As an alternative to face to face training, the Safeguarding and MCA level 2 
programmes were translated into e-learning and launched in May 2020. Later in 
the summer, the multi-agency Safeguarding Level 3 training was successfully 
launched as a remote learning programme and delivered throughout the year.

 22,747 Gloucestershire staff and volunteers completed GSAB approved 
safeguarding training. 

 Establishing stronger links with community groups in Gloucestershire.

 Updated website – http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/ 

Page 15

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/


8

Strategic Plan 2018-21 

The Board’s Strategic Plan covers a three year period as recommended by the Care 
Act Statutory Guidance.  The high-level priorities are reflected across the four areas 
shown below.

As this plan is in its last year, a new Strategic Plan is currently being produced, 
covering 2021-2024.  It is hoped that this will go live in September 2021.  

Risk Register 2018-21

The Board also produces a Risk Register which details, manages and monitors risks 
that can potentially impact upon its ability to deliver the priorities as set out within its 
three year Strategic Plan. 

The Risk Register identifies the potential consequence of the risk and what actions 
have been taken in order to mitigate, manage or reduce the risk. Each risk is RAG 
(Red/Amber/Green) rated based on its score.  The Board currently has no risks rated 
Red; these would be of considerable concern to the Board.  The Board’s current 
Strategic Plan and Risk Register can be found in supporting documents. 

Back to contents

Priority – Improve GSAB Effectiveness 
To ensure that the GSAB is fit for purpose, in that it has the right membership, has the right 
support and is resourced and run in an efficient and effective manner, so that it can fulfil all 
of its statutory functions to a high standard. The outcome of its work must meet the 
requirements of the Care Act 2014, and the Board must lead on and make a positive 
contribution to adult safeguarding in Gloucestershire.
  

Priority – Improve Safeguarding Practice 
To ensure that the Board and its partners deliver efficient and effective outcomes that are 
person centred, and that evolve to meet new challenges and take into account best 
practice and learning from across the safeguarding landscape.   

 

Priority – Embed the Ethos of Making Safeguarding Personal  
To ensure that the ethos of Making Safeguarding Personal is embedded within the practice 
of all Board member organisations.

Priority – Focus on Preventative Practice 
The Board recognises the importance of preventative practices in order to protect 
individuals from being abused and/or neglected and also early intervention which 
minimises and mitigates harm. In doing so we should embrace a person centred approach, 
which takes into account the needs and wishes of people who are the subjects of 
safeguarding enquiries.

Page 16

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


9

3. Key Issues & Challenges for the coming year

Back to Contents

Strategic Plan 2021 - 2024
  

 To continue to engage with all our Partners including Healthwatch, the 
Voluntary and Community sector and our communities in order to help shape 
and influence our future priorities for the Board.

Complex Needs
  

 To use the learning and recommendations from our Safeguarding Adults 
Reviews to help shape and influence how all the agencies in Gloucestershire 
support and respond to individuals with complex health and social care issues, 
which are strongly related to Adverse Childhood Experiences and the need for 
trauma informed working practice.

 
National SAR Analysis

 To use the learning and recommendations from the National Safeguarding 
Adults Review analysis in order to ensure that we commission and conduct 
quality reviews and that we maximise our opportunity to learn from and develop 
good practices that provide better outcomes for individuals with care and 
support needs.   

 COVID-19  

 To continue to respond to the threat of COVID-19 and to listen to our 
communities who have been directly impacted upon by the pandemic. To take 
every opportunity to analyse and review its impact. To use this analysis to 
maximise our response to, and minimise the risk posed to, some of the most 
vulnerable members of our community, especially those who are isolated or live 
in the many residential and nursing homes in our county.

 Voluntary and Community Sector Links 
 

 The essential role that the Voluntary and Community sector provides in 
Safeguarding has never been more evident than during the pandemic. To 
continue with meaningful interaction with our highly valued diverse voluntary 
and community sector organisations within the county in order to raise 
awareness of adult safeguarding themes, reduce isolation and to reduce the 
risk of harm and keep people safe.  

Page 17



10

4. Case Studies 
 The names and some of the details have been changed to protect confidentiality.

Case Study 1

Case Study 2

Jim is a 78 year old white man with mild dementia. He had been living alone in his 
own home since his wife died two years earlier. During this time he started drinking 
heavily and had to be returned home by the police on one occasion because he was 
intoxicated and couldn’t remember where he lived. In an effort to keep him safe, his 
son David started to lock the outer gates to his property so that he was not able to 
leave his garden and a neighbour reported this to the local authority, as she had 
seen him standing at the gates shouting for someone to let him out. A social worker 
visited and advised David that he could not lock his father in in this way. The social 
worker assessed Jim as lacking capacity to understand the risks posed by his 
drinking and that he was at risk of harm if he continued to live alone. 

David, who has Lasting Powers of Attorney for finances and health and welfare for 
his father, arranged for Jim to go into a care home on a self-funded basis. Jim 
objected strongly to being in the care home and frequently tried to leave. A DoLS 
application was made by the home and a Best Interests Assessor (BIA) visited Jim to 
assess his capacity and whether the placement was in his best interests to prevent 
harm to him. Because he was objecting, the Assessor authorised the deprivation for 
a short period of time only and arranged for Jim to have an Independent Mental 
Capacity Advocate (IMCA) to support him to challenge his detention in the Court of 
Protection. The BIA liaised with the social worker and advised her that a less 
restrictive alternative to the care home should be considered given Jim’s objection to 
being there. 

Before the case reached the Court, the social worker visited Jim again. Jim’s 
drinking had decreased significantly during his time in the care home and his 
cognitive functioning had therefore improved; this time the social worker assessed 
him as having capacity to make decisions about where he should live. Jim explained 
to the social worker that he had been drinking so much because he was lonely after 
his wife died and that he would like to live somewhere there were other people 
around for company. With David’s support, a sheltered housing flat was found for 
him, with care provided. This minimised the restrictions on Jim and meant that he 
was no longer deprived of his liberty.

Learning points
The DoLS process is based on Article 5 of the European Convention on Human 
Rights (the right to liberty). It provides a safeguard against people being arbitrarily 
detained and gives people the right to challenge any detention in the Court of 
Protection. The assessment by the BIA helped to ensure that Jim’s rights were 
upheld and that a solution was found which provided him with the company he 
needed as well as helping to ensure his safety. 

Emma is a 27 year old white woman. She was in care as a child from the age of 13 

Page 18



11

due to familial sexual abuse. She is described as having a mild learning disability, 
foetal alcohol syndrome and a diagnosis of Emotionally Unstable Personality 
Disorder. She misuses alcohol and when intoxicated she is vulnerable to sexual and 
financial exploitation, and also experiences seizures when under the influence of 
alcohol. She has gone to railway bridges in the area on more than one occasion and 
has threatened to jump, requiring police intervention. She has had numerous self-
harm episodes and is a frequent attender at A&E; in addition she has been involved 
in criminal activity, including theft and assault. Professionals have struggled to find 
ways to engage Emma as she refuses all offers of help. 

Numerous safeguarding enquiries had been undertaken but had little impact on 
reducing the level of risk Emma was experiencing. She was then referred to the High 
Risk Behaviours Panel and a meeting was convened under this policy, chaired by a 
practitioner in the safeguarding team. Emma was offered an advocate to support her 
through this process but she refused and also would not attend the meetings. Senior 
professionals from relevant statutory and voluntary agencies across the county were 
invited, as well as frontline workers, to consider any other actions that could be 
taken. 

It was established through information gathering that Emma was due in court having 
been charged with assault and the safeguarding practitioner liaised with the criminal 
justice liaison team regarding Emma’s progress.

At the first meeting, professionals were at a loss as to what else could be offered to 
Emma to help reduce the risks to her. However there was a helpful discussion about 
the impact of childhood sexual abuse on Emma being a likely significant factor in her 
presentation currently. Agencies all agreed that frontline workers needed to take a 
trauma-informed approach to working with her, and the Nelson Trust agreed to try to 
make contact with Emma to see if they could offer her support.

Emma was given an alcohol treatment requirement order by the court and her 
probation officer attended subsequent High Risk Behaviour meetings. The ATR had 
some positive impact on Emma’s drinking but once this ended her drinking resumed. 
She was assigned a key worker from Nelson Trust who persisted in trying to work 
with Emma despite her initial reluctance, and over time she was able to build a warm 
and trusting relationship with her. There have been some small improvements in the 
quality of Emma’s life thanks to this and consideration is being given to offering her a 
rehab placement when she feels ready to accept it. During a recent hospital 
admission, the ward staff had been advised of Emma’s childhood abuse and also 
took a trauma-informed approach to her – she commented that ward staff had been 
“really kind” and she was more accepting of treatment during this admission than she 
had been in the past, when she had self-discharged. 

Learning points
The impact of trauma in childhood, or at any age, should not be underestimated. 
Alcohol/drug addiction is often linked to the experience of trauma and used as a way 
of coping with the painful feelings associated with the aftermath of abuse. Thanks to 
initiatives locally such as promoting awareness of the impact of Adverse Childhood 
Experiences (ACEs), there is growing recognition that professionals need to actively 
consider whether trauma is at the root of the individual’s difficulties when working 

Page 19



12

5. Partnership Achievements 2020/21 and Priorities 2021/22
This year’s annual report, like previous versions, focuses upon the achievements 
and priorities of our statutory partners. 

However, it is recognised that the delivery of safeguarding in Gloucestershire 
extends well beyond the statutory county partners, across each of our district 
councils and into the communities and voluntary sector. 

Over the past 12 months we have continued to work with a number of 
Gloucestershire strategic partnerships, some of which are listed below; however this 
list is not exhaustive, as it has not been possible to list all of them in this document.

Health and Wellbeing Board
Mental Health Partnership Board
Learning Disability Partnership Board
Safer Gloucestershire
Transforming Care Board
Learning Disability Review Steering Group
Gloucester Diocesan Board
Anti-Slavery Partnership Board
NHS England Quality Surveillance Group
Child Sexual Exploitation Board
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Implementation Group
Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements
Dangerous Drugs Network (County Lines)
Sexual Assault Referral Centre Strategic Board
Community Safety Partnership Board
PREVENT

5.1 Gloucestershire Constabulary 
In March 2021, the Constabulary launched “Our Approach to Vulnerability”. The 
approach, launched jointly by both the Chief Constable and the Police and Crime 

with people with complex lives. It is positive that as a result of the ACEs initiative, the 
need for trauma-informed approaches is increasingly recognised by statutory 
agencies in Gloucestershire, such as the NHS and the Police, who are beginning to 
adopt this approach. This is in line with some voluntary sector services, who have 
been working from a trauma-informed perspective for some time. 

High Risk Behaviour meetings can be helpful in escalating safeguarding cases 
where the section 42 enquiry process has not been successful in mitigating the risks 
due to non-engagement. There are rarely easy solutions to be found but an agreed 
plan can be devised for use at a point when the person is ready to accept support, 
and people are encouraged to look creatively at how they can work together to 
support individuals at high risk like Emma. 

Page 20



13

Commissioner, sets out the approach to better serve those who are vulnerable 
through age, disability, mental health, addiction and circumstance. Addressing 
issues of vulnerability is an absolute priority for Gloucestershire Constabulary. It is 
reflected in the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Plan as well as being a cross-
cutting theme that touches every one of our operational objectives. The approach 
seeks to focus our work and will guide our work in relation to safeguarding adults.

Our priorities for 2021-2022 will be to establish and develop the new Safeguarding 
Adults, Missing & Mental Health (SAMM) team to provide an effective and 
appropriate response to vulnerable adults whether it is through exploitation, neglect, 
mental health and missing episodes. We will continue to manage the increased 
demand in relation to Vulnerability Identification Screening Tools (VISTs) and embed 
the approach to vulnerability across the Constabulary. 

COVID-19:
The Constabulary recognised the risk that Covid posed and took an early decision to 
split teams up into pods, reducing the risk of transmission. A Covid command 
structure was set up, which took the daily decisions around our organisational 
response to the pandemic.  A significant financial commitment was made to 
purchase laptops enabling our staff to continue working; this led to an increase in 
agile working across the force. Many benefits associated with a more agile workforce 
have been realised, some of which will no doubt continue. During the peak of the 
pandemic a Covid response team was set up, who were supplied with full PPE and 
able to respond to incidents where infections were suspected.  

Restructuring:
During the past year a decision was taken to undertake a force restructure, which 
took the force from a command based arrangement to a locally based structure. 
Now, each local policing area, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury, Forest and Gloucester 
and Cotswold and Stroud has its own geographically based resources, each under 
the leadership of a Superintendent. 

The Public Protection function within our Crime Command remains centrally located.

More recently, Superintendents Arman Mathieson and Emma Davies conducted a 
review of police Community Harm reduction teams including, Missing and Mental 
Health, Youth Offending Team, Children First and Harm Reduction teams. All of 
these teams provide key prevent and early intervention services for the Vulnerable. 
The review identified a need to develop a more holistic response to vulnerability and 
align particular services both in the police and with partners. The new Local Policing 
Model adopted within Gloucestershire and the renewed Police and Crime plan 2020 
-2022 has also required reflection on Community Harm reduction and the plans for 
the future. As a result of the review a proposal to move these teams under the 
management and oversight of the Public Protection Unit was agreed by our 
Executive Board. The perceived benefits are improved alignment, enhanced delivery 
and an opportunity for continuous improvement and innovation, all in line with the 
National Vulnerability Action Plan (NVAP). 

As detailed in previous board reports, the Constabulary has been working on plans 
for the last 18 months to improve our response to adults at risk within the county. 

Page 21



14

The move of the Harm Reduction teams into Public Protection provides an 
opportunity to develop this plan further, allowing for an enhanced service delivery for 
vulnerable adults.

The restructure will allow closer alignment with our existing Public Protection teams, 
such as Child Abuse Investigations (CAIT), Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE), 
Management of Sexual and Violent Offenders (MOSOVO) and Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub (MASH). 

Following further consultation it has been agreed that the adult missing and mental 
health team will align with safeguarding adult investigators. The new Safeguarding 
Adults, Missing & Mental Health (SAMM) team will be led by Inspector Sarah 
Simmons. This team will ensure the alignment of these services and will strengthen 
our partnership relationships, providing a more consistent and effective approach to 
vulnerable adults.

Demand:
Over the past year we have seen a significant increase in the numbers of risk 
assessment tools submitted for Adults at Risk (AAR). In April 2020, 385 Vulnerability 
Identification Screening Tools (VISTs) were submitted to the MASH. In April 2021, 
767 AAR VISTs were submitted. This represents almost a 100% increase in referrals 
compared to last year. The increase from 2019-2020 represented almost a 140% 
increase. So whilst the rate of the increase has reduced when compared to the 
previous year, the referrals continue to increase each month. This trend results in 
substantial demand within the MASH. AAR VISTs now represent almost 45% of the 
total number of VISTs submitted. In addition to this demand, the MASH are also 
responsible for attending multi-agency meetings, creating crimes and any necessary 
research following a referral.  This new demand may well be due to officers being 
better able to recognise and articulate the risk. The increase in VISTs is not thought 
to be attributed to the pandemic, although it may have played a part in the rise. We 
are continuing to analyse the increase in demand in order to more effectively 
respond in the future. We have appointed an additional MASH Decision Maker taking 
our total now to three. We have also increased our administrative and research pools 
who carry out these functions, supporting all areas of vulnerability. Although this is 
not specifically for AAR, the additional staff support the management and processing 
of VISTs. The Decision Makers work closely with partners and have strengthened 
working relationships in addition to developing and refining working processes. They 
review the referrals at the earliest opportunity ensuring they are appropriately risk 
rated and shared with the relevant partners. This has made a huge difference to the 
quality of service we offer to adults at risk and is allowing identification of trends as 
well as repeat victims.  The Decision Makers work closely with our vulnerability 
officers within the neighbourhood teams to ensure that any safeguarding actions are 
carried out.
A great deal of work has gone into electronically converting our VIST into a 
completed Core Record Management System (RMS) entry. This is aimed at not only 
improving efficiency and speed, but also releasing staff from wholly administrative 
functions to being able to add value. This has been a challenging project and we are 
optimistic that we will start realising the benefits over the next few months.  A further 
enhancement planned is the use of automated robotic technology (BOTS) to convert 

Page 22



15

data from other documents into our core RMS and to complete validation tasks, 
again further releasing staff into more productive roles. 

A new marker was created in December 2020 in order to improve recognition and 
response of Adults at Risk at first point of contact. This marker highlights Adults at 
Risk on our core RMS, ensuring officers and staff that come into contact with these 
vulnerable individuals take appropriate safeguarding action and submit a VIST. The 
marker has also realised a key aim of being able improve analytical capability to 
monitor patterns of exploitation and enable early interventions. The data produced by 
the marker is still in its early stages, however, it is anticipated that it will eventually 
produce good quality information to enable the new SAMM team to formulate their 
four P plan (Prepare, Protect, Prevent and Pursue).

5.2 Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust (GHC)

Key achievements 2020/21

In light of the pandemic, the last year has been unprecedented and the consequent 
impact on service provision has been significant. Throughout the pandemic, the 
Trust safeguarding team has continued to function as a priority service, albeit with 
adaptations in place to work around restrictions and lockdowns. The team have kept 
a presence at the base with team members also working from home. Most core 
functions have continued throughout the year. 

Safeguarding training was cancelled early in the pandemic due to the huge changes 
in service provision and uncertainty about the virus. Since November 2020, training 
has resumed using a virtual platform. The feedback for level 3 adult safeguarding 
has been favourable although some staff find receiving training through virtual 
platforms challenging.

The advice line, which is open to all Trust staff, has continued to function throughout 
the year with calls for adult safeguarding queries increasing from the previous year. 

One noticeable impact of the pandemic was the increase in reports of domestic 
abuse. The team have continued to support the MARAC information sharing process 
putting additional resource in when needed. Processes within the team have been 
streamlined.

Priorities for 2021/22

 We will be seeking to improve our accordance with the Making Safeguarding 
Personal principles and to improve the quality of referrals made by the Trust 
to the local authority safeguarding team. 

 We will be looking at ways to improve how learning from SARS, DHRs, 
Serious Incidents, audits and complaints is disseminated to our staff, for 
example, by using brief video recordings.

 People with learning disabilities and older people have been disproportionality 
affected this year and we would like to have a focus on evolving safeguarding 
practice in these areas.

Page 23



16

 The onset of the anticipated Liberty Protection Safeguards is looming and this 
will inevitably form a big piece of work for the Trust once national guidance 
(Code of Practice) has been published.

 Developing domestic abuse specific training for all staff - and options for 
developing domestic abuse champions within the Trust is currently being 
explored and will continue as a priority area in the coming year.

 We will be continuing to develop our offer of adult specific safeguarding 
supervision for teams across the Trust.

Quality Assurance 

GHC will continue to provide assurance to the Board that safeguarding priorities are 
in line with best practice and evidence positive outcomes for families. We will monitor 
our objectives to ensure they are delivered in line with the Safeguarding Board 
strategic agenda through the Trust’s monthly Safeguarding Group and the Trust’s 
Quality Committee.

5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT)
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was fully focused during 
2020/2021 on managing patients with COVID-19 and saw greater levels of critical 
illness and death than we have ever seen before. In the lulls between surges of 
COVID-19, we have seen higher levels of acute illness than is normal in a ‘normal 
year’.

Despite this focus, our staff have raised concerns on 2,178 occasions related to 
abuse, neglect or self-neglect in patients aged 18 years and older. Of these, less 
than 10% met the threshold for referral to Adult Safeguarding for consideration of a 
Section 42 enquiry and fewer still had those safeguarding concerns substantiated.

We have far greater concerns about the numbers of victims of domestic abuse 
identified by ourselves and our multi-agency partners and that the percentage of 
pregnancies where potential safeguarding concerns are identified has increased 
steadily over the year from 6-10% to 10-13.7%.

Activity and Performance
Our staff have identified 2,178 occasions during 2020/2021 when they had 
safeguarding concerns for adults.

Of these concerns, 181 concerns met the threshold for referral to Adult 
Safeguarding for a safeguarding investigation, albeit not all of these went on to be 
substantiated.

Of the remaining majority of concerns raised the themes were domestic abuse, 
homeless people, older adults developing increased care needs, deteriorating 
mental health and alcohol-related issues.

We have taken an active part in all the LeDeR reviews, Safeguarding Adults 
Reviews and Domestic Homicide Reviews and are progressing all of the 

Page 24



17

recommendations applicable to our organisation

Progress against priorities
Safeguarding risk assessments are now embedded as part of the routine ward 
admission processes. This has been achieved courtesy of the phased introduction 
of an Electronic Patient Record. As this rolls out further into the Emergency 
Departments, Maternity, Children’s Services and Outpatients we will be able to 
provide routine safeguarding screening opportunities, tailored to age, across all 
entry points.

Following an intensive virtual teaching schedule during summer 2020 staff are 
more attuned to Mental Capacity being time and decision-specific. Questions from 
staff are now about trying to word decisions well to test capacity against that 
decision i.e. I don’t think they understand that they will not manage at home without 
help – how do I test their capacity for that?

Our work on Mental Capacity is an essential preparation for the introduction of 
Liberty Protection Safeguards on 1st April 2022. 

Our internal quality monitoring system is consistently showing achievement of all of 
the safeguarding standards we have set.

We have reviewed and clarified the staff Allegations Management protocol and 
guidance. In testing this revision has been well-received.

Achievements
Despite staff focus being understandably on the COVID-19 pandemic we have 
been impressed with the sensitivity of staff to recognise subtle signs of potential 
safeguarding needs. They have asked for help and guidance early and followed 
policy. 

We have been able to award several ‘Safeguarding Star of the Month’ for some 
superb safeguarding practice by staff who have gone more than the extra mile to 
advocate for our most vulnerable patients.

5.4 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all areas of health-related 
safeguarding work. At the onset and subsequently throughout the year we have 
advocated a heightened and sustained awareness of safeguarding at the forefront 
for all healthcare providers. Under such huge pressure of staff redeployment to 
frontline posts, GCCG has worked closely and supportively with both Trusts and 
Primary Care to assure their adherence to safeguarding roles as a Priority 1 service 
(defined by NHSE/I).     

Page 25



18

The key work areas of 2020 included: 

 Gloucestershire COVID-19 ICS Independent Sector Scrutiny and Review meeting. 
Chaired by Director of Integrated Services, this frequent meeting facilitated dynamic 
and reactive communication to support related to IPC, care quality, Public Health and 
safeguarding. 

 CCG staff led the initiative for support telephone calls to shielded and clinically 
vulnerable patient groups. With colleagues achieving circa 10,000 calls, the CCG 
Safeguarding Team ensured sufficient support through safeguarding training 
provision and domestic abuse awareness. 

 CCG End of Life Group brought together relevant partners to discuss and address 
the needs of the staff and areas dealing with the increased deaths of people due to 
COVID-19.

 GP Safeguarding Forum using MS Teams as a virtual meeting place and interactive 
learning venue for Gloucestershire’s Safeguarding Liaison GPs.  The adult focused 
sessions have had excellent participation for sessions held 2020-21. Presentations 
and briefings included MAPPA awareness, Gloucestershire Rape and Sexual Abuse 
Centre (GRASAC) on sexual violence against older women, Gloucestershire Action 
for Refugees and Asylum Seekers (GARAS) update on refugees and Asylum 
Seekers in county, Safeguarding Adult Review update and an update regarding 
GSAB High Risk Behaviour policy.

 GCCG has provided Adult Safeguarding Level 3 single agency training to Primary 
Care Networks. Funding an accredited GSAB trainer and Zoom platform, feedback is 
very positive and uptake is good, continuing in 2021/22 but ensuring we do provide a 
‘blended’ approach. 

 CCG COVID-19 Primary Care Bulletin and GCCG Safeguarding Newsletter; Named 
GP, Dr Katy McIntosh has sustained a timely and succinct communication with GPs 
and Practice Managers.

Looking towards 2021/22:
For our local population to receive the best care, NHS England/Improvement’s 10-
year Long Term Plan aims to better join up health and care services into new 
Integrated Care Systems (ICSs). As part of this development there is a requirement 
that each local area sets out how it will integrate a range of existing services, which 
includes health-related safeguarding for the benefit of residents and health and care 
professionals. For Safeguarding, there are two specific ICS work plans:
   

 Gloucestershire benefits from a high standard of local expertise from the CCG 
and both Provider Trusts, but there are opportunities to address gaps and 
duplication in service provision, as well as in enhancing ease of access and 
simplicity for our partners. GCCG has commissioned a project to create a 
single, integrated, health-related safeguarding service, covering both adults 
and children.  

 GCCG will continue to work closely with Provider Trusts and GCC in 
preparation for enactment of the Mental Capacity (amendment) Act and the 
reform to Liberty Protection Safeguards. This is an opportunity for health and 
social care to collaborate effectively, for example working together on training 
and shared information systems. Under the leadership of GCCG/GCC’s MCA 

Page 26



19

Governance Manager, GCC Head of Safeguarding and CCG Safeguarding 
Lead are progressing a joint project plan within Gloucestershire ICS. 

The Domestic Abuse Bill became law in April 2021 therefore widening the legal 
definition beyond physical violence to include emotional, coercive and controlling 
behaviour and economic abuse. GCCG recognises domestic abuse as high risk and 
a safeguarding priority, alongside the detrimental impact on health and wellbeing for 
all ages. We have senior representation on the newly formed Domestic Abuse 
Partnership Board, supporting work at both strategic and operation levels.  

The pandemic has caused an interruption for all health staff in undertaking 
safeguarding training. In addition, the impact of repeated lockdown on everyone, but 
especially for our vulnerable groups means we remain vigilant to recognising and 
responding to risk, abuse and neglect. GCCG Safeguarding Team will sustain our 
focus on training provision and compliance as a high priority.   

6. Safeguarding Adults Reviews
The Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) sub group continues to take responsibility to 
recommend whether a request meets the requirements for a statutory or non-
statutory review (Care Act 2014).  Decision making on each referral follows the 
identification of relevant agencies, information gathering and subsequent analysis.  
As SARs are progressed, the sub group works together on all proposed 
recommendations, supporting SMART action planning and ensuring that key 
learning is cascaded.  
The GSAB Business Unit maintains the SAR Tracker, utilising this information as a 
mechanism to support the bi-annual self-assessment on learning from SARs. As 
such, the sub group acknowledges unwavering administrative support of both the   
GSAB Business Manager and the Safeguarding Adults Administration Staff. 
   
The COVID-19 pandemic impacted how all agencies and organisations were able to 
work from March 2020, meaning a significant change to working practices. For 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews, this has affected how GSAB has been able to progress 
and complete the current SARs, subsequently causing some delay.  However, SAR 
sub group meetings have continued to take place as planned, SARs have 
progressed to publication and action plans are in place.         

Foreword overview on findings 

Themes emerging from the SARs of 2020/21, including the emerging outcomes from 
the thematic audit (alcohol related deaths) are consistent; they are strongly related to 
Adverse Childhood Experiences and the need for trauma informed working practice. 
Those with early experience of abuse frequently cope by using alcohol and/or drugs, 
experience loss of children (child protection removal) and further suffer through that 
as bereavement, but often do not get timely support. As such, people with this type 
of history can respond better to 1:1 support and a less rigid health and social care 
service and there are problems with sustaining accommodation. Professionals 
struggle to work with such complexity, and despite many good services in 

Page 27



20

Gloucestershire, there is disconnection and disparity leading to a fragmented 
approach.   

Safeguarding Adults Reviews 

For the year 2020/21, GSAB commissioned one new SAR (JK); a joint review with 
the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership (GSCP).  GSAB has also 
undertaken a comprehensive ‘Alcohol Related Deaths’ audit following concerns 
raised and subsequent referral to SAR sub group.  

JK Learning Review 
As an adult, a care-leaver sustained life changing injuries from drug use/overdose. 
The joint SAR, with the GSCP) is in progress, due to report in September.    

Alcohol Related Deaths – Deep Dive Audit
In June 2020 there were eight deaths of alcohol dependant hospital patients in a two 
week period. At the start of the COVID-19 lockdown there were also three deaths at 
home. As a cohort, they have died in greater numbers than any other group during 
lockdown. Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust completed a SAR 
referral for seven of the deaths; these individuals were known to agencies.

Following discussion, it was agreed to undertake an audit to look at the themes, 
gaps in services and how partners worked together.  Information relating to the 
seven individuals was collated and the main themes identified.  A report of the 
findings is now being finalised (June 2021) with analysis and learning disseminated.    

Overview of SAR referrals received 2020/21

The table below shows an overview of the SAR referrals made to GSAB, capturing 
the breadth of referral sources as well as time period when referrals were made.    

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Referrals 
Received 

MV
 

AJ 
MD
Alcohol Related 
Deaths

JK SD

Referral 
Source 

Adult Social Care 
Locality Team 

LeDeR Review
Suicide Crisis
Gloucestershire 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust

GCC 
Children’s 
Social Care

DASV Strategic 
Coordinator, 
Gloucestershire 
Constabulary

SAR 
Undertaken

0 0 1 0 

Name - Alcohol Related 
Deaths Audit

JK -

Learning Event 0 0 0 0
Comments - An audit of seven 

alcohol related 
deaths was 
undertaken

This is a joint 
review with 
Children’s

-

Page 28



21

Case referrals not progressing to SAR

MV – A case for concern was raised (Q1) from GCC Adult Social Care following 
concerns about the care provided by a family member.  Following investigation and 
discussion, this case did not meet criteria for SAR, as the issues were around care 
quality and end of life planning.

AJ – A case for concern was raised (Q2) following a LeDeR Review.  The concerns 
related to the suitability of the care home placement.  Due to the single issue aspect 
of this case (commissioning), it did not meet the criteria for a SAR, as there were no 
concerns about how agencies worked together.

MD – A referral was made (Q2) by Suicide Crisis regarding concerns about the care 
received and medication issues.  Following investigation, it was agreed using the 
GCC Complaints process was the correct route. 

SD – A referral was made (Q4) by the DASV Strategic Coordinator at 
Gloucestershire Constabulary.  This was already being progressed as a Domestic 
Homicide Review (DHR) and it was agreed that relevant agencies would sit on the 
DHR Panel.   

2020/21 Priorities update

NC ‘Nick’ – Referred for a SAR following the Learning Disabilities Mortality Review 
(LeDeR).  NC was a gentleman with complex health conditions, including a learning 
disability, and receiving care, treatment and support from health and care 
organisations.  NC died in early 2018, aged 58, from malnutrition related to gut 
insufficiency, after a relatively short period of declining health. The report was 
published on 9th April 2021; the recommendations were disseminated and are being 
progressed.     

SWOP (Sex Workers Outreach Project) ‘Five Women’ – Referred from the Nelson 
Trust, this SAR highlights the deaths of five women over a period of two years.  At 
the time of their deaths, all women were engaging with services, with a common 
theme for each of abuse and trauma suffered at an early age.  This thematic review 
aims to better understand how the county can work to support similar vulnerable 
groups. The initial draft report is expected in July 2021; it will be published in early 
autumn.   

PH ‘Peter’ – Referred from Cheltenham Borough Council, this SAR is about a 
homeless man who died (in 2019) in Cheltenham town centre.  PH had been rough 
sleeping prior to his death; he had mental health issues and was known to both 
statutory and voluntary agencies.  The draft report has been received and is 
currently being considered by the SAR sub group prior to planning publication.  

Warrington SAB commissioned a statutory review (LD) in 2017.  Referred by family 
members, this young person died whilst receiving inpatient psychiatric care outside 
of Gloucestershire.  The report has been published, with two recommendations 
relevant to Gloucestershire.  These are being tracked and their progress monitored.     

Page 29



22

SAR Action Tracker 
The SAR Tracker is fully utilised and reviewed each quarter by the GSAB Business 
Manager.  This tool is enabling continued oversight of SAR work, influencing action 
plans and picking up themes as they develop.  

Planning for 2021/22: 

 The learning from the three completed SARs will be disseminated and taken 
forward during the coming year (NC ‘Nick’, SWOP ‘Five Women’ and PH 
‘Peter’).  

 The findings of the Alcohol Related Deaths Audit will be shared with relevant 
agencies. 

 The JK Joint SAR will be completed, with the emerging themes disseminated.   
 The Gloucestershire recommendations from the Warrington SAB 

commissioned ‘LD’ SAR will be progressed. 

The full SAR reports can be found on the GSAB website at: 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/ 

7. GSAB Business Planning Group 

During 2020/21 the Business Planning Group met quarterly; due to COVID-19 the 
meetings were held virtually.  The group worked to a standard agenda, which 
included oversight and updates to the Strategic Plan and Risk Register.  Attendance 
at meetings continues to be good, with engagement from statutory partners and the 
voluntary and community sector.  

8. Sub Group Achievements 2020/21 and Priorities 2021/22 

8.1 Workforce Development 
Due to COVID-19 all face to face training was initially postponed and subsequently 
cancelled for the year. This posed a huge challenge, yet also provided an opportunity to 
learn and experience a new way of delivering training. Moving to remote learning was not 
an easy task for trainers, learners and different IT systems. Fortunately our trainers and 
course participants embraced both the learning and the delivery of virtual training. As an 
alternative to face to face training, the Safeguarding and MCA level 2 programmes were 
translated into e-learning content and launched as e-learning packages in May 2020. 
Later in the summer, the multi-agency Safeguarding Level 3 day was successfully 
launched as a remote learning programme and was then delivered throughout the year. 

Despite the pandemic, the take up of GSAB e-learning and remote interactive 
training has been high. Training figures (found in supporting documents) highlight a 
total of 22,747 individual GSAB approved Safeguarding and MCA course places 
were taken up by Gloucestershire staff (and volunteers). Given the challenges faced 

Page 30

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/


23

throughout the pandemic, this is a very positive outcome. Of particular note is the 
high volume of take up by GHNHSFT staff.

Although an over-reliance on e-learning currently remains a (reduced) risk, GSAB WD sub 
group are hopeful that as COVID-19 restrictions ease, we can soon return to face to face 
learning. As a result of learners having welcomed remote platforms, it is likely that a future 
model of training will continue to include interactive remote learning, along-side traditional 
class based learning. 

Participant feedback has been excellent in terms of course delivery and learning, despite 
initial IT glitches. Post course evaluation, via surveys, has also been gathered to identify 
the impact Safeguarding level 3 training has had in practice. Despite a low return rate, 
delegates who responded evidenced an increase in confidence around safeguarding and 
the reporting process and a greater understanding of safeguarding investigations which 
supported practice improvements. 

This year the GSAB roadshow events have been scheduled in April 2020 over a week of 
morning events. They will be delivered virtually using MS Teams. The theme will be 
shining a light on safeguarding during the COVID-19 pandemic. Each day will be focusing 
on a specific theme including Financial Abuse, Domestic Abuse, Substance Misuse, 
Mental Health and Disability. The event is aimed predominantly at the voluntary sector. 

2020/21 Training Figures can be found in supporting documents.

8.2 Fire Safety Development
The Fire Safety Development sub group works as a multi-agency partnership to 
reduce the risk from fire for people in Gloucestershire.  The group ensures that 
analysis and learning from national, regional and local data contributes to helping 
front line staff understand fire risk and its wider implications for the local community. 
Bringing together resources and knowledge enables teams to deliver the appropriate 
advice and equipment at the right time. By working together and understanding 
different roles, the Fire Safety Development sub group can identify emerging trends 
and assist in creating initiatives to mitigate the risk.

The work of the group was significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic for 
several months during 2020/2021. The operational demands on Gloucestershire Fire 
& Rescue Service affected the capacity to embed the learning from a gap analysis of 
Coroners’ Reports which had been a key theme from 2019/2020.  However, the 
appointment of a new Chair in February 2020 has enabled the group to begin longer 
term planning and the virtual meetings in the latter half of the year have been 
productive and well-attended.

In 2019, the group identified that a better understanding of local risks was needed to 
inform partners about emerging concerns. Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service 
has now completed an analysis of local risks and national fire data to produce a new 
Prevention Risk Profile.  This has formed the basis for setting community safety 
objectives for the next three years.   The national and regional information was 
shared with agencies and is now being used to update the Group’s Action Plan for 
2021/2022.  Becoming better informed about the people who are most at risk from 

Page 31

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


24

fire in Gloucestershire and how individual agencies can recognise that risk and 
support intervention has become a renewed focus of the group. 

The key concern arising from fire safety work during the pandemic has been to 
identify any new risks.  Partners reported increasing cases of self-neglect, which 
often presents as hoarding, poor housekeeping, isolation or substance misuse. 
These are factors that increase the potential for serious injury from a fire. The multi-
agency partners in the Fire Safety Development sub group have continued to send 
requests for home fire safety checks and Safe and Well visits throughout the 
pandemic and work has continued to identify and support people who need help.  
There were fewer agencies able to cross the threshold of people’s homes during the 
pandemic but fire safety has remained a priority and all agencies remain committed 
to meeting the Board’s objectives.  

8.3 Communication & Engagement 
Achievements 2020/2021 

 Held quarterly meetings of the sub group to support delivery of the GSAB 
Strategic Plan, specifically the communications and engagement work within the 
plan. 

 Onboarded a new chair from the VCS Alliance. This provides the group with 
specific knowledge of the VCSE and supports us to engage more effectively with 
the sector.  The Alliance is well-placed to spread the safeguarding message 
throughout the VCS in the county.

 Arranged, managed and chaired the Safeguarding Roadshow 2021 focussing on 
the VCSE and safeguarding during COVID-19. This was provided as an online 
series of events over the course of a week, each day focussing on a particular 
safeguarding theme. 

 Roadshow themes included: Financial Abuse, Domestic Abuse, Substance 
Misuse, Mental Health and Disability. The roadshows focussed on the VCSE and 
its delivery with 16 presentations throughout the week.

 480 people attended the events with breakout rooms used as an engagement 
tool to collect information on what should be in the new GSAB Strategic Plan. 
This was written up into a series of reports and distributed to relevant partners.

 The Communications and Engagement sub group is also taking collective 
responsibility for producing the content of the quarterly newsletter. 

Priorities for 2020/2021 

 To further increase representation in the group, including better cross sector 
representation, to be more inclusive and diverse.

 Raise awareness of safeguarding and promote the welfare of vulnerable adults, 
utilising the networks that members of the Communication and Engagement sub 
group have in the community. 

 Support the creation of the new GSAB Strategic Plan.
 Carry out another roadshow and ad hoc events to support communications and 

engagement

Page 32



25

8.4 Policy & Procedures 
Achievements for 2020/21 
Due to COVID-19, meetings were postponed for a few months and started again, 
virtually, in September 2020.  The GSAB Policy Library is the group’s work plan, 
detailing the progress of policies and their review date.  Listed below are some of the 
policies that have been updated during the last year: 
 

 Organisational Abuse Policy was reviewed and updated in October 2020. 
 Easy Read Policy and Procedures were reviewed and updated in October 

2020. 
 Elected Member Guidance was updated and ratified in February 2021. 

Priorities for 2021/22 

Policies to be reviewed and updated over the next year include:

 High Risk Behaviours Policy
 Positions of Trust Framework 
 Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) Protocol 

8.5 Activity & Data 2020/21

The data below covers the period 1st April 2020 to 18th March 2021.  Due to a 
change in our Adult Social Care IT system on 19th March 2021, we are unable to 
provide data for the full year. 

The number of Safeguarding concerns raised on behalf of adults at risk was 2416. 

Of the 2416 concerns, 687 went on to become Section 42 enquiries and 70 became 
‘Other’ enquiries, making a total of 757. ‘Other’ relates to enquiries that have not met 
the criteria for a statutory enquiry, however some form of safeguarding enquiry is 
deemed to be required, for example, the person is at risk of abuse and has support 
needs, but not care needs. 

Concerns Leading to Section 42 or Other Safeguarding Enquiries 2020/21

Page 33



26

Closed Section 42 Enquiries and Risk 

Financial 
Quarter

Financial 
Year

Total  
Closed      
S42s

Risk 
Remains

Risk 
Reduced

Risk 
Removed

No Risk 
Identified

Q1 2020/21 173 17 101 55 0
Q2 2020/21 183 24 91 70 0
Q3 2020/21 221 29 115 78 1
Q4 2020/21 158 11 92 57 0
Total  735 81 399 260 1

Number of Risks 

Page 34



27

Section 42 Enquiries by Age Group

8.6 Quality Assurance 
Audit Group
The purpose of the Audit Sub Group is to:

 Provide a means of assuring the GSAB that effective structures are in place 
to improve the outcomes and experience of safeguarding for adults with care 
and support needs, at risk of abuse or neglect. 

 Provide the GSAB with the information it needs to identify potential risks and 
assurance that actions are being taken to mitigate those risks and improve 
services. 

The multi-agency group conducts audits every other month on a selected sample of 
cases and is well supported by its core members. In addition to its regular 
membership, the group will be inviting professionals on an ad hoc basis to provide 
specialist input on particular themes relevant to the audits. This is as a result of 
previous audits highlighting the potential benefits of specialist input, for example, 
from the domestic abuse or learning disability specialist services. Themes are 
decided by the audit steering group (held twice yearly). In this period, they have 
inevitably been influenced by the impact of COVID-19 and the resulting complexity of 
cases.

Due to the pandemic, the first scheduled audit was cancelled and the subsequent 
schedule was reshuffled. Audits took place using virtual platforms and were focused 
on the following themes:

 Other vulnerable people
 Physical health
 Domestic Abuse
 Working age adult mental health

Page 35



28

The audits provide valuable insight in to aspects of adult safeguarding practice 
across the multi-agency with learning, feedback and good practice identified for 
respective agencies to take away and progress, for example the use of the GSAB 
High Risk Behaviour Policy and the benefit of holding multi-agency meetings. Each 
audit has an associated action log, so that there is an accountable structure in place 
to ensure actions are monitored and concluded. 

Feedback from the audit activity is disseminated through the GSAB Business 
Planning Group and to the Board. 

For the year 2021-22 the agreed schedule of audits is:

 Deep dive on repeat concerns for an individual
 Complex cases during COVID-19 - self neglect
 Financial abuse
 Deep dive in to an individual case
 Dementia
 Mental Health

9. The Board’s Resources

Independent Chair’s comments on Board attendance 
We have worked hard once again to ensure that all partner organisations on the 
Safeguarding Adults Board are represented by a post holder of sufficient seniority 
and expertise and that ideally the same person should attend each meeting. 
However, there are inevitably operational pressures on individuals. I am very grateful 
to the senior representatives of each organisation who have given so much time, 
interest and commitment to the work of the Board during 2020/21.

Funding Contributions
The Board is pleased to confirm that Gloucestershire Constabulary and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (on behalf of Gloucestershire Health and Care NHSFT and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHSFT) have agreed to continue their financial 
contribution to the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board.   

GSAB Partner Contributions 2020/21
 
Health 38,877
Police 20,440

Page 36



29

These contributions help with the costs associated with the running of the Board, 
including its Independent Chair, the Gloucestershire County Council Head of 
Safeguarding Adults post, costs in conducting Safeguarding Adults Reviews, 
Communication & Publicity and delivering on the Board’s Workforce Development 
and Training Pathway. 

Other partners have contributed with their time and commitment to the Board’s work 
and by providing access to resources such as meeting venues, conferences, etc.

All documents and supporting reports referred to in this annual report can 
also be found on the GSAB website, supporting documentation.

Special thanks are reserved for all agencies who have contributed to this 
report and the achievements of the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 
Board over the last year. 

Back to Contents

GSAB Business and Activity Costs 2020/21

Independent Chair                                                      20,000
Other staffing                                                            101,400
(Includes 30% Head of Safeguarding Adults, 
100% GSAB Business Manager, 15% Admin
Manager & 100% Administrator)
                                           
Workforce Development                                             65,000
Safeguarding Adult  Reviews                                      20,000
Comms & Publicity                                                        4,000
Total                                                                         210,400

Page 37

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gsab/safeguarding-adults-board/safeguarding-adults-annual-reports-and-strategic-plan/


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health

7 September 2021 – Market Management Overview 
_________________________________________________  

Introduction
The Care Act 2014 sets out the law around market development in adult social care. 

Under the Act, Gloucestershire County Council, (GCC), has a duty to not only meet 

and fund the needs of people eligible for care, but also to shape the local care 

market to encourage quality, choice and sufficiency of provision.  This duty applies to 

our whole local population, including those who pay for their own care. Equally, it 

extends beyond care which is commissioned, and includes the informal care and 

support provided by families, networks of support and in communities. 

In addition to the statutory requirement under the Care Act to manage care markets, 

GCC also has duties to improve the quality of care under the Health & Social Care 

Act 2012. The key means to achieve this is to ensure care is integrated around the 

needs of patients/people. In the past, handovers of responsibility between the NHS 

and social care have been problematic, so the Act aims to enable more integration 

between services which includes community based commissioned services from the 

independent and voluntary sectors. Therefore, market management includes 

services that support both health and social care delivery, whether they are 

purchased by public authorities or by private individuals. 

As well as the statutory duties outlined in the above acts, GCC also have 

responsibilities under the Transforming Care Programme and the Gloucestershire 

Transforming Care Partnership. Transforming Care aims to improve health and care 

services so that more people with a learning disability and/or autism who display 

behaviour that challenges can live in the community, with the right support, close to 

home. Following investigations into abuse at Winterbourne View and other similar 

hospitals, there was a cross-government commitment to transform care and support 

for people with a learning disability and/or autism who display behaviour that 

challenges, including behaviour that can lead to contact with the criminal justice 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



2

system. Transforming Care is focused on building community capacity which can 

provide the relevant support and thereby reduce inappropriate hospital admissions 

and reliance on institutionalised support. 

Adult social care includes personal care and practical support for adults with a need 

arising from old age, frailty, physical disability, a learning disability, or physical or 

mental illness, as well as support for their Carers. In our county, care is provided 

across a wide range of settings and predominantly purchased from the private 

sector, including traditional nursing and residential care homes, but increasingly in 

people’s own homes and in the wider community. Balancing the various groups, 

people and needs of those accessing health and adult social care support forms the 

core of market management and is the core challenge.

This report sets out a brief assessment of the current care market, the challenges 

and changes we face, and our response to those pressures.

Key Messages
Gloucestershire County Council is committed to working with the care market to 

provide high quality, affordable care and support which shares our commitment to 

choice and self-determination, responds flexibly to need, and promotes 

independence. To deliver those aims:

 we need to increase the availability and range of care and support delivered in 
people’s own homes and communities; 

 we need more specialist care which can support people with complex needs 
across all settings, including the predicted rising demand for nursing care;

 fewer long-term residential placements are needed, and the shrinking market 
is likely to result in the closure of some establishments;

 we want to increase the availability and responsiveness of home care and 
short-term care provision to support hospital discharge and achieve better 
long-term outcomes for people;

 we will share intelligence about shifting choices and demands across the 
Integrated Care System and with care providers to enable sustainable 
business growth and service development;

 there is a need for an increase in the provision of assistive technology, digital 
solutions, equipment and adaptations to enable people to remain independent 
for longer;

Page 40



3

 we want to work collaboratively with the market to support and grow a skilled 
and sustainable workforce which ensures access to quality care;

 we need to ensure our care offer is sustainable within the current financial 
context;

 we will continue to invest in supporting the development and sustainability of 
our care market. 

National Picture
It is widely accepted that demographic changes mean that there will be increased 

demand for care and support over the next 10-20 years. Based on long-term 

forecasts, there will be large increases in future demand for care and therefore cost.1 

If current patterns of care continue, around 29% more adults aged 18 to 64 and 57% 

more adults aged 65 and over will require care in 2038 compared with 2018.

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a profound effect on the care market. Nationally, 

occupancy in care homes fell from around 90% at the start of the pandemic to 

around 80% in February 2021. Recent research by the Institute for Public Policy 

Research found a third of people are now less likely to seek residential care for an 

elderly relative and 40% of over 65s are less likely to consider it for themselves.

Gloucestershire Picture 
It is well established that social care will need to respond to the needs of a 

population who have a longer life expectancy and greater likelihood of complex 

conditions. In Gloucestershire, an estimated 25,400 older people have a long-term 

illness or disability that limits their day-to-day activities a lot. That number is 

predicted to rise to 39,000 by 2030. The numbers of people with physical disabilities 

and learning disabilities are also projected to rise significantly over the same period. 

Advances in medicine mean that a percentage of older people will also have a long-

term condition (learning or physical disability), and they may therefore require a more 

focused or specialised package of support.

Gloucestershire’s 65+ population is projected to experience the greatest growth, 

increasing by almost 70,900 people, or 52.5%, by 2043. All districts are expected to 

1 The Adult Social Care Market in England, Department of Health & Social Care (National Audit Office, March 
2021)

Page 41



4

experience an increase in the 65+ age group. The increase is projected to be highest 

in Cotswold (65.1%) and smallest in Cheltenham (45.5%).

Table 1: Population change in Gloucestershire, 2009 – 2019

Table 2: Projected population change in Gloucestershire, 2018 – 2043

Dementia is one of the major causes of disability in older people. Estimated 

projections suggest that in 2021 there will be approximately 10,076 people aged 65+ 

living with dementia in Gloucestershire. Incidents of dementia increase with age - 

people aged 65-69 account for 6.1% of dementia sufferers over 65 in 

Gloucestershire; this increases to 21.8% for the 85-89 age group. Given the ageing 

population, the number of dementia sufferers will increase in the future.

Page 42



5

Table 3: Predicted number of people aged 65 and over with dementia, 
Gloucestershire 2021

Locally, the effect of the Covid-19 pandemic is not yet wholly understood, but there 

are likely to be medium- and long-term consequences for the care market. We do 

know that the support we have given care homes through the pandemic (in the form 

of central government funding, local authority grants such as the Infection Control 

Grant, and support via the PPE, testing and vaccination cells) has sustained the 

market through a difficult time. We also know that this additional funding has created 

an artificial level of income for homes which it will not be possible to sustain in future. 

Already, over summer 2021, we are experiencing a significant number of homes 

expressing a need to close.

In Gloucestershire we have been addressing these challenges through the Adult 

Single Programme which aims to transform our approach to social care through 

managing demand differently, by supporting changed commissioning and 

operational practices and increasingly through focusing on our role in prevention. 

The provision of care in Gloucestershire is based on a 3-tier model which aims to 

make the most effective use of the limited care market and budget. Care and support 

across all three tiers focus on people’s strengths and enables us to meet our Care 

Act duties to prevent, reduce and delay needs. 

 Tier One supports prevention, early intervention and self-help. Typically, 
services are provided by the voluntary and community sector. 

 Tier Two focuses on short-term interventions which are intended to help 
people to maximise their independence, for example after a stay in hospital. 

Page 43



6

This tier includes the in-house Enablement team and the Home First 
(Reablement) service commissioned from Gloucestershire Health and Care 
NHS Foundation Trust.

 Tier Three provides long-term care when necessary, and continues to work 
with people’s strengths. It is typically provided by the independent sector.

Tier One Provision (Help to help yourself)
Our model of social care practice, known as the 3 Conversation model, works with 

people’s strengths and those of their family and community to enable them to remain 

as independent as possible for as long as possible. 

For this model to be a success, it requires a diverse and varied supply of local 

support to be in place. The Council has recognised the importance of this part of the 

market and significantly increased investment in the support provided by the 

voluntary and community sectors over recent years. The Adult Single Programme 

have developed and resourced the introduction of Know Your Patch Networks, 

Thriving Community Grants and the Digital Innovation Fund. These contributions not 

only improve people’s quality of life and enable them to remain independent, but they 

can prevent needs from escalating and mean we can make the most of the limited 

formal care resource available.

We also commission services for informal carers to ensure they are supported to be 

able to continue to care for their loved ones. One important aspect of this support is 

the provision of day services which provide respite for carers and meaningful 

activities and support for those who are cared for. We currently use a combination of 

in-house services, specialist community support and more mainstream groups and 

services provided through the voluntary and community sectors. As people with 

higher levels of need are living in their own homes for longer, we will need to 

respond by stimulating the development of community services which are flexible, 

less focused on a small number of buildings and more inclusive of a variety of needs. 

Gloucestershire has a vibrant community and voluntary sector which provides a 

sense of community and belonging so, rather than commission needs-based day 

provision, improving access to what is already thriving in our communities enables 

people to have a continued connection to their neighbourhoods and communities. As 

Page 44



7

part of Conversation 1, adult social care practitioners use the information on Your 

Circle2 to identify local activities and support that may be of interest to the individuals 

they are assessing. For example, as part of the work of managing access to 

community meals, Your Circle has a section about meals and lunch clubs. Therefore, 

discussions would centre around accessing lunch clubs or on getting local meal 

providers to provide outreach rather than suggesting the use of commissioned 

services.  

Tier Two Provision (Help when you need it)
We have invested in strengthening and increasing the availability of Reablement in 

people’s own homes and will implement a new Home First service (and ethos) 

across the county later this year. Providing this short-term intensive support is 

intended to help people regain or retain their independence, and while this reduces 

demand for care in the long term, it is challenging to provide in a large and 

predominantly rural county. Recruiting sufficient workforce capacity to provide both a 

new Home First service and to support the growing demand for home-based care is 

a significant issue.

Home First is designed to provide a therapy-led, reabling model of care so that 

individuals are supported to do things for themselves rather than having tasks 

undertaken for them. Unfortunately, much of the current service is provided by 

independent home care (domiciliary care) agencies where a reabling model of care 

is not readily used. The current procurement model for this care unintentionally 

encourages waste as carers from a number of agencies travel from their business 

bases to the work and we can have a number of carers from different agencies 

working in the same district, neighbourhood or even street. Moving to a model where 

agencies are allocated an area(s) of the county to work in is part of a change 

management project being undertaken in the Integrated Brokerage team. This model 

has been shown to increase care workers’ hands-on care time by over 25%. Our 

challenge is how to make this change whilst working within current procurement 

legislation and making sure that individuals are able to have choice of agencies and 

workers.

2 Your Circle is Gloucestershire County Council’s online care and support directory www.yourcircle.org.uk 

Page 45

http://www.yourcircle.org.uk/


8

Over recent times, and exacerbated by the pandemic, Reablement services have 

focused on people who have been discharged from hospital. We need to develop our 

new Home First service to be able to include a far greater emphasis on supporting 

people in the community, aiming to prevent hospital admissions and to reduce or 

delay deteriorating conditions. This will be particularly important in our response to 

people experiencing post-Covid symptoms. 

Assistive technology (including telecare, equipment and digital technology) will have 

a significant role to play in preventing escalating need, being used as part of a 

reabling intervention, and in supporting hospital discharge and in promoting 

independence. We are developing a Technology Strategy for Adult Social Care 

which explores the potential we have to use both existing and innovative 

technologies to support people in the community.

Tier Three Provision (Ongoing support for those who need it)

Care Homes
In general, Gloucestershire has an oversupply of care home beds, particularly in the 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury districts.  There has previously been an 

assumption that entering a care home is inevitable in later years, but we know more 

people are choosing alternative long-term care options. More people are either living 

out their whole lives in their own homes with support, or move to a care home much 

later in life when their needs have become more complex. As we continue to shift our 

practice to supporting more people in their own homes, this picture will become more 

pronounced.

We do, however, experience pressure for care home beds which meet more acute 

and specialist needs, such as advanced dementia, complex care and neurological 

conditions. Analysis has further highlighted that in the Cotswolds, Stroud and the 

Forest of Dean districts, there is an insufficient amount of affordable care bed 

capacity which means that the Council often finds it necessary to place individuals in 

care facilities outside of their local communities and frequently outside of 

Gloucestershire in order to be able to meet their needs. While this situation is most 

Page 46



9

pronounced for older people’s care, it is true across all provision including care for 

people with physical and learning disabilities.

Since April 2020 the average number of care home vacancies in Gloucestershire has 

consistently been above 20%; currently vacancies across older people’s homes are 

levelling at 25%. Many of these vacancies are caused by self-funders choosing 

alternative options, which in turn negatively impacts on the sustainability of the 

market as self-funders are more inclined to pay a higher rate for the ‘nice to have’ 

aspects of care than is the case with publically funded placements. The potential for 

home closures is therefore a real threat. We will need to rationalise the care home 

sector so that we manage down the oversupply of residential care, manage out poor 

quality homes and promote growth in the areas of undersupply, such as care which 

meets complex needs, provides for people with advanced dementia or other 

behaviours that challenge, and increases the availability of nursing home beds. Key 

contracted providers in Gloucestershire are already working with us to ensure this 

change is handled sensitively and appropriately. 

As part of our duty under the Care Act 2014, we continue to work with the 

independent care market to ensure we are promoting individuals’ wellbeing, 

commissioning quality care provision to meet the needs of our diverse population, 

and to meet the need to better integrate care and support services with health 

services. In preparation for the re-tender of the Residential Care contract in 2019/20 

it was recognised that decommissioning and redeveloping of the Gloucestershire 

Care Partnership (GCP) estate would continue to ensure our responsibility under the 

Care Act 2014 is met, as well as being crucial in aiding the sustainability of the wider 

independent care market in Gloucestershire. 

Gloucestershire has a surplus of care beds in many districts and many of the homes 

in the GCP portfolio are now no longer fit for purpose in the longer term in the sorts 

of facilities they are able to offer, such as en-suite bathrooms and flexible 

accommodation that can adapt as needs of individuals change and develop. This is 

resulting in low occupancy levels in these homes and an increased cost to the local 

authority as we continue to pay costs for void beds.  

Page 47



10

The wider impact of an international pandemic has layered additional stresses on the 

care market. Many of our homes have had significant losses and most are declaring 

that self-funding requests have reduced to the point where they are reviewing the 

viability of their business. We are also aware that the pandemic has highlighted 

deficiencies in some of our residential provision, for example in having the skills and 

property which enable providers to manage good infection control practices. The 

business model for residential care relies on a good balance between publically 

funded and self-funded placements; the loss of self-funders when coupled with a 

high level of mortality brings a significant risk to the market.

Our current contractual framework for bed-based care will need to be updated to 

reflect these changes in the market and to enable us to meet the needs of people 

with more complex conditions within the funding we have available. It will be 

essential to build some areas of the market while reducing others, and in doing so, to 

bring the care market with us. We will need a range of housing and accommodation 

options including supported living and extra care facilities which can support people 

with dementia and other complex needs and will work with District Councils to 

develop this market. The Gloucestershire wide Housing with Care Strategy 2020 

sets out Gloucestershire County Council’s commitment to working together with the 

Strategic Housing Partnership to ensure that the right type and range of housing is 

provided for the specific needs of the population of the county in each of the six 

districts.

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2108909/housing-with-care-

report_17feb_21.pdf

We also need to plan for future provision to be able to provide for a much more 

diverse population in relation to care and support. Gloucestershire has a large 

number of placements from other counties and it is unlikely that these individuals will 

return to their home county as they age. In December 2019 Gloucestershire had 

over 700 out of county placements in supported living or disability specific 

placements. 

We will continue to work collaboratively with the Gloucestershire Care Providers 

Association and others to develop a vibrant, varied market reflective of the needs of 

the Council and the choices of our citizens.

Page 48

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2108909/housing-with-care-report_17feb_21.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2108909/housing-with-care-report_17feb_21.pdf


11

Domiciliary (Home-Based) Care 
Demand for domiciliary care has been increasing steadily over recent years for older 

people and those with disabilities in line with people’s preference to remain in their 

own homes for longer. This direction of travel is set to continue and be accelerated 

by the effect of the pandemic. The current competitive model of home-based care 

though, causes the same stresses as those found in care homes i.e. oversupply in 

urban areas and sparsity in rural areas, especially the Cotswolds. This has the 

effects of driving up costs, compromising outcomes for people and delaying 

discharges from hospital.

We will need to work with the home care sector to increase capacity, flexibility and to 

develop higher level skills in order to meet the changing needs of vulnerable people 

who wish to remain in their own homes. 

As outlined above, Gloucestershire has a growing demand for home care. However, 

the current delivery model for home care encourages waste of the most precious and 

essential resource, care staff. Often, care workers from a number of agencies can 

travel to the same part of the county, or even to the same street wasting time in both 

travel and mileage costs but more importantly meaning they have less time and 

opportunity to deliver face to face care and support.  An Adult Single Programme 

project, managed within the Integrated Brokerage team, is working with the West of 

England Academic Health Science Network to pilot a more efficient model of care 

delivery which uses artificial intelligence to more optimally schedule care visits. 

Recent research has shown that that such improved co-ordination could reduce 

mileage by 40% and increase utilisation of the care workers’ hands on care time by 

over 25%. Importantly, working this way has also resulted in improved worker 

satisfaction and better quality of care. 

Gloucestershire intentionally has one of the lowest rates for residential care as we 

have been actively discouraging the use of residential beds for over a decade. We 

also have one of the highest hourly rates for home care, particularly in the rural 

areas of the county, (though there is evidence to say that this is not consistently 

passed on to staff in their hourly rate as we are also benchmarked as the local 

authority where most care workers are paid on or just above the National Living 

Page 49



12

Wage). We have recognised that managing this complex and changing market 

requires dedicated resource, and that the capacity of the Integrated Brokerage team 

needs to be augmented to do so in the shadow of Covid-19. We have therefore 

committed additional Care Act budget to fund a senior manager within the team 

whose responsibility will be to support and develop the Gloucestershire care market.

Key Challenges

Covid-19
We recognise that Covid-19 has affected the care market, and the consequences in 

terms of the financial sustainability of providers could continue for some time. The 

pandemic is likely to negatively impact profitability as care home providers try to 

rebuild occupancy against a backdrop of increasing numbers of self-funders 

choosing to remain in their own homes for longer. Nationally, occupancy in care 

homes fell from around 90% at the start of the pandemic to around 80% in February 

2021. 

Gloucestershire had a surplus of care beds prior to the pandemic with between 15-

20% vacancies at any one time, and occupancy levels have not increased in the 

same way they have nationally (occupancy levels are between 20-30%). The 

decreasing number of self-funders has meant that care homes are no longer able to 

depend on the balance of self-funders and publically funded placements. We have 

seen a significant increase in the number of care homes willing to accept local 

authority rates in the past year.

Whilst the Covid-19 pandemic has highlighted the importance of care, it has also 

raised many questions about the perception of care homes as a safe environment. 

We have seen a reluctance in the take up of long-term residential care, as fears 

around contracting the virus, the imposition of visiting restrictions, being cut off from 

loved ones for long periods of time and the possibility of dying alone have been 

highlighted in the media. This will potentially further drive people towards choosing 

home-based care or other ways of meeting their care needs. 

Page 50



13

Gloucestershire County Council are very grateful for the system response to the 

Covid-19 pandemic from local providers, who have risen to the challenges, 

responded quickly and been prepared to deliver services differently.

Demand
As stated above, overall demand for care is forecast to rise considerably over 

coming years to support our population which is living longer, and with more complex 

ongoing needs. The way people are choosing to purchase their own care, as well as 

the strategic direction of Adult Social Care, means that not only the amount of care 

available will need to change, but the types of care and its location will also continue 

to shift in the near future.

We have been responding to demand pressures through our Adult Single 

Programme, aiming to support care practitioners, care providers and those who need 

care to think and behave differently in response to need. We have embedded a 

transformed model of social care practice which focuses on people’s strengths and 

those of their communities, listens to what makes a difference to their lives, and 

considers formal, institutional care only when it is absolutely necessary. We have 

funded and developed capacity in Tier 1 (improved information, advice & guidance 

and funded voluntary and community sector organisations), we are investing in and 

augmenting changed provision in Tier 2 (enhanced independence delivered through 

Home First and assistive technology), and are supporting changes to the way we 

commission Tier 3 services to reflect our practice emphasis on prevention and 

strengths-based work. 

Supply
To meet current challenges and to address projected rising need, we will need to 

build and support a care market which continues to shift in emphasis towards home-

based care, has the skills and knowledge to care for people with more complex 

needs, and reflects our strength-based model of practice. We particularly need to 

grow the market in geographical areas where we have the most unmet demand. 

Options for this include: diversifying care home provision to extend to community 

work (Hub & Spoke model); encouraging micro-providers and personal assistants; 

Page 51



14

and embracing new technologies to enable us to increase the capacity and 

productivity of home care by use of better scheduling and route planning. 

Our current market of provision can sometimes struggle to accommodate urgent 

requests for care or to work with the most complex and challenging conditions, and 

is not equally available in all parts of the county. We need more care delivered in 

people’s own homes that is able to meet these needs. 

At the same time, we have an oversupply of residential care, particularly in the older 

people’s market, but too little nursing care. Again, this varies across the county. We 

will take a managed approach to this shifting picture, building on our Older People’s 

Care Home Strategy and Market Position Statement by creating Locality Plans for 

each district area of the county, aiming to manage down outdated provision and that 

which no longer meets people’s changing needs and choices. 

Workforce
Overall, the size and shape of our care workforce is too small, too changeable, and 

needs to develop a different skill mix to meet current and future needs.

Our providers experience challenges in recruiting and retaining staff, particularly in 

rural areas (or areas where property costs are higher, such as the Cotswolds). This 

picture is likely to become more of an issue as we require more care to be delivered 

outside the residential settings which have traditionally been more attractive to the 

care workforce. 

To ensure Gloucestershire has a sustainable, skilled workforce able to meet a range 

of care and support needs in the community, including being able to care for people 

with more complex needs in their own homes, we will need to continue to invest in 

schemes such as Proud to Care which support skills development, recruitment and 

the status of care as a profession. We will also ensure that our contracts promote 

and value skills development and the welfare of the care workforce, and we will 

continue to pay rates which are able to provide the National Living Wage.

Page 52



15

Legislative and Financial Change
It is likely that the Government will change the legislative and funding framework of 

adult social care in England. There is considerable uncertainty about what this will 

mean for Gloucestershire County Council, or for the care market.

Current intelligence suggests that a cap on the amount any individual will be required 

to spend on their care will be introduced, after which the local authority would be 

responsible for meeting the full cost of care for the remainder of that person’s life. 

While we do not have confirmation of this change, it will result in uncertainty in the 

market and a potential shift in self-funders’ behaviour. If a care cap were to be 

implemented though, it would have a significant impact on adult social care budgets. 

For example, if the cap was set at £50,000, this sum could cover less than two 

years, approximately 80 weeks of residential care in a Gloucestershire care home 

that accepts GCC rates, or approximately 95 weeks of domiciliary care, leaving GCC 

to cover any care needs after that time. In a county in which approximately 50% of 

care users fund their own care, this will be a potentially huge increase in budgetary 

pressure.

This may also change the perception of adult social care to a service which is free at 

the point of contact (subject to the care cap). If this is the case, we will need to 

manage people’s expectations, educate people how to make the most of their own 

resources, and retain the focus on prevention and early intervention and keeping 

people at home. 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health

7 September 2021 – Adult Social Care Update
_________________________________________________  

Safeguarding Adults

Annual Report
The GSAB annual report was presented to committee earlier in the meeting.  

Safeguarding Adults Reviews (SAR)
The SAR for “Peter”, a homeless man with complex needs is due to go the September 

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB) for sign off, after which it will be posted 

on the GSAB website.  The alcohol related deaths report is also due to go to GSAB in 

September. The SAR relating to the deaths of five women known to the Nelson Trust Sex 

Workers Outreach Project is still in progress. 

All of these reviews focus on working with people with complex lives with the aim of 

identifying good practice and learning about how to work effectively with this complex group. 

A further Safeguarding Adults Review is being undertaken jointly with the Children’s 

Safeguarding Partnership, concerning JK, a 20-year-old woman who had been in care as a 

child and was known to Mental Health Services throughout her teenage years. She had a 

history of taking drug overdoses, the last of which sadly led to significant brain damage, 

meaning that she will now be dependent on others for all aspects of her care. The purpose 

of the review is to understand JK’s transition from Children to Adults services, to identify 

areas which worked well and where improvements to the system are needed. 

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Roadshows
These took place virtually over the course of one week in April, with a different theme each 

day. The overarching theme was the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) and their 

contributions during the pandemic. The themes covered were: domestic abuse; financial 

abuse; substance misuse; mental health and disability, with three or four speakers each day 

presenting about their organisations. There were breakout sessions each morning where the 

Safeguarding Adults Board’s new strategic plan 2021-24 was discussed, seeking feedback 

on what issues people felt should be included. About 500 people attended over the course of 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



2

the week and the sessions received very positive feedback. The virtual platform worked very 

well, particularly in terms of the numbers who could attend due to not being restricted by the 

size of the venue and also cutting out the need for travel time.  The Roadshows will be 

delivered in this way next year as well, along with a face to face event. 

Local Government Association/Association of Directors of Adult Social 
Services Safeguarding Adults Insight Report
Two reports have been compiled by LGA/ADASS looking into national themes and trends 

regarding safeguarding reporting during the pandemic. Local Authorities reported a steep 

decline in the number of concerns raised at the beginning of lockdown in March 2020, rising 

back to normal levels a month or so later. There were increases in the number of concerns 

reported by the emergency services, friends and families. There was also an increase in the 

number of concerns reported where the person did not have care and support needs, so did 

not meet the criteria for a statutory safeguarding enquiry, but was nevertheless at risk of 

multiple levels of abuse and neglect. Signposting/advice was offered in these cases. 

Safeguarding concerns also increased in complexity, probably due to formal and informal 

sources of support being less available during the lockdowns. These findings are similar to 

the experiences of the GCC safeguarding team in the past 15 months. 

Park Home Project

Why the initiative was instigated?
The CCG are able to analyse health data to help ensure resources reach the most 

vulnerable residents. This data identified that people living in park homes suffer from poorer 

health outcomes than those living in other types of properties. This leads to an increased 

rate of admissions to hospital for park home residents when compared to residents of 

traditional brick-built housing. 

The CCG observed trends in the health outcomes for this group:

 Hospital admission rates for park home residents are higher at most age bands than 
the corresponding Gloucestershire average rates

 This trend remains true for respiratory and particularly circulatory admissions 
 For all age bands above 30, park home residents have more long-term conditions 

than the Gloucestershire average
 Coronary Heart Disease (CHD), Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD), 

and obesity look to be much more prevalent in park homes than in Gloucestershire 
as a whole. The lifestyle factor of smoking also follows this trend

From an energy efficiency perspective, issues with park home properties include:

Page 56



3

 Extremely poor insulation
 EPCs (Energy Performance Certificate) are still not mandatory for park homes which 

means that they fall under the radar in terms of attracting government funding
 The combined issues of fuel poverty and the poor health this leads to presented park 

homes as a unique opportunity to use a collaborative approach between housing and 
health departments. By working together to use health data and a pioneering funding 
model, Warm and Well would be able to address the gap in funding that park home 
residents slip through.

Initial aims and objectives
Aim: To aid those in fuel poverty within the vulnerable park home community. We will do this 

through providing advice and facilitating improvement measures.

Outcomes: Park home occupants will be warmer, have lower fuel bills and a reduced 

likelihood of becoming ill due to damp/cold. Also reduced carbon from lower fuel usage.

How does it work?
The District Council partners each agreed to allocate some of their Disabled Facilities Grant 

budgets towards the funding of improvement measures. Allocated amounts varied according 

to need and availability in each district but in total this funding was sufficient to provide 

assistance to 90 park homes across Gloucestershire.

Severn Wye handled the grants and allocated funding to clients based on risk of fuel poverty 

and vulnerability to a cold home as identified using health data provided by the NHS 

Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group. The installers were then employed to apply 

insulation to the outside of the property, rendered and painted. Render and paint has a 

guarantee for 20 years.

There was a total of 2,224 park homes in the county from district data in 2019. Some of 

these are single homes or very small sites so the health data was drawn from those sites 

with a minimum of 20 homes. 

Cheltenham       381

Cotswold            369 

Forest                 340

Gloucester          280

Stroud                 282

Tewkesbury        572         

Page 57



4

The project initially improved 94 park homes, as follows:

Cheltenham       7

Cotswold            15

Forest                 16

Gloucester          15

Stroud                 19

Tewkesbury         22

A range of data sources were used to identify suitable applicants for the scheme.  We used 

health data to illustrate the overall issues for park home residents. Residents needed to 

meet the criteria for fuel poverty in the Gloucestershire statement of intent or be in receipt of 

eligible benefits. Marketing took place at sites around the county to promote the service but 

the take up varied due to issues of tenure etc.

Improvements Achieved and Challenges Overcome
90 properties across Gloucestershire were improved with park home insulation. The 

insulation applied to the outside of the property, rendered and painted. Render and paint has 

a guarantee for 20 years.  We faced complications with rented properties. Tenants were in 

dire need of the work but didn’t own the properties. Severn Wye and the local council agreed 

a set contribution in discussion with a large landlord to support those who were most in 

need. This meant the resident was not out of pocket, their health has been supported, the 

council and landlord agreed price and local housing which had been of concern was 

improved.

Before and After Insulation

Page 58



5

Feedback from Park Home Residents
86% of clients receiving the work have already noticed they are paying less (the homes have 

been insulated for varying timeframes between 4 weeks to a year). 88% of clients said they 

were warmer in their home post installation. 84% of people said that adaptations to the 

property had a positive impact on their day-to-day life.

Mrs R: “It’s been absolutely amazing. It’s so much warmer that before, I’ve only had to have 

my heating on at 18°C instead of 21°C. Everyone was really good. I could call up Warm and 

Well whenever. They listened; they didn’t talk at you which is really important.” 

“Lifesaver, it’s been an actual lifesaver.” The park home insulation came at just the right time 

for Mr and Mrs P. “Last year we had 53 trips to the hospital with [Mr P’s] heart and cancer. 

Mr P has just had a double heart bypass and before it was always freezing cold in here. He’d 

be sat there with a coat on, not any more though.”

Green Homes Grant Local Area Delivery Scheme (LAD 1a and 1b)
By demonstrating the excellent joint working by councils and use of health data to target 

households the Strategic Housing Partnership was able to apply successfully for two sums 

of £1m from the LAD grant programme. Data so far shows 103 applications under the LAD 

1a scheme in the following areas:

Area Number
Cheltenham 10
Cotswold 8
Forest of Dean 20
Gloucester 32
South Glos 15
Stroud 14
Tewkesbury 4

A further 74 applications have been made under the LAD 1b scheme across the county and 

South Gloucestershire. There are 26 further installs available. By using the EPC before and 

after data we are able to measure the savings to both the NHS and wider society, which 

includes for social care. This data will be updated as work is completed.

The 200 is from the LAD (Local Area Delivery) grant programme. 94 park homes have been 

improved so far with this money, as follows:

Page 59



6

Area              Number

Cheltenham    10

Cotswold     8

Forest of Dean   20

Gloucester     32

South Glos     15

Stroud                 14

Tewkesbury      4

Note this includes South Gloucestershire as they are part of the Warm and Well Programme 

and our LAD bids were via the Warm and Well programme.  

Page 60



7

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Following the revision of the Committee functions, I provide below an update on the work of 

Trading Standards, the Civil Protection Team and Coroners Services. 

 

Trading Standards 
 
The Service has identified, through analysis of demand, quantifying risk and considering 

emerging issues, the following priority areas of work:  

 Protecting vulnerable people from harm  

 Supporting a thriving business environment – Deterring Organised Criminality & 

Assisting Partner Agencies Supporting the rural population  

 Animal Health and Disease Control 

 Protecting isolated businesses from harm 

These priorities will be addressed at subsequent meetings, commencing with protecting 

vulnerable people from harm in relation to scams and doorstep crime issues at the next 

meeting.   

Brief Background 

The current resources, capacity and responsibilities of the Service are as follows: 

 16.49 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff 11.54 are operational across all areas of work 
(1.41 FTE non-operational technical support, 1 FTE apprentice, 1.54 FTE undergoing 
professional development towards operational status and 1 FTE non-operational 
head of Service) 

 Net budget of £871,995 

 Delegated responsibility to enforce Consumer Protection and Animal Welfare 
legislation on behalf of the County Council.  

Title 
Chief Fire Officer Report – Adult and Social Care and Communities 
Scrutiny Committee 

Chief Fire Officer 
Suite of Services 

Trading Standards, Civil Protection and Coroners Services 

Date Tuesday 7th September 2021 

Purpose of Report 
To provide a strategic update on issues and key areas of service 
provision, opportunities and challenges 

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 1 of 19

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

 Primary objective is to work with businesses of all descriptions to achieve 
compliance.  Option to escalate enforcement action including use of statutory 
notices, prosecution and recovery of benefit of crime 

Attached (Appendix 1) is a snapshot of the work of the Service during 2020/21.  This is 

slightly askew as the Service was responsible for enforcing business restrictions imposed by 

regulation in response to the Coronavirus pandemic. 

Animal Health and Welfare across Gloucestershire 

Trading Standards have a responsibility on the standard of animal health and welfare across 

the County. Legislation provides a statutory duty for local authorities to monitor animal 

health and welfare. Within a two-tier authority such as Gloucestershire, this is divided 

between County and District level. In general, the responsibilities are pets and livestock.  

District Councils provide dog wardens, pet sales and breeding licences and licencing of the 

use of live animals at public events.  

The County Council has responsibility for monitoring the health and welfare conditions of 

livestock at all places where farm animals are kept, or whilst they are in transit. The only 

exception being in relation to horses, requiring specialist knowledge, and whereby, the 

Council has an arrangement with the RSPCA to lead on reports relating to horses. 

Typical farm inspections involve: 

 Inspection of animals and the conditions they are kept in including feeding and water 
provisions and storage for animals housed indoors and those out to pasture 

 Examination of buildings and land used to accommodate animals, and to store animal 
feed 

 Animal identification (ear tags)  

 Mortality figures, dead stock disposal and on farm bio-security 

 Ensuring the carcasses of any animals that die on farm are immediately secured from 
predation and promptly consigned for disposal in accordance with the regulations 

 Record keeping including births, deaths, movements, veterinary medicines, pest 
control, pesticide use, feed records, water analysis etc, both on farm and on national 
databases 

 Monitoring the use and recording of veterinary medicines to ensure withdrawal periods 
are recorded and adhered to, that medicines are obtained legally, stored securely and 
used responsibly in order to protect the human food chain 

 Monitoring and checking compliance with disease control measures including the 
animal by-products requirements and the TB requirements, as well as compliance with 
‘standstill’ requirements where no animal can leave a farm for a set period after the 
arrival of new stock to interrupt the spread of disease 

Alongside this, work ensuring animal feed is correctly manufactured, mixed and stored 

provides additional opportunities to monitor the health and welfare of farmed animals, as 

well as protecting the integrity of the human food chain. 

Typical livestock markets and abattoir inspections focus on ensuring animals are fit for sale 

and are fit for transporting. 

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 2 of 19

Page 64



3 
 

Typical vehicle inspections focus on the condition of the vehicle, the fitness to travel of any 

animals aboard the vehicle and thorough cleaning and disinfection between each use. 

This Service works closely with various departments within the Department for 

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) to achieve these objectives. 

Disease control and animal welfare are identified as Service priorities.  This is partly because 

of the contribution livestock farming makes to the local economy (with 3758 premises 

known to us as livestock farms, 5 premises identified as abattoirs/slaughterhouses, 1 

livestock market, 33 animal hauliers), and partly because of the potentially devastating 

effects on the local economy of disease outbreaks like Foot and Mouth Disease in 2001. 

Trading Standards are also responsible for ensuring that the Council has effective disease 

contingency plans in place, and can respond rapidly and efficiently to outbreaks of disease, 

as demonstrated recently during the Avian Influenza outbreak at Slimbridge Wetland 

Centre. Officers were required to visit every property in an identified radius of the outbreak 

to identify all poultry keepers and enforce the emergency restrictions.   

Historic actions have included ‘clearances’ of sheep from the statutory Forest of Dean area 

where wild roaming sheep had sheep scab. All sheep were removed to the keepers and 

simultaneously treated, whilst none were permitted back into the Forest area until they 

were cured. Actions also require keepers to destroy animals infected with bovine 

tuberculosis, ensuring safe and comprehensive disposal of animal carcasses where Anthrax 

is suspected and, of course, acting to contain the spread of food and mouth disease. 

Trading Standards forms part of the framework ensuring the British Isles retain their rabies 

free status.  Inspectors respond to reports of illegally landed or smuggled animals, most 

often pet dogs.  To mitigate the risk of disease, the animals are removed from the owners 

and placed in quarantine kennels. 

In order to achieve all of the above, Animal Health Inspectors are responsible for enforcing a 

wide and complex framework of legislation. 

Over the last year, the proactive inspection work of the Service was significantly curtailed 

due to Coronavirus restrictions.  Inspectors visited farms only where there was concern over 

the welfare of an animal which could not be resolved remotely, or where risk of harm or 

disease spread outweighed risk to staff.  However, subject to risk assessments, the work of 

the Service in this area has now returned to ‘business as usual’. 

In 20/21, of a total of 9539 incidents were reported to Trading Standards by members of the 

public and partner agencies. Some 512 (5.4%) of the reports concerned animal health 

matters, including 202 referrals from DEFRA agencies highlighting anomalies in animal 

movement reporting by farmers.  These are generally low risk and resolved without the 

need for an inspection. 

Of the remaining 310 reports, 254 were allocated to officers for further investigation.  

Officers work with farmers wherever possible offering advice and guidance.  

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 3 of 19

Page 65



4 
 

 

Only when a farmer fails to follow advice and repeatedly falls below expected standards is 

formal action initiated. 

Since April 2018, it has been necessary and proportional to bring seven prosecutions and six 

simple cautions on behalf of the County Council. These relate to seven individuals, the 

majority of who were previously known to the Service, and three of whom are now 

disqualified from keeping at least one species of farm animal. 

In summary, the majority of livestock farmers across the County run well managed farms 

and comply with welfare standards and disease control measures. 

There is no one area of the County significantly worse than any other, although the Forest of 

Dean district does attract specific complaints associated with the historic right of 

‘commoners’ to keep free roaming sheep and the tensions this creates with some local 

residents. 

Trading Standards Performance Indicators 

In 2021/22 the Service has adopted a new set of performance indicators providing improved 

representation of priority areas of work and providing a greater degree of confidence that 

work in key areas is on track. 

The first quarter response is attached (Appendix 2), with most measures are on either track 

or exceeding target values. 

However, the following is specifically noted:  

1. Inspection figures for both animal feed premises and high risk food premises are 
lower than you might expect if split equally across all 4 quarters.   

 The animal feed inspections are scheduled towards later in the year, when 
animals are bought in from pasture to be fed in sheds or barns, as it is not until 
then that many farmers rely on the use of additional feeding stuffs 

 The high risk food premise inspections were not started until business restrictions 
were lifted in July 2021. Given the nature of the premises and the associated risks, 
remote inspections cannot be relied upon to give a true representation of the 
business.  Visits were only commenced once businesses returned to relatively 
normal trading and the impact of regulatory inspection was not magnified by 
other factors. 
 

2. The percentage of work tasked to officers not recorded as delivering a positive 
outcome, effectively not adding value to the work of the Service, is higher than we 
would normally like to see.  Under normal circumstances this would result in scrutiny 
of the work tasked to officers and challenged as to why so much work with 
apparently no benefit was being undertaken.  Figures for Q1 are impacted by Covid 
complaints and referrals.   
 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response to Covid in April 
2021, Trading Standards no longer have an enforcement role.  

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 4 of 19

Page 66



5 
 

However, a number of complaints are still made to this Service by the public and 
partner agencies who do not fully appreciate the separation of responsibilities 
between County and District Council. Such matters are referred to the relevant 
District Council by this Service, without any work taking place. The action cannot be 
recorded as a positive outcome and no value has been added by the intervention of 
the team.   It is anticipated this figure will reduce significantly since the July 19th 
lifting of remaining restrictions. 

 

 

Civil Protection Team (CPT) 
 

Operational Response 

CPT continues to support the response to Covid through attending the C-19 Tactical Response 

Group and the C-19 Risk Management Sub-Group 

The Duty Officer remains on call 24/7 and has assisted with: 

 Industrial fire possible acetylene with potential evacuation of properties  

 x2 Electric sub-station fires residential properties without power 

 RTC – vehicle collision with property – structural engineer support  

Training & Exercises 

In partnership with other LRF member agencies delivered the 1 day JESIP Multi-agency 

Tactical Course  

GCC Emergency Management Framework 

The programme of GCC Emergency Management Framework is continuing, areas progressed 

since June include: 

 Revising the set up of GCC’s welfare team to include support both for ASC & 

Children in an emergency via inclusion of the Emergency Duty Team   

 ‘Role of Elected Members in emergencies’ – awareness session scheduled for Oct 

2021 

 Review of GCC Emergency Control Centre 

 Director on call & guidance for ‘Gold’ and ‘Silver’ meetings being drafted 

District Council Service Level Agreements (SLAs) 

Emergency Management support for five District Councils continues as per the SLA and each 

districts individual work plans.  

CPT have written a new district flood plan template to align to new DEFRA guidance and are 

supporting the districts to complete the plan by the DEFRA deadline of 24th September. 

CPT have also worked with colleagues from Tewkesbury BC, GCC Traveller Liaison officer & 

representatives from the Willows site to write a flood plan for the site.  

 

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 5 of 19

Page 67



6 
 

Local Resilience Forum (LRF) Support 

All local authority risks in the Local Risk Register have been reviewed and scored in 

preparation for a  multi-agency review at monthly LRF meeting. 

A plan template and guidance document have been drafted for the promotion of ‘Community 

Resilience Plans’. These are aligned to the Government Guidance and reflect local 

considerations. The scheme is due to be piloted with a few parish councils following which it 

will be launched to all Parish Councils, discussions are currently in place to potentially host a 

‘Community Resilience’ workshop. 

PREVENT SLA 

CPT continue to provide secretariat support the Gloucestershire Prevent Partnership Board 

(GPPB) and supported the current GPPB governance review via benchmarking with other 

PREVENT boards and submitting findings to the board for information. 

Business Continuity Management  

The programme of Business Continuity Management (BCM) work is continuing.  BCM 

activities from mid-June 2021 have included: 

 12 Business Impact Analysis (BIAs) meetings held with plan owners (plus follow-up 

meetings where required to check/finalise prior to sign off by the appropriate 

Director) 

 Seven completed and signed off BIAs received 

 Eight completed Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) received in the new corporate 

format 

 Quarterly meeting of the BCM Assurance Board held 06/07/2021.  Policy compliance 

statistics (no. of plans up-to-date etc.) provided for each Directorate.  Progress report 

provided outlining concerns that the progress on BIAs and BCPs is no longer on track 

given that the scope of the work is larger than expected (more BIAs and BCPs than 

estimated) and that plan owners are taking considerable time to produce the required 

deliverables 

o 6 weeks average elapsed time to deliver a signed off BIA after the BIA meeting 

o 12 weeks average total elapsed time to deliver a completed BCP in the new 

corporate format 

The BCM Assurance Board has requested that plan owners return signed off BIAs 

within 2 weeks and BCPs within a further 4 weeks (i.e. within 6 weeks total elapsed 

time). 

 Quarterly update submitted for Strategy Risk SR10.4 (Business Continuity) plus 

controls for the risk updated to reflect GCC Business Continuity Policy and minimum 

standards expected of plan owners. 

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 6 of 19

Page 68



7 

Please note: The current 3 year (2021 – 2024) Service level agreements within 
Civil Protection Team (Districts & Prevent) bring an annual income of £93k 

Coroners Services 

The function of the Coroner revolves around the safe receipt of the deceased and the 

investigation (and if appropriate inquest) into their death.  

The principle objective for the Coroner Team this year is to assist the Senior Coroner in 

addressing the backlog of cases that has resulted in court restrictions due to Covid. The 

Senior Coroner is currently assessing those cases that can be scheduled for hearing, and the 

Court has remained open during the summer months to ensure inquests can continue to be 

heard and the backlog reduced. 

An additional objective, and principle risk to the Service, will be to address the lack of 

pathologists available to conduct coronial autopsies. The service has a KPI of ‘7 days 

between referral and autopsy’.  However, this was stood down during Covid for safety 

reasons whilst the team were waiting for the results of swab results. The time is now right 

for this to be re-introduced and the Senior Coroner and Centre Manager are currently in 

consultation with two independent pathologists in an attempt to secure their services and 

help reduce this risk. The mortuary team have also recently undertaken some weekend 

working to ensure autopsies are conducted in a timely manner. 

Coroners Performance Indicators 

The first quarter response is attached (Appendix 3). 

38%

48%

11%
2%

BIAs up-to-date 8%

81%

9%
2%BCPs up-to-date

BIA’s up to date 

BIA’s requiring review 

No BIA 

Awaiting Information 

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 7 of 19

Page 69



REGION (select from drop-down)

AUTHORITY NAME (free text)

TYPE OF AUTHORITY (select from 

drop-down)      Note: 

Shared Service is where one service IMPORTANT - Please complete to

view rest of form   

I AGREE TO SHARE MY 

AUTHORITY'S DATA WITHIN MY 

Questions complete:

53 of 53

1.1

1.1.1 Revenue Budget £850,996.00 P 1.1.1
Where there is no separate budget, use the approach taken for generating the DCLG’s Revenue Outturn return if necessary. You may need to obtain this information from your LA Accountancy 

Team.

1.2

1.2.1 Income from metrology activities £859.00 P 1.2.1 Include all testing, verification and ‘stamping’ activities, but exclude information and advice, which will be included under the business support sections.

1.2.2 Income from Petroleum Licensing, Explosives/ Fireworks licensing. £21,721.00 P

1.2.3 Income from Businesses (e.g. Home and Primary Authority, advice, training) £2,320.00 P 1.2.3 Includes income that may arise from initial setting up of agreements, ongoing advice and information and other support arising from the agreement.

1.2.4
Income from National Trading Standards grants (For details of what is included, 

please refer to guidance)
£23,522.00 P 1.2.4

Includes NTS income (including any hosting and management charges) where work is embedded in the local authority e.g. animal feed and any other funding from National Trading Standards 

direct to the LA for us within the service. This does not include grant money for wholly separate NTS Teams (Estate Agency, Lettings Agency, RITs, Intelligence Teams, Regional Coordinators, 

Scams, E crime etc). 

1.2.5
Income from other sources not included above.   
NOTE: Where total income is known, but not broken down - please include value here which 

provide the correct total in the box below (1.2.6).

£4,253.00 P

1.2.6 Total Income (excluding court costs & POCA) £52,675.00

1.2.7 Income as a percentage of revenue budget 6%

1.3 1.3. Vacant but funded posts should be included (i.e. not those that are held vacant but have no funding to pay for them).

1.3.1 Total number of staff within the TS service (FTE) 16.49 P 1.3.1
Include all management, operational and support staff funded from the Trading Standards budget. If some staff are shared across more than one service, include only the proportion (as FTE) that 

is spent on Trading Standards activities.

1.3.2 Total number of operational staff (FTE) 15.08 P 1.3.2

Operational staff would be those staff interacting directly with consumers and businesses in order to carry out the service’s core activities, which may be either enforcement or advice. It could 

involve advice staff, for example, who may not carry a warrant and do not get directly involved in enforcement action, but will advise businesses on specific areas of legislation for which the 

service is responsible. Activities such as sending out advice leaflets following a request from a business would not be included in the above definition. Full-time Intelligence officers would be 

counted as support staff. Include managers in this category where they are responsible for Trading Standards activities. If a manager is also responsible for non-Trading Standards functions, only 

include that proportion of the manager’s time which is devoted to Trading Standards work. Do not try to separate out time spent by operational staff on activities such as meetings with partners 

e.g. Police, Social Services, time spent on service planning or planning operations etc. as this would be regarded as Trading Standards work.

1.4

1.4.1 Number of Citizens Advice Consumer Service Notifications and Referrals 7708 P 1.4.1
Although a number of these will be duplicate records or where consumers have contacted Citizens Advice Consumer Service for follow up advice, this measure will be a simple count of each that 

have been received during the financial year.

1.4.2
Number of referrals from other local authority services, police and other service 

partners
1830 P

2.1 Outcomes of investigations and prosecutions

2.1.1 Number of defendants convicted 13 P 2.1.1
This measure relates to the number of defendants convicted, NOT the number of prosecutions/informations/cases etc. ‘defendant’ includes individuals, company directors, or companies 

convicted.  E.g. a company and its two directors prosecuted would total three, irrelevant of how many charges. 

2.1.2 Number of offenders to whom simple cautions issued 3 P 2.1.2 As above, the number of cautions relates to the number of defendants, not the number of offences. A caution must be accepted by the defendant to be recorded here.

2.1.3
Total number of months imprisonment - immediate and suspended sentences 

combined.
3.00 P 2.1.3 This figure is the total number of months of imprisonment arising from all prosecutions completed during the year which concluded with a prison sentence (immediate or suspended).

2.1.4 Fines awarded (£) £3,333.00 P 2.1.4
This figure is the total fines imposed from all prosecutions completed during the year which concluded with a fine, whether or not they have been paid by the end of the relevant financial year. It 

excludes costs, as these are in the line below but will include the victim surcharge award.

2.1.5 Costs awarded from court cases (£) £7,457.00 P 2.1.5 This figure is the total costs awarded from all prosecutions or civil cases (e.g. Enterprise Act) completed during the year, whether or not they have been paid at the time of completing the return.

2.1.6 Total number of Fixed Penalty Notices 0 P 2.1.6 Provide the total number of fixed penalty notices issued for Trading Standards matters, such as letting agents, energy performance certificates etc. during the relevant financial year.

2.1.7 Total value of Fixed Penalty Notices (£) £0.00 P 2.1.7 Total value relating to the above notices issued, whether or not the full amount has been collected by the end of the relevant financial year.

2.1.8 Community Punishment Orders (hours) 180.00 P 2.1.8 This figure is the total number of hours of community service from all prosecutions completed during the year where a community service order was imposed.

2.1.9 Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) benefit ordered to be paid in that year (£) £114,003.84 P 2.1.9 This should include the total POCA sum ordered to be paid at hearings during the year, regardless of whether it has been collected in at the time of completing the return.

2.1.10 Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) benefit paid in that year (£) £22,738.25 P 2.1.10 This should include the total POCA sum collected during the year, regardless of when the order was made for POCA benefit.

2.2 Enterprise Act Undertakings

2.2.1 Total number of Undertakings given 0 P 2.2.1
Provide the total number of Undertakings given during the year, whether given voluntarily or following court proceedings. This figure should include Undertakings given by individuals, company 

directors who provide an Undertaking themselves as officers of the company and any Undertakings given by the company itself.

2.2.2 Percentage of Undertakings breached 0% P 2.2.2
This figure should be based on the number of breaches that occurred during the year for Undertakings given in this or previous years. It is recognised that for some years there may be more 

breaches than Undertakings.

2.3

2.3.1 Compensation (£) from court (including POCA compensation) £3,686.00 P 2.3.1
This figure should include all compensation, including POCA orders, ordered by courts for cases completed during the year. It is not necessary to determine whether the compensation has 

actually been paid by the defendant.

2.3.2
(£) not handed over to criminals (e.g. rapid response outcomes - excludes Scam 

Victims)
£22,400.00 P 2.3.2

This measure is to identify the benefits to consumers arising through preventive actions, such as a rapid response to a door step crime incident or any other criminal behaviour where it has been 

possible to demonstrate that, but for the service’s intervention, a consumer/victim would have handed over money or other items of quantifiable value. This amount is for everything but that from 

Scam Victims as the detriment from scam victims is calculated separately. The intention is to determine savings accruing to consumers from preventing criminal activity having a direct impact. It is 

not intended to include a valuation of corrective action taken by a legitimate business, for example to improve allergen labelling or improvements in price indications.

2.3.3 (£) achieved through other processes £0.00 P 2.3.3 Include here any redress obtained through processes other than compensation awarded and counted in 2.3.1 and 2.3.2 

OBJECTIVE 1: TACKLING DETRIMENT AND PREVENTING HARM

Redress obtained for consumers or victims of crime by service actions

Externally generated income as a proportion of revenue budget

Operational Trading Standards staff numbers

Service Requests and referrals received

NOTE: Population and business numbers for your authority will be sourced from ONS

PLEASE ENSURE THE INFORMATION IN THIS BOX IS COMPLETE BEFORE SUBMITTING YOUR DATA FORM

Gloucestershire

County Council

PART 2: OUTPUT AND OUTCOME MEASURES

Redress

Stopping Fraudulent, Illegal and Unfair Trading

Yes

TSSW

It is recognised that not all of the questions are relevant to every service (e.g. some 

may not do food or animal health - in these cases leave blank). Please do however 

fill in as much as possible. The 'Questions complete' count is for information only. 

Guidance Notes - scroll across to Column G to view.

*For data sharing purposes by selecting the 'Yes' drop-down option you

are agreeing to your information being shared within your region.

Budget

PART 1: INPUTS AND DEMAND FACTORS

Appendix 1

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 8 of 19

Page 70



2.4

2.4.1 Total number of Scam victims who are subject to interventions by your authority 57 P 2.4.1

Only count each victim once, even for multiple interventions. Countable interventions can be made to the potential victim by telephone, face to face contact or in writing (including by email). If a 

significant number of victims require multiple interventions this is a good point to make in the narrative section of the return (N1, below). Note the total national savings will be taken from NTS 

figures using the agreed optimity savings calculator.

2.4.2 Amount of money saved for scam victims (£) £115,040.00 P 2.4.2 This is the total amount saved or recovered for scam victims through service intervention during the relevant financial year. Figures may come from the Scams Optimity Calculator.

2.5 Number of businesses receiving advice

2.5.1
Number of direct responses to requests for advice by non-Primary 

Authority/Home Authority businesses
263 P 2.5.1

Record the total number of requests for advice/information from non-PA/HA businesses which actually received a response during the year where they have made the approach for advice to you. 

There may be situations where a service may inform a business that there is a charge for advice and the business decides not to go ahead – this should still be included as the service has 

responded to the request.

It would not include situations where an officer gives advice during a visit etc. having found something to be incorrect. It could, however, have been triggered by an earlier intervention from your 

own or other service that results in a subsequent request for advice.

2.5.2 Number of formal Home/Primary Authority relationships 12 P 2.5.2
Only include businesses where you have a formal relationship as either a Primary or Home Authority. Do not include businesses which trade beyond your local authority boundaries if there is no 

formal agreement for you to act as their Primary/Home Authority.

2.5.3 Number of hours spent servicing formal Home/Primary Authority activity 26.00 P 2.3.3
Any time spent relating to the Home/Primary Authority relationship during the year should be included, including time spent agreeing the terms of the relationship, in addition to recording/following 

up complaints and enquiries, providing advice or attending meetings etc.

2.6 2.6

**This EXCLUDES any activities relating to the coronavirus regulations (e.g. business closures); these will be captured elsewhere**     The focus is on identifying non-compliant businesses and 

bringing them into compliance. This section would include programmed inspection work or similar activities e.g. projects where inspections are used to test intelligence gaps. There is a degree of 

subjectivity in determining whether a business is compliant or satisfactory, but most officers will be able to recognise the three categories identified. It will help to show that the majority of 

businesses do perform well, but also highlight that significant numbers don’t get everything right and that some need further intervention to ensure they understand. If visited during February or 

March, ‘satisfactory’ means brought into compliance within 30 days of the end of the financial year. 

2.6.1
Number of visits where business found to be satisfactory, i.e. Were FULLY 

COMPLIANT and needed no advice
84 P

2.6.2

Number of visits where there were MINOR NON-COMPLIANCES, i.e. only 

those easily corrected at the time of visit and NOT subject to further 

investigation.

80 P

2.6.3
Number of visits where there were MORE SERIOUS NON-COMPLIANCES 

identified, i.e. Subject to a further investigation after the visit
28 P

2.6.4
Number of unsatisfactory businesses in 2.6.3 subsequently brought into 

compliance.
4 P

2.6.5
Percentage of businesses that were either compliant when visited or brought 

into compliance during the period
88%

2.7

2.7.1 Do you support an assured trader scheme Yes P 2.7.1
Do you run your own trader approval scheme or are you involved in some way with accrediting businesses as part of a wider arrangement? The latter could be participating in Buy with 

Confidence or a similar multi-authority scheme or being involved with a commercial accreditation business like Checkatrade. If the answer to any of these is yes you can tick this box.

2.7.2
How many businesses in your local authority are members - leave blank if not 

applicable
12 P 2.7.2

For numbers of businesses it is the number of members on your scheme currently. If you participate in a different arrangement it is the number of businesses that you have been asked to accredit 

in some way that are members of the scheme. Do remember to take off anyone you have had to remove for poor conduct from your number of approved businesses

2.8

2.8.1

Number (or estimate of number) of individual products removed from or 

prevented from entering the supply chain. Excluding Tobacco (see section 

2.12).

0 P 2.8.1 Include all products in this area, EXCEPT COUNTERFEIT TOBACCO WHICH IS CALCULATED SEPARATELY). 

2.8.2
Value of other products above (£) - Please use 'reasonable street value' - NOT 

value of real product.
£0.00 P

2.9

2.9.1
Number of items/products removed from or prevented from entering the supply 

chain (if not recorded please leave blank)
6193 P 2.9.1

This would include products deemed unsafe due to failures in their documentary checks in addition to products that have failed on testing. This relates to individual items found to be non-

compliant, not the number of failures relating to a particular product. If a hover board, for example, is sold with a charger in the same package sold together and both items were defective, then 

this would count as one item. If they were being sold separately, then they would count as two items. If there are 10,000 phone chargers in a failed consignment, then this counts as 10,000 items. 

If not recorded please leave blank.

2.9.2
Value of products above (£) - auto calculated using per item value based on 

Matrix report 2014 with inflationary increases based on retail price index.  
£206,226.90 2.9.2

The value will be auto-calculated using a per item price (£33.30) based on Matrix report (2014) with inflationary increases based on retail price index*.   

*For 20-21, +0.7% applied to 19-20 figure (£33.07).

2.10

2.10.1

Number of businesses identified as supplying: misdescribed food, or not 

correctly declaring allergens, or selling food containing toxic or illegal 

components, or involved in fraud involving food

20 P 2.10.1
Each ‘offending’ business is only included once, regardless of whether the breach is for one or a number of reasons. We are looking at the number of premises with issues rather than number of 

breaches, which is likely to be reflected in levels of fines or similar. Please consider all types of breach (i.e. including a technical breach). 

2.10.2 Number of businesses found in breach of animal health and welfare legislation 143 P 2.10.2

Each ‘offending’ business is only included once, regardless of whether the breach is for one or a number of reasons. We are looking at the number of premises with issues rather than number of 

breaches, which is likely to be reflected in levels of fines or similar. Please consider all types of breach (i.e. including a technical breach). Breach of Animal health and Welfare legislation includes 

breaches of all relevant legislative provisions indicated below:

• Legislation covering movement controls and Identification requirements for all livestock species,

• Legislation covering welfare in transport, at markets and other animal gatherings,

• TB Order and similar orders made under the Animal Health Act 1981 to control notifiable diseases,

• Breaches of import controls imposed by legislation such as the Rabies Order under the Animal Health Act 1981,

• Breaches of animal by-products provisions that relate to failure to dispose or incorrect disposal of carcases and similar farm based issues,

• Offences under the Animal Welfare Act 2006 that relate to livestock (NB: this does not include breaches of the licensing regime made under the Act covering dog boarding, breeding and similar 

activities undertaken in unitary and district councils,)

• Breaches of Horse Passports legislation

2.11

2.11.1 Number of individual premises tested for Alcohol 0 P 2.11.1
Only include data for premises for which test purchases have been attempted. On-line purchases are included. Include tests which utilise “over 18s” to test the application of challenge protocols 

as these are mandatory for premises selling alcohol and a more common approach in many areas now than the use of minors.

Failure rate (%) 0% P

2.11.2 Number of individual premises tested for Tobacco 0 P 2.11.2 As above, only include data for premises for which test purchases have been attempted. Include tests which utilise “over 18s” to test the application of challenge protocols.

Failure rate (%) 0% P

2.11.3 Number of individual premises tested for Other Products 0 P 2.11.3 As above

Failure rate (%) 0% P

2.12

Number of businesses found non-compliant when visited subsequently brought into compliance during the 

financial year (**EXCLUDES coronavirus regulations - see guidance"")

Support for legitimate businesses by removing counterfeit goods from the market

Creating and Maintaining a Level Playing Field/Safe and Fair Competition

OBJECTIVE 2: SUPPORTING THE LOCAL ECONOMY

Unsafe or non-compliant goods prevented from entering or removed from marketplace

Protecting The Food Chain "Farm to Fork"

Reducing The Risk Of Children Accessing Age Restricted Products

Businesses tested for compliance with the law using underage volunteers OR compliance with mandatory 

Challenge 21/25 conditions

Tackling the availability of illicit tobacco

Reducing The Availability Of Illicit Products

Number of scam victims supported

Supporting Scam Victims

OBJECTIVE 3: PROMOTING HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Businesses involved in breaches of food standards and animal health and welfare legislation

Businesses Get the Help and Support They Need to Thrive and Grow

Ensuring The Safety Of Consumer Products

Support for legitimate businesses by trader approval schemes

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 9 of 19

Page 71



2.12.1 Number of premises from which products were seized 3 P

2.12.2 Number of individual cigarettes seized (not packs) 37140 P 2.12.2 Includes counterfeit and non-duty paid tobacco. Include each premises only once. E-Cigs safety is caught in the product safety section above.

Estimated value (£) - auto calculated £8,356.50 The estimated value is calculated using a price of 22.5p per cigarette based on figures provided by HMRC in 2020.

2.12.3 Weight in grams of Hand Rolling Tobacco seized (g) 10550.00 g P

Estimated value (£) - auto calculated £1,933.82 2.12.3 The estimated value is calculated using a price of 18.33p per gram based on figures provided by HMRC in 2020.

2.12.4 Number of individual niche tobacco products seized; and 0 P

value (£) £0.00 P

2.13

2.13.1

Detriment (£) over the following 12 months prevented by service actions   
Note: Estimate all other detriment not already accounted for above (SEE GUIDANCE BOX). 

Actso will calculate a combined 'total' detriment value.     

*** We are aware some find it uncomfortable to make these estimates but they are probably the 

most important figure in this return***

£3,686.00 P 2.13.1

Detriment figures are crucial to showing the collective impact of TS work. It is important that you ESTIMATE as best you can a detriment figure for all detriment that is not already included in boxes 

2.8 (counterfeit goods), 2.9 (unsafe/non-compliant goods) and 2.12 (tobacco).

However there can be no standard formula for this. We ask for a reasonable estimate. We are aware some find it uncomfortable to make these estimates but they are probably the most important 

figure in this return.

Depending on the nature of a case you may be able to use 

• general criminal benefit figure assessed by a Court

• Enterprise Act information actions to return money to consumers 

• value of other illicit goods 

This indicator is based on the assumption that the detriment to consumers from a business/trader over a 12-month period prior to Trading Standards intervention would have continued over the

following 12 months, but for the service’s intervention.

1642

1090

1948

•Unsafe generic USB phone chargers removed from market, failed on electric strength and provision of information. Potential 

consequence is house fire; phones are often left on charge unattended overnight

•Unsafe childs 'dress up' wig removed from market, failed flammability test.  Potential injuries to child if caught by naked flame (likelihood

increased as product was purchased just before Halloween)

•Considerable reduction in amount of scam mail received by one man.  Before intervention he was receiving and responding to over 25

items of scam mail a week, after the amount received is reduced by approx 2/3.  His previous level of engagement with scam mail was 

leading to early stages neglect in other areas of his life.  After intervention he responds to fewer letters and is better able to look after 

himself

•One man repeatedly low value scammed, TS were contacted by his son who was concerned about his father's capacity to look after 

himself.  TS worked with the man who took our information on board and was able to demonstrate to his son he is capable of living 

independently.  He now has more confidence managing scam mail and is still living in his own home	

•Significant failure rate in survey to measure declaration of additives when advertising and supplying fast food, failure rates warrant 

repeat exercise in 21/22.  One business was prosecuted for supplying a lamb doner kebeb containing milk protein despite the purchaser 

clearly identifying a milk allergy. Further investigation revealed the presence of non declared meat species, the absence of declared 

meat species and falsification of the food hygiene rating score.   The potential consequence of not declaring specified additives in food 

can range from a mild reaction to a life threatening one in a consumer with allergies.  The need to declare allergens is even greater 

where they are present as part of the production process rather than as an obvious ingredient.

	

N3 - OUTPUT & OUTCOME MEASURES - Promoting health and wellbeing

In this section, managers should consider including the info below. This is not exhaustive: 

• Evidence of increased wellbeing from Trading Standards work

• Potential impact of products which failed tests/were removed from market

• Value and impact of partnership working e.g. public health, Community Alcohol Partnerships

• Case studies

• Identifying “other” products so trends can be captured e.g. growing work on knives, etc.

•Arrangement with local Growth Hub for notification of start-ups or enquiries from businesses new to their service.  TS proactively follow 

these leads, introducing ourselves to the business, promoting the fact we offer business support and advice.  Fostering a positive 

relationship with new businesses rather than only being seen as an enforcer.

• Advice was provided to a local wedding venue business regarding their obligations to customers following Coronavirus related 

business closures "Dear Ms. XXXXXX,

That is a clearer and more concise answer than we were able to obtain from our solicitors at enormous, abortive cost over the first weeks

of this crisis. I am extremely grateful as well as being quite amazed at the quality of this public service.

Thank you very much indeed, XXXX XXXX ".  That business is now in a Primary Authority Partnership.

• Advice was provided to a new pet food manufacturing business "Hi XXXX, I really appreciate the in depth information that you have

shared with me here. It is really useful. I have attached the relevant application. Best wishes XXXXXX

NARRATIVE FEEDBACK

N1 - OUTPUT & OUTCOME MEASURES - Tackling detriment and preventing harm

In this section, managers should consider including the info below. This is not exhaustive: 

• Case studies that highlight the non-financial/unquantifiable detriment across all cases and impact of trading standards intervention on

victims

• Working relationship with police and other enforcers

• Proportion of referrals for intelligence only, proportion on which further action is taken

• % of investigations and case work successfully concluded

• Number of referrals to Adult Social Care and the proportion where additional safeguarding measures were put in place

• Proportion of investigations which met the threshold of seriousness

• Preventative work such as No Cold Calling Zones and Friends against Scams

•19 call blocker devices were in use during 20/21, either installed during the year or in place as part of an extended loan to particularly 

vulnerable adults.  6747 calls were monitored by the devices, 3846 (57%) were blocked as known or suspected malicious.  Within this 

91.4% of the calls made to one lady (1031 from a total of 1128) were blocked illustrating the volume of calls suspicious or malicious calls 

she would otherwise have had to manage on her own.

• The Coronavirus pandemic brought a closer working relationship between County and District Councils, previous contacts made over 

food enforcement were enhanced.  Getting to know senior District Environmental Health Officers on a personal level will have lasting 

benefits

• One of my team is also a member of the Special Constabulary - this has many significant benefits, access to Police complaints data to

identify matters which might otherwise be written off as a civil dispute; someone from TS who is respected by the Police to advise them 

on who is best placed to investigate Police or TS;  facilitated access to operational support from the Police for surveillance operations 

and entry warrant execution.

• Business closure orders for antisocial behaviour are not available to County Councils, yet the arey a very effective mechanism for 

disrupting the sale of illegal tobacco products.  Havnig a member of my team who can also represent the Police, we have been able to 

successfully engage with the Police and a number of shops have been temporarily closed by the Police using TS evidence, an outcome

which would not have occurred without this close working relationship.

In this section, managers should consider including the info below. This is not exhaustive:   

• Description of how new businesses are supported and the value/ impact of partnerships with business or business bodies e.g. BBfA,

Links to LEP, Chamber of Commerce, Local FSB reps, etc.  

• Case studies with quotes from businesses on the value of trading standards support & the savings or investment benefits for 

businesses achieved through trading standards advice/intervention  

• Where non-business customer satisfaction is surveyed, include results 

• Engagement with Business or business organisations 

• How you use information from businesses to shape what you deliver

N2 - OUTPUT & OUTCOME MEASURES - Supporting the local economy

Detriment

The boxes below provide an opportunity to give narrative feedback. These boxes are for case studies that relate to the three main objectives 

in Part 2 of this TSI&O form.  All three case studies are very important to the report.

In sections N1-3 there is a limit of 2000 characters (including spaces), this is approximately 350 words. We recognise that this is limited, 

however it reflects the word count for case studies used in the final report. By seeking studies that are essentially ‘ready to publish’ now, we 

will reduce the need for extra editorial input by authorities later in the process.

For all three boxes, if you receive an Error Message - select the 'retry' option and amend the text (in the formula bar above) to fewer 

characters. To assist, a character counter is included for each box.

Detriment to consumers prevented by service actions

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 10 of 19

Page 72



Trading Standards  Service Plan

Trading Standards  Reporting Indicators

Bigger is Better Quarterly 105.96 101.75 101.75 101.75 100.66 100.00
% of doorstep crime or scam reports against vulnerable people responded to in
1 working day. Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 96.0% 95.0%

% of doorstep crime and scam interventions where the individual is left better
equipped to withstand scam attempts Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 76.0% 75.0%

This is a new measure so early targets are set to be achievable
and will be revised throughout the year. 
The figures have to take into account that some people who
respond to scams do so for complex reasons and may chose to
continue even after my team have worked with them to explain
why we recommend they change their behaviour.  This reflects
the position that everyone has the right to make a 'poor'
decision so long as they are doing so from a position of
knowledge and capacity to do so. 
There will also be a number of people who respond to scams
and who cannot change their behaviour, perhaps due to capacity
to make wise decisions in that particular area of their life.  In
such cases we will examine and refine our actions to see how we
can learn to make our interventions more effective and how we
can work with health and social care colleagues to identify and
support those most at risk.
Targets for Q3 and Q4 are higher than for Q1 to reflect the aim
to become more effective.

% product safety complaints assessed for further action within 1 working day Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of high risk food premise inspections completed Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 0.0% 0.0%

The Food Standards Agency recovery plan for post Covid
inspections requires 100% of backlog to be completed by June
2022, this set of target indicators will achieve that.  Work is
loaded to later in the year to allow food officers to properly plan
inspections taking into account prolonged changes to the way
they carry out physical inspections post Covid and also to allow
for most of the inspections, especially those of the highest risk,
to be carried out after the scheduled implementation of
significant new legislation  The Food Information (Amendment)
( England) Regulations 2019  in October 2021.

% of reports concerning supply of food containing a known allergen when
consumer has identified allergy responded to in 1 working day. Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

There were no consumer complaints relating to allergens in food
in this period 

% of animal feed inspections completed Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 5.0% 5.0%
% of immediate disease risk reports responded to within 1 working day Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of complaints/enquiries allocated which have a positive outcome Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid complaints and
referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response
to Covid in April 2021, Trading Standards no longer have an
enforcement role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies who do not fully
appreciate the separation of responsibilities between County
and District Council.  These matters are referred onwards to the
relevant District Council by this Service without any work taking
place, this action cannot be recorded as a positive outcome ad
no value has been added by the intervention of my team

Number of Feed qualified officers who meet statutory competency requirements Plan is Best Quarterly ? 4 4 4 4 4
Number of Food qualified officers who meet statutory competency requirements Plan is Best Quarterly ? 3 3 3 3 3

Achieved positive outcome with respect to activities (%) (cumulative) Bigger is Better Quarterly 96.0% ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid complaints and
referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response
to Covid in April 2021, Trading Standards no longer have an
enforcement role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies who do not fully
appreciate the separation of responsibilities between County
and District Council.  These matters are referred onwards to the
relevant District Council by this Service without any work taking
place, this action cannot be recorded as a positive outcome ad
no value has been added by the intervention of my team

Respond to request for trade advice within 5 working days (%) (quarterly,
cumulative) Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Target Qtr

Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

Trading Standards  Good Management Indicators

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 1.02 0.00 0.00 0.00
% Staff Appraisals complete (and entered on SAP) Bigger is Better Quarterly 0% 0% 0% 0% ?
Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a % of all Sstaff) Smaller is Better Quarterly 12.50% 0.00% 11.76% 0.00% 0.00%
Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg days per FTE )  Long Term Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sickness/Absence Levels (avg days per FTE) Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.07 1.02 0.62 0.12 0.07

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

1

Appendix 2

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 11 of 19

P
age 73



Trading Standards  Service Plan

Trading Standards  Reporting Indicators

Bigger is Better Quarterly 105.96 101.75 101.75 101.75 100.66 100.00
% of doorstep crime or scam reports against vulnerable people responded to in
1 working day. Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 96.0% 95.0%

% of doorstep crime and scam interventions where the individual is left better
equipped to withstand scam attempts Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 76.0% 75.0%

This is a new measure so early targets are set to be achievable
and will be revised throughout the year. 
The figures have to take into account that some people who
respond to scams do so for complex reasons and may chose to
continue even after my team have worked with them to explain
why we recommend they change their behaviour.  This reflects
the position that everyone has the right to make a 'poor'
decision so long as they are doing so from a position of
knowledge and capacity to do so. 
There will also be a number of people who respond to scams
and who cannot change their behaviour, perhaps due to capacity
to make wise decisions in that particular area of their life.  In
such cases we will examine and refine our actions to see how we
can learn to make our interventions more effective and how we
can work with health and social care colleagues to identify and
support those most at risk.
Targets for Q3 and Q4 are higher than for Q1 to reflect the aim
to become more effective.

% product safety complaints assessed for further action within 1 working day Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of high risk food premise inspections completed Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 0.0% 0.0%

The Food Standards Agency recovery plan for post Covid
inspections requires 100% of backlog to be completed by June
2022, this set of target indicators will achieve that.  Work is
loaded to later in the year to allow food officers to properly plan
inspections taking into account prolonged changes to the way
they carry out physical inspections post Covid and also to allow
for most of the inspections, especially those of the highest risk,
to be carried out after the scheduled implementation of
significant new legislation  The Food Information (Amendment)
( England) Regulations 2019  in October 2021.

% of reports concerning supply of food containing a known allergen when
consumer has identified allergy responded to in 1 working day. Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

There were no consumer complaints relating to allergens in food
in this period 

% of animal feed inspections completed Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 5.0% 5.0%
% of immediate disease risk reports responded to within 1 working day Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of complaints/enquiries allocated which have a positive outcome Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid complaints and
referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response
to Covid in April 2021, Trading Standards no longer have an
enforcement role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies who do not fully
appreciate the separation of responsibilities between County
and District Council.  These matters are referred onwards to the
relevant District Council by this Service without any work taking
place, this action cannot be recorded as a positive outcome ad
no value has been added by the intervention of my team

Number of Feed qualified officers who meet statutory competency requirements Plan is Best Quarterly ? 4 4 4 4 4
Number of Food qualified officers who meet statutory competency requirements Plan is Best Quarterly ? 3 3 3 3 3

Achieved positive outcome with respect to activities (%) (cumulative) Bigger is Better Quarterly 96.0% ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid complaints and
referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response
to Covid in April 2021, Trading Standards no longer have an
enforcement role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies who do not fully
appreciate the separation of responsibilities between County
and District Council.  These matters are referred onwards to the
relevant District Council by this Service without any work taking
place, this action cannot be recorded as a positive outcome ad
no value has been added by the intervention of my team

Respond to request for trade advice within 5 working days (%) (quarterly,
cumulative) Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Target Qtr

Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

Trading Standards  Good Management Indicators

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 1.02 0.00 0.00 0.00
% Staff Appraisals complete (and entered on SAP) Bigger is Better Quarterly 0% 0% 0% 0% ?
Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a % of all Sstaff) Smaller is Better Quarterly 12.50% 0.00% 11.76% 0.00% 0.00%
Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg days per FTE )  Long Term Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sickness/Absence Levels (avg days per FTE) Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.07 1.02 0.62 0.12 0.07

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

2
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 12 of 19

P
age 74

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col11')


Trading Standards  Service Plan

Trading Standards  Reporting Indicators

Bigger is Better Quarterly 105.96 101.75 101.75 101.75 100.66 100.00
% of doorstep crime or scam reports against vulnerable people responded to in
1 working day. Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 96.0% 95.0%

% of doorstep crime and scam interventions where the individual is left better
equipped to withstand scam attempts Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 76.0% 75.0%

This is a new measure so early targets are set to be achievable
and will be revised throughout the year. 
The figures have to take into account that some people who
respond to scams do so for complex reasons and may chose to
continue even after my team have worked with them to explain
why we recommend they change their behaviour.  This reflects
the position that everyone has the right to make a 'poor'
decision so long as they are doing so from a position of
knowledge and capacity to do so. 
There will also be a number of people who respond to scams
and who cannot change their behaviour, perhaps due to capacity
to make wise decisions in that particular area of their life.  In
such cases we will examine and refine our actions to see how we
can learn to make our interventions more effective and how we
can work with health and social care colleagues to identify and
support those most at risk.
Targets for Q3 and Q4 are higher than for Q1 to reflect the aim
to become more effective.

% product safety complaints assessed for further action within 1 working day Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of high risk food premise inspections completed Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 0.0% 0.0%

The Food Standards Agency recovery plan for post Covid
inspections requires 100% of backlog to be completed by June
2022, this set of target indicators will achieve that.  Work is
loaded to later in the year to allow food officers to properly plan
inspections taking into account prolonged changes to the way
they carry out physical inspections post Covid and also to allow
for most of the inspections, especially those of the highest risk,
to be carried out after the scheduled implementation of
significant new legislation  The Food Information (Amendment)
( England) Regulations 2019  in October 2021.

% of reports concerning supply of food containing a known allergen when
consumer has identified allergy responded to in 1 working day. Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

There were no consumer complaints relating to allergens in food
in this period 

% of animal feed inspections completed Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 5.0% 5.0%
% of immediate disease risk reports responded to within 1 working day Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of complaints/enquiries allocated which have a positive outcome Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid complaints and
referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response
to Covid in April 2021, Trading Standards no longer have an
enforcement role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies who do not fully
appreciate the separation of responsibilities between County
and District Council.  These matters are referred onwards to the
relevant District Council by this Service without any work taking
place, this action cannot be recorded as a positive outcome ad
no value has been added by the intervention of my team

Number of Feed qualified officers who meet statutory competency requirements Plan is Best Quarterly ? 4 4 4 4 4
Number of Food qualified officers who meet statutory competency requirements Plan is Best Quarterly ? 3 3 3 3 3

Achieved positive outcome with respect to activities (%) (cumulative) Bigger is Better Quarterly 96.0% ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid complaints and
referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure restrictions in response
to Covid in April 2021, Trading Standards no longer have an
enforcement role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies who do not fully
appreciate the separation of responsibilities between County
and District Council.  These matters are referred onwards to the
relevant District Council by this Service without any work taking
place, this action cannot be recorded as a positive outcome ad
no value has been added by the intervention of my team

Respond to request for trade advice within 5 working days (%) (quarterly,
cumulative) Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Target Qtr

Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

Trading Standards  Good Management Indicators

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 1.02 0.00 0.00 0.00
% Staff Appraisals complete (and entered on SAP) Bigger is Better Quarterly 0% 0% 0% 0% ?
Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a % of all Sstaff) Smaller is Better Quarterly 12.50% 0.00% 11.76% 0.00% 0.00%
Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg days per FTE )  Long Term Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sickness/Absence Levels (avg days per FTE) Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.07 1.02 0.62 0.12 0.07

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance Reporting
Basis Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

3
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 13 of 19

P
age 75

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')


Trading Standards Scorecard

Trading Standards  Reporting Indicators original

% of doorstep crime or scam
reports against vulnerable people
responded to in 1 working day.

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 96.0% 95.0%

% of doorstep crime and scam
interventions where the individual
is left better equipped to
withstand scam attempts

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 76.0% 75.0%

This is a new measure so early targets are set to
be achievable and will be revised throughout the
year. 
The figures have to take into account that some
people who respond to scams do so for complex
reasons and may chose to continue even after my
team have worked with them to explain why we
recommend they change their behaviour.  This
reflects the position that everyone has the right to
make a 'poor' decision so long as they are doing so
from a position of knowledge and capacity to do
so. 
There will also be a number of people who respond
to scams and who cannot change their behaviour,
perhaps due to capacity to make wise decisions in
that particular area of their life.  In such cases we
will examine and refine our actions to see how we
can learn to make our interventions more effective
and how we can work with health and social care
colleagues to identify and support those most at
risk.
Targets for Q3 and Q4 are higher than for Q1 to
reflect the aim to become more effective.

% product safety complaints
assessed for further action within
1 working day

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of high risk food premise
inspections completed

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 0.0% 0.0%

The Food Standards Agency recovery plan for post
Covid inspections requires 100% of backlog to be
completed by June 2022, this set of target
indicators will achieve that.  Work is loaded to later
in the year to allow food officers to properly plan
inspections taking into account prolonged changes
to the way they carry out physical inspections post
Covid and also to allow for most of the inspections,
especially those of the highest risk, to be carried
out after the scheduled implementation of
significant new legislation  The Food Information
(Amendment) ( England) Regulations 2019  in
October 2021.

% of reports concerning supply of
food containing a known allergen
when consumer has identified
allergy responded to in 1 working
day.

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%
There were no consumer complaints relating to
allergens in food in this period 

% of animal feed inspections
completed

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 5.0% 5.0%

% of immediate disease risk
reports responded to within 1
working day

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of complaints/enquiries
allocated which have a positive
outcome

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid
complaints and referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure
restrictions in response to Covid in April 2021,
Trading Standards no longer have an enforcement
role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies
who do not fully appreciate the separation of
responsibilities between County and District
Council.  These matters are referred onwards to
the relevant District Council by this Service
without any work taking place, this action cannot
be recorded as a positive outcome ad no value has
been added by the intervention of my team

Number of Feed qualified officers
who meet statutory competency
requirements

Plan is Best Quarterly ? 4 4 4 4 4

Number of Food qualified officers
who meet statutory competency
requirements

Plan is Best Quarterly ? 3 3 3 3 3

Achieved positive outcome with
respect to activities (%)
(cumulative)

Bigger is Better Quarterly 96.0% ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid
complaints and referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure
restrictions in response to Covid in April 2021,
Trading Standards no longer have an enforcement
role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies
who do not fully appreciate the separation of
responsibilities between County and District
Council.  These matters are referred onwards to
the relevant District Council by this Service
without any work taking place, this action cannot
be recorded as a positive outcome ad no value has
been added by the intervention of my team

Respond to request for trade
advice within 5 working days (%)
(quarterly, cumulative)

Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21
Target Qtr
Jun21

Comment Qtr Jun21

Trading Standards  Good Management Indicators original

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 1.02 0.00 0.00 0.00
% Staff Appraisals complete (and
entered on SAP)

Bigger is Better Quarterly 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 % ?

Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a
% of all Sstaff)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 12.50% 0.00% 11.76% 0.00% 0.00%

Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg
days per FTE )  Long Term

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sickness/Absence Levels (avg
days per FTE)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.07 1.02 0.62 0.12 0.07

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

4
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 14 of 19

P
age 76

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col11')


Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21
Target Qtr
Jun21

Comment Qtr Jun21

Trading Standards Scorecard

Trading Standards  Reporting Indicators original

% of doorstep crime or scam
reports against vulnerable people
responded to in 1 working day.

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 96.0% 95.0%

% of doorstep crime and scam
interventions where the individual
is left better equipped to
withstand scam attempts

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 76.0% 75.0%

This is a new measure so early targets are set to
be achievable and will be revised throughout the
year. 
The figures have to take into account that some
people who respond to scams do so for complex
reasons and may chose to continue even after my
team have worked with them to explain why we
recommend they change their behaviour.  This
reflects the position that everyone has the right to
make a 'poor' decision so long as they are doing so
from a position of knowledge and capacity to do
so. 
There will also be a number of people who respond
to scams and who cannot change their behaviour,
perhaps due to capacity to make wise decisions in
that particular area of their life.  In such cases we
will examine and refine our actions to see how we
can learn to make our interventions more effective
and how we can work with health and social care
colleagues to identify and support those most at
risk.
Targets for Q3 and Q4 are higher than for Q1 to
reflect the aim to become more effective.

% product safety complaints
assessed for further action within
1 working day

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of high risk food premise
inspections completed

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 0.0% 0.0%

The Food Standards Agency recovery plan for post
Covid inspections requires 100% of backlog to be
completed by June 2022, this set of target
indicators will achieve that.  Work is loaded to later
in the year to allow food officers to properly plan
inspections taking into account prolonged changes
to the way they carry out physical inspections post
Covid and also to allow for most of the inspections,
especially those of the highest risk, to be carried
out after the scheduled implementation of
significant new legislation  The Food Information
(Amendment) ( England) Regulations 2019  in
October 2021.

% of reports concerning supply of
food containing a known allergen
when consumer has identified
allergy responded to in 1 working
day.

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%
There were no consumer complaints relating to
allergens in food in this period 

% of animal feed inspections
completed

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 5.0% 5.0%

% of immediate disease risk
reports responded to within 1
working day

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 95.0%

% of complaints/enquiries
allocated which have a positive
outcome

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid
complaints and referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure
restrictions in response to Covid in April 2021,
Trading Standards no longer have an enforcement
role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies
who do not fully appreciate the separation of
responsibilities between County and District
Council.  These matters are referred onwards to
the relevant District Council by this Service
without any work taking place, this action cannot
be recorded as a positive outcome ad no value has
been added by the intervention of my team

Number of Feed qualified officers
who meet statutory competency
requirements

Plan is Best Quarterly ? 4 4 4 4 4

Number of Food qualified officers
who meet statutory competency
requirements

Plan is Best Quarterly ? 3 3 3 3 3

Achieved positive outcome with
respect to activities (%)
(cumulative)

Bigger is Better Quarterly 96.0% ? ? ? 83.0% 90.0%

Figures for Q1 are still skewed by Covid
complaints and referrals. 
Following the lifting of business closure
restrictions in response to Covid in April 2021,
Trading Standards no longer have an enforcement
role but a number of complaints are still made to
this Service by the public and partner agencies
who do not fully appreciate the separation of
responsibilities between County and District
Council.  These matters are referred onwards to
the relevant District Council by this Service
without any work taking place, this action cannot
be recorded as a positive outcome ad no value has
been added by the intervention of my team

Respond to request for trade
advice within 5 working days (%)
(quarterly, cumulative)

Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21
Target Qtr
Jun21

Comment Qtr Jun21

Trading Standards  Good Management Indicators original

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 1.02 0.00 0.00 0.00
% Staff Appraisals complete (and
entered on SAP)

Bigger is Better Quarterly 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 % ?

Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a
% of all Sstaff)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 12.50% 0.00% 11.76% 0.00% 0.00%

Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg
days per FTE )  Long Term

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Sickness/Absence Levels (avg
days per FTE)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.07 1.02 0.62 0.12 0.07

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

5
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 15 of 19

P
age 77

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')


Trading Standards Service Plan Causal Map

6
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 16 of 19

P
age 78

http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/


CMS  Reporting Indicators

Number of cases waiting for
inquest

Smaller is Better Quarterly 1 1 6 1 3 3 9 9 1 1 2 1 1 9 1 2 5

% Where time from referral to
inquest is 6 months

Bigger is Better Quarterly 95.0% 87.0% 80.0% 86.0% 80.0% 80.0%

Number of discrepancies found
during monthly audit

Smaller is Better Quarterly 1 1 1 1 1 2

% of autopsy reports typed within
2 weeks of PM

Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

No. of autopsy reports
outstanding after 8 weeks of PM

Smaller is Better Quarterly 1 5 1 1 7 7 1 2 1 8

% viewings arranged within 5
days of request

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 98.0%

% of bodies released within 4
days of autopsy

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 81.0% 80.0%

% of Part B forms completed by
Coroner within 3 working days of
PM and sent to registrations

Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21
Target Qtr
Jun21

Comment Qtr Jun21

CMS  Good Management Indicators

Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg
days per FTE)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.32 0.74 0.74 0.00

Sickness/Absence Levels
(Average days per FTE)  Long
Term

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.00
Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a
% of all staff)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 7.1% 15.4% 16.3% 7.1% 14.3%

% PARS and PAR reviews
completed for all staff (and
entered on SAP)

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? ?

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

CMS  Opportunities & Risks

Lack of Pathologists available for the number of PM needed to meet
target

High 25 High 20 High 20 High 15 High 15
No change in pathologist availability in this quarterrisk
holding steady.

APT staff unavailable due to sickness or vacancy exits Low 6 Low 2 Low 6 Low 4 Low 2
No change in staffing levels but member of staff from TSS has
fitted in well to the team and the risk is reduced accordingly.

Equipment failure Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 No change

HTA reportable incident leading to suspension of service Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 No change.

Exceptional investigation & inquest costs Low 3 Low 3 Low 3 Low 3 Low 4
As restrictions are lifted so our court will become busier and
this risk is raised in anticipation of this. Likelihood remains low
but impact could be major and risk raised accordingly.

Significant Risks / Opportunities
Risk Name Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

Coroners & Mortuary Services Scorecard 1

Appendix 3

ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 17 of 19

P
age 79

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')


CMS  Reporting Indicators

Number of cases waiting for
inquest

Smaller is Better Quarterly 1 1 6 1 3 3 9 9 1 1 2 1 1 9 1 2 5

% Where time from referral to
inquest is 6 months

Bigger is Better Quarterly 95.0% 87.0% 80.0% 86.0% 80.0% 80.0%

Number of discrepancies found
during monthly audit

Smaller is Better Quarterly 1 1 1 1 1 2

% of autopsy reports typed within
2 weeks of PM

Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

No. of autopsy reports
outstanding after 8 weeks of PM

Smaller is Better Quarterly 1 5 1 1 7 7 1 2 1 8

% viewings arranged within 5
days of request

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 100.0% 98.0%

% of bodies released within 4
days of autopsy

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? 81.0% 80.0%

% of Part B forms completed by
Coroner within 3 working days of
PM and sent to registrations

Bigger is Better Quarterly 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 95.0%

Service Measures  Quarterly  Against a Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21
Target Qtr
Jun21

Comment Qtr Jun21

CMS  Good Management Indicators

Sickness/Absence Levels (Avg
days per FTE)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.32 0.74 0.74 0.00

Sickness/Absence Levels
(Average days per FTE)  Long
Term

Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Days lost to stress per FTE Smaller is Better Quarterly 0.00 0.00 0.74 0.00 0.00
Staff Turnover (staff leaving as a
% of all staff)

Smaller is Better Quarterly 7.1% 15.4% 16.3% 7.1% 14.3%

% PARS and PAR reviews
completed for all staff (and
entered on SAP)

Bigger is Better Quarterly ? ? ? ? ?

Good Management Measures  Quarterly  No Target

Measure Name Good Performance
Reporting
Bas is

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

CMS  Opportunities & Risks

Lack of Pathologists available for the number of PM needed to meet
target

High 25 High 20 High 20 High 15 High 15
No change in pathologist availability in this quarterrisk
holding steady.

APT staff unavailable due to sickness or vacancy exits Low 6 Low 2 Low 6 Low 4 Low 2
No change in staffing levels but member of staff from TSS has
fitted in well to the team and the risk is reduced accordingly.

Equipment failure Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 No change

HTA reportable incident leading to suspension of service Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 Low 4 No change.

Exceptional investigation & inquest costs Low 3 Low 3 Low 3 Low 3 Low 4
As restrictions are lifted so our court will become busier and
this risk is raised in anticipation of this. Likelihood remains low
but impact could be major and risk raised accordingly.

Significant Risks / Opportunities
Risk Name Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21 Comment Qtr Jun21

Coroners & Mortuary Services Scorecard

2
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 18 of 19

P
age 80



Coroners Service Plan Causal Map

3
ASCCSC Report Sept 21 
Page 19 of 19

P
age 81

http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/
http://svrgl1267/


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health

7 September 2021 – Public Health Update

This report provides an update on the following areas of the Prevention, Wellbeing and 
Communities hub business:

1. Update on mental health support/services for children and young people
2. Anchor Institutions
3. Changes to the vaccine of the HPV immunisation programme
4. Professor Dame Carol Black’s Review of Drugs #2: prevention, treatment & recovery
5. Children’s Weight Management Support
6. COVID-19 Update – Step 4 of the ‘roadmap’ 
7. COVID-19 Prevention Grants 2021
8. Mandating COVID-19 vaccinations in care homes

The committee is asked to note the content of all report items and see additional requests 
under Item 1.  

For further information on any of these reports, contact publichealth@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

1. Update on mental health support/services for children and young people

Context

The pandemic has shone a spot light on children and young people’s (CYP) mental health. 
Prior to the pandemic, national studies1 suggest that overall one in eight 5 to 19-year olds 
had at least one mental disorder, rising to one in six in 17-19-year olds. While it is too early 
to fully quantify the additional impact of COVID-19 on mental health in the county, evidence2 
suggests that some young people are likely to be more at risk than others, including those 
with existing mental health issues, or those living with other vulnerabilities, such as children 
in care, children from lower income households or children with special educational needs. 

Research carried out by TIC+3 (who provide a range of mental health support in the county) 
highlights a number of factors impacting on the wellbeing of young people accessing their 
counselling services through 2020, including concerns related to education, home-life, health 
anxiety, disruption to activities, and loneliness. TIC+ has also reported an increase in the 
level of complexity and need triggered by the pandemic. 

This report provides an update on current activity levels in local CYP mental health support 
services, and our local response. It also provides an overview of the support available for 
CYP in the county.

1 NHS Digital (2018) Mental Health of Children and Young People in England, 2017
2 PHE (2021) COVID 19: mental health and wellbeing surveillance report. 
3 TIC+ (2021) COVID 19 impact on children and young people.

Page 83

Agenda Item 8

mailto:publichealth@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Activity in local CYP mental health services

Overall referrals to CYP mental health services have increased, particularly since the 
reopening of schools. There is a waiting list for counselling support for both the CAMHS 
services (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service provided by Gloucestershire Health 
and Care) and TIC+. Providers have noted an increase in the level of acuity in young people 
meaning that they may require more support over a longer time frame. Eating Disorder 
services have also seen an increase in demand and acuity, particularly from CYP.  Young 
Gloucestershire (a local youth work charity) who have been commissioned by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) to provide additional mental health support for more 
vulnerable CYP through the pandemic, report ongoing high demand for their services.

In response, the CCG has put additional investment into core mental health provision for 
CYP. Additional recruitment is underway for the both the CAMHS service and TIC+; and 
services are exploring new ways of working to support the increase in demand. A CYP 
strategic response group has been established chaired by the CCG, to share intelligence 
about the pressures on CYP mental health provision and co-ordinate the system response.

It is likely that services may see a short term fall in referrals over the summer holidays, but it 
is important that we continue to plan ahead. Analysts at the Council and the CCG have 
collaborated on a demand modelling exercise to project the likely increase in COVID-
generated demand over the medium to longer term, and how this might present in local 
services. The increase in demand is projected to present over the next 3-7 years; however, it 
is important to note that not all young people whose mental health may have been affected 
by the pandemic will require a clinical intervention. Some will find their mental wellbeing 
improves as they are able to resume their normal activities, while others may benefit from 
community-based support. It is important that our response recognises the continuum of 
young people’s needs.

At the outset of the pandemic, the Council commissioned some additional early intervention 
mental health support services for CYP to increase capacity and the range of options 
available. These services are anonymous and open access (meaning they don’t require a 
referral). At the end of June 2021, the online mental wellbeing platform Kooth (for 11-18-year 
olds) had 1020 registered users; and an average of 111 unique users accessing the site 
pcm. The new anonymous helpline ‘TIC+ chat’ has supported 452 young people over its first 
12 months; and the number of higher risk young people contacting the service has increased 
in recent months. These new temporary Council commissioned services are currently in 
place through to early 2022.

As noted above, the CCG commissioned some additional early intervention support with 
Young Gloucestershire, to combat the social isolation, loneliness and anxiety caused by 
lockdown during the pandemic. The service provides vulnerable young people aged 16-25 
with resources, activities and interventions to manage their current situation and help 
transition out of the pandemic. The service is commissioned until the end of March 2022 and 
has supported over 225 young people over the last 12 months.

The support options available for CYP

The new temporary services commissioned by the Council complement a range of other 
commissioned services supporting Children and Young People in the county. These include, 
but are not limited to:

 CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services) provided by Gloucestershire 
Health and Care - specialist mental health services for children and young people up to 
18 years of age (and their families/carers).

Page 84



 TIC+ (formerly Teens in Crisis) - free, confidential counselling by phone, online text chat 
or video chat for 9 – 21 years living in Gloucestershire.

 All age Self-Harm Helpline - confidential support for people who self-harm, and their 
friends, families and carers.

 Young Gloucestershire Linked up+, Flex and Bounce Services - trained youth worker 
support and confidential counselling for vulnerable young people, children in care, care 
leavers and young people who self-harm aged 16-25 years (the weekly support can be 
accessed either digitally or face to face depending on individual preferences).

A hard copy and electronic leaflet were produced by the Children and Families Hub for 
professionals and volunteers working with children and young people to show the range of 
support available. Information about support options is also promoted to young people via 
schools and online at Be Well Gloucestershire. Over the summer holidays, the Council will 
be running social media adverts targeting CYP and is working with the district providers of 
the Holiday Activity Fund to promote the mental wellbeing support on offer locally. The 
Council will also shortly be relaunching its Harmless Glos resources aimed at enabling 
professionals and volunteers working with young people to spot the signs of self-harm and 
provide support.

Recognising the challenges young people might experience navigating the system, the CCG 
will be piloting a new ‘On your mind’ digital resource in the autumn, with a formal launch 
planned in the new year. The online service finder and textbot, designed in conjunction with 
CYP will provide a central digital resource for young people, practitioners and parents/carers 
to help with signposting young people to the support that best meets their needs.

The CYP Mental Health Transformation programme 

The new online portal is one element of a wider transformation programme of mental health 
support for children and young people in the county (including the Trailblazer programme) 
being led by the CCG in conjunction with the Council, Gloucestershire Healthy Living and 
Learning, Gloucestershire Health and Care and other partners. The programme includes:

 the expansion of mental health support teams in schools into all localities in the county;
 the introduction of peer support in all secondary schools;
 mental health awareness training and trauma informed relational practice training for 

teaching staff;
 improved referral pathways into CAMHS, including personalised phone calls to help 

ensure young people are seen promptly and get the support which best meets their 
needs;

 the implementation of pathway efficiencies in services following work with NHS 
Improvement to make the best use of resources;

 the development of a young adults programme for 16-25 year olds to provide joined up 
support from Young Gloucestershire and Gloucestershire Health and Care Trust;

 expansion of outreach services to provide urgent support for young people and support 
young people to reduce hospital admission/stays where appropriate; and

 development of a CYP participation strategy to engage CYP and their families in sharing 
their views and shaping services. 

As part of the transformation programme, the CCG has also commissioned a new ‘Social 
Prescribing Plus’ offer for children and young people who attend Trailblazer Schools in the 
Forest of Dean, Gloucester City and Cheltenham. This includes the offer of arts, nature and 
physical activity on prescription. In addition to this, as part of the Social Prescribing Universal 
Offer, CYP living in certain parts of Cheltenham, the Forest of Dean, Dursley and the 
Cotswolds can also access support from a Children and Young People’s Link Worker to help 

Page 85



young people engage with groups and other activities in their local area. The programme will 
be gathering case studies and activity data, and these can be shared at a future meeting.

Next steps

Our immediate priority is managing the increase in referrals to the county’s CYP mental 
health services. There is already strong partnership working in place between 
commissioners and providers to help address the demand; and steps have been taken to 
increase both the capacity in services and the range of support on offer. Longer term, the 
continued implementation of the CYP Mental Health Transformation programme should 
bring about a step change in mental health support locally across clinical services; 
community-based support and our schools and colleges. 

As noted in this report, those young people with other vulnerabilities in their lives are likely to 
see the greatest impact from the pandemic on their wellbeing. Challenging circumstances or 
life experiences can both be a cause of mental health problems and a symptom. Factors 
such as employment and education opportunities, secure housing, access to green spaces 
and social connections will also have a bearing on young people’s wellbeing, particularly as 
they make the transition into adulthood, and it is essential that we take a joined-up approach.

‘Early Years’, ‘mental health and wellbeing’ and Action on ACES are all priorities in the 
Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing strategy. Child Friendly Gloucestershire also provides 
an opportunity to work with partners to address some of the wider determinants of young 
people’s health and life chances. 

It is asked that the Committee: 

 note the information contained in this report on CYP mental health in the county; 
 help raise awareness of the support available to CYP in their community; and 
 advocate for a system wide approach to the promotion of positive mental health and 

wellbeing which recognises the importance of wider factors, such as employment, 
education and access to a secure and safe home environment.

2. Anchor Institutions Update 

Background

The Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board (GHWB) have pledged to adopt an ‘anchor 
institution’ approach to support the local economy and contribute to reducing health 
inequalities. Anchor Institutions are typically large, non-profit organisations like hospitals, 
local authorities and universities, whose long-term sustainability is tied to the wellbeing of 
their local communities.

This approach capitalises on the substantial economic leverage these organisations have; 
as employers, purchasers of goods and services, land and asset owners and community 
leaders. Anchor Institutions are significant stewards of public resources and often have 
duties to deliver social value.  These characteristics mean they are well placed to positively 
influence the social, economic and environmental determinants of health within their local 
communities. 

Nationally, NHS England and NHS Improvement are developing the ‘NHS as an anchor 
institution work programme’ and are continuing to build a picture of examples of good 
practice. The Health Foundation has launched the ‘health anchors learning network’, which 
is free to access by NHS and other organisations. 

Page 86



Local Action 

A set of principles outlining what anchor institutions in Gloucestershire are, and how they 
can support the health inequalities agenda, have been approved off by GHWB. A mapping 
exercise has identified many excellent examples of anchor institution activity in 
Gloucestershire, including policies and initiatives around employment and training, inclusive 
economic growth, social value and leadership. We have worked in partnership with 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Oakwood Primary School to test a locally adapted ‘social 
return on investment’ tool, to understand participants’ perspectives on the added value of the 
‘No Child Left Behind’ programme.  This will be incorporated into the local Health Inequalities 
Toolkit for use by commissioners, policy makers and partners; both prospectively to plan 
social value into activity, or retrospectively to evaluate the social value delivered. 

This year’s Director of Public Heath Annual Report will focus on how an Anchor Institutions 
approach can be used to tackle health inequalities as well as supporting economic growth. 
This will be followed by a partnership even in December to launch the Gloucestershire 
Anchors Partnership Programme to Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board and ICS 
Board members and representatives from member organisations. The Board has agreed to 
broaden the definition and scope of the Anchors local programme to include other 
organisations, for example, long-established local businesses, housing associations and 
some of the well established local VCSE organisations that function as anchors within their 
communities. While moving away from the ‘official’ definition of Anchor Institutions as largely 
non-profit organisations, the anticipated benefits would be the opportunity to build on the 
relationships that these organisations have within their local communities and the added 
value of a wider range of perspectives and the additional economic leverage of these 
organisations. 

3. Changes to the vaccine of the HPV immunisation programme

The successful HPV (Human Papilloma Virus) immunisation programme, which is offered to 
all 12 to 13-year olds in school and to men who have sex with men up to the age of 45, has 
been updated.  It will now use the Gardasil 9 vaccine which guards against 9 types of virus, 
rather than the 4 types prevented by the current vaccine.  The aim of the vaccine 
programme is to reduce the risk of developing some cancers in later life such as cervical 
cancer and some mouth and throat cancers, amongst others.  Evidence of the effectiveness 
of the vaccine programme is growing, with one study finding that the vaccine has reduced 
pre-cancerous cervical disease in 20-year-old females by up to 71%.  The change will be 
introduced between late 2021 and early 2022.  For the school-based programme in 
particular, there will be clear communication with parents and eligible adolescents and 
robust arrangements in place to ensure the consent process is adequate.  

4. Professor Dame Carol Black’s Review of Drugs part two: prevention, treatment 
and recovery

As the Committee is aware, the County Council commission Adult Community Drug and 
Alcohol Support Services in the county.  The recommendations arising out of the recently 
published report of the second phase of the Professor Dame Carol Black Review, if adopted, 
have implications for the future commissioning of Community Drug and Alcohol Services and 
the Committee may be interested to receive a high-level summary below with a more in-
depth report to follow in November.

Background

In February 2019, the Government commissioned Professor Dame Carol Black to undertake 
an independent review of drugs in two phases, an up-to-date analysis of the problems and 

Page 87



then recommended policy solutions.  Part 1, published in February 2020, outlined the extent 
of the illicit drugs market in the UK, worth almost £10 billion a year, with 3 million users and a 
supply chain that has become increasingly violent and exploitative. The Report found drug 
deaths at an all-time high and drug addiction fuelling many costly social problems, including 
homelessness and rising demands on children’s social care.  It found that the drugs market 
is driving most of the nation’s crimes: half of all homicides and half of acquisitive crimes are 
linked to drugs. People with serious drug addiction occupy one in 3 prison places.

Importantly, Part 1 also showed how entrenched drug use and premature deaths occur 
disproportionately more in deprived areas and the north of the country. 

Part 2 of the Review 

The second part of the Review was published in July this year and has highlighted how the 
pandemic is highly likely to have widened inequalities and that any economic recession 
would further drive trends in drug use and deaths in the wrong direction.  She notes that to 
achieve and sustain recovery people need, alongside treatment, somewhere safe to live and 
something meaningful to do (a job, education or training). 

The Review recommends joining up the drugs agenda across government departments and 
the Government has already announced the new Joint Combating Drugs Unit, which will 
include:

 A national outcomes framework
 Annual report to Parliament
 Dame Carol as ongoing independent advisor on drugs

The Government has already invested additional money into the system through the 
Universal Drugs Grant, Project Adder and £52 million of funding this year through the rough 
sleeping drug and alcohol treatment grant.  They have allocated £1.3 million in delivering 
telemedicine in 86 prisons to enable prisoners to make contact with treatment providers in 
the community.  

The Office for Health Promotion will lead on monitoring local performance and holding the 
system to account.  A local outcomes framework and a commissioning quality standard to 
support any future enhancement of the treatment and recovery system will be drafted in 
consultation with the local system.  There is also an expectation that ICS partnerships will 
work together across NHS and public health to jointly plan for the provision of mental health 
and substance misuse services.

Summary

The government have given an initial response to the Phase 2 report and have confirmed 
that combating illegal drug misuse is a priority.  They have committed to developing a long-
term national strategy which they will publish by the end of the year. We hope to be able to 
report back in November with more detail of the proposed changes.

5. Children’s Weight Management Support

This is a brief section to inform the Committee about a positive development in our plans to 
support families with a child affected by obesity. A full report on childhood obesity in 
Gloucestershire is scheduled for the Committee next March.

Context

Excess weight (overweight or obesity) affects one in four 11-year olds living in 
Gloucestershire and this rises to up to half of children living in neighbourhoods facing the 

Page 88

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-drugs-phase-one-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-drugs-phase-two-report


greatest socioeconomic challenges. Effective weight management can prevent obesity-
related issues from tracking and make a material difference to a child’s future. 

Update 

In partnership with the CCG we have commissioned a behaviour change organisation 
(BeeZee Bodies) to work with families from these communities to co-develop a flexible 
package of ‘Tier 2’ (community-based) support based on an understanding of the things that 
prevent them from living well, and things that can help. This offer, the first of its kind, uses a 
’structural resilience model’4 to identify and support families to address the practical, social 
and economic issues that impact their ability engage and succeed in weight management.

On the back of national and regional interest in our weight management offer for families, 
NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSE & I) have invited us to participate as an 
‘integration test site’ for Tier 2 and Tier 3 (clinical) weight management services as part of 
their Children and Young People’s Transformation Programme. This seeks to integrate new, 
regionally commissioned Tier 3 weight management services with our local Tier 2 offer and 
wider children’s services to deliver a wrap-around support package for families. The 
opportunity comes with circa £200k funding per year, shared across Tiers of care, over a 
three-year period. 

We have an initial planning meeting with NHS E & I leads in September and will provide 
further details to the Committee as part of our scheduled childhood obesity report in March.

6. COVID-19 update – Step 4 of the ‘roadmap’ 

It was set out in the COVID-19 Response - Spring 2021 (‘the roadmap’), that once a 
sufficiently high proportion of the population are vaccinated, the country can learn to live with 
COVID-19 without the need for the stringent economic and social restrictions.  

On the 19th July the country moved to step 4 of the ‘roadmap’. At this step, the Government 
removed outstanding legal restrictions on social contact, life events, and allowed the opening 
of the remaining closed settings. This marked a new phase in the Government’s response to 
the pandemic, moving away from stringent restrictions towards advising people on how to 
protect themselves and others, alongside targeted interventions to reduce risk. Nationally, 
COVID-19 Response: Summer 2021 was published to support the move to step 4. 

COVID-19 contain framework: a guide for local decision-makers sets out how the system will 
now work in step 4 to prevent, manage and contain outbreaks of COVID-19. This includes 
actions required to address the follow: 

1. Reinforce the country’s vaccine wall of defence through booster jabs and 
driving take up. 

2. Enable the public to make informed decisions through guidance, rather than 
laws. 

3. Retain proportionate test, trace and isolate plans in line with international 
comparators. 

4 The structural resilience model is designed to triage families using key demographic and circumstantial 
indicators of readiness to make changes, not simply in terms of motivation (often the primary consideration), 
but in terms of social (partner, family, friends, system), emotional (mental wellbeing, readiness to learn and 
apply knowledge) and structural (financial, employment, living situation, general stability within their 
situation).

Page 89

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-response-spring-2021
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/999419/COVID-19_Response_Summer_2021.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/containing-and-managing-local-coronavirus-covid-19-outbreaks/covid-19-contain-framework-a-guide-for-local-decision-makers


4. Manage risks at the border and support a global response to reduce the risk of 
variants emerging globally and entering the UK. 

5. Retain contingency measures to respond to unexpected events, while accepting 
that further cases, hospitalisations and deaths will occur as the country learns to live 
with COVID-19. 

(See appendix 1 for further details).

Local Outbreak Management Plans (LOMPs) will continue to be central to the ongoing 
response, and will be regionally supported and nationally enabled. The guide reinforces that 
many of the groups who face disproportionate impacts from COVID-19 are likely to be 
underserved by national activity. We need local insight, and targeted, culturally competent 
action to engage them. Examples of addressing this locally in Gloucestershire are through 
the vaccine equity work and the targeted approach to community testing. 

Contact tracing remains priority, and all positive cases, regardless of age or vaccination 
status, will be included in contact tracing. However, from the Monday 16th August, contacts 
do not need to self-isolate (unless, or until, they become symptomatic), but they will be 
asked to take a PCR test.

Regular asymptomatic testing continues to help find cases and break the chains of 
transmission. However, there is a shift to particularly focusing on those who are not fully 
vaccinated, those in education, and those in higher-risk settings such as the NHS, social 
care and prisons. As well as established distribution of lateral flow device (LFD) test in high 
risk setting, the Gloucestershire Community Testing team have been providing the targeted 
distribution for LFDs with 7448 test kits being distributed in the county via this route in the 
last month. 

Vaccines are significantly reducing the link between infections and severe disease and 
death. As such step 4 marks a clear move towards more targeted work to enable people to 
test, trace and isolate. 

However, the pandemic is not over. In Gloucestershire there were 302.5 confirmed cases of 
COVID-19 per 100,000 population in the 7 days up to 12th August 2021. This is a 9.3% 
increase in the rate compared with the previous 7 days. 

The biggest risk is a variant of concern (VOC) which fully or partially escapes immunity. 
Local authorities play a critical role in responding to VOC outbreaks by working with the 
system to identify and isolate positive cases and working with communities to help support 
local responses, ensuring communities are safe and supported.

7. COVID Prevention Grants 2021

As part of the continued work to prevent the spread of Coronavirus, Gloucestershire County 
Council has been investing in Voluntary Sector Organisations (VCS) who have been 
supporting vulnerable people since the beginning of the pandemic.  

These grants are to enable VCS organisations to continue their support for vulnerable 
people and those at highest risk, whilst reinforcing the COVID19 guidance messages, 
measures to minimise the spread of disease and to promote the vaccination programme. 

GCC Public Health worked with members of the Community Resilience Forum (District 
Councils, VCS Alliance, and CCG) to identify those voluntary sector organisations that have 

Page 90



continued to support vulnerable people and those who has seen increased demand as a 
result of the pandemic, in particular those supporting young people and individuals with poor 
mental health.  The organisations identified were approached to submit a bid for a COVID 
Prevention Grant up to £20,000.  The process was designed to ensure the funding reached 
the sector quickly and with minimal bureaucracy. 

To date £1,016,537.60 has been awarded in grants to 58 Voluntary Sector Organisations 
that work countywide and at a locality level.  The thematic break down of agencies 
supported is:

 Support to vulnerable adults – 12 applications
 Support to vulnerable young people – 9 applications
 Improve mental wellbeing – 15 applications
 Reduce Social Isolation – 8 applications
 Improve Local Community Support – 8 applications
 Supporting Homeless people – 1 application
 Support to countywide VCS organisations – 2 applications
 Domestic Abuse – 1 application
 Supporting women specifically – 2 applications

The programme will continue for a fourth wave of grants with a budget of £250,000 in 
October 2021 with a particular focus on those organisations who have significant demand for 
their support generated by the pandemic which they are unable to meet without more short-
term resource.  

8. Mandating COVID-19 vaccinations in care homes

From November 11th 2021, all care home workers, and anyone entering a care home, will 
need to be fully vaccinated against COVID-19, unless they are exempt under the 
regulations. 

This new rule means that anyone working or entering a care home (other than family, friends 
and essential care givers) must have booked and received their first dose of the vaccination 
by September 16th 2021 to allow enough time for them to receive their second jab in time for 
the regulations to come into force on 11th November. 

Adult social care and public health have been working with care homes and local NHS 
partners to prepare for this new legislation.

 Care home managers and staff have been provided with links to the guidance and 
steps on what they need to do next 

 Care homes have been provided with communications to share with visitors who may 
need to prepare for the new legislation

 Care homes have been signposted to existing communications materials to use with 
staff and also been offered training in having vaccine conversations

 Care homes have been offered outreach from the NHS vaccination programme for 
unvaccinated staff, and the opportunity to speak with a clinician

To read the Government guidance in full, click here

Page 91

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1010601/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccination-of-people-working-or-deployed-in-care-homes-operational-guidance.pdf


Page 92



Appendix 1:
Summary of COVID-19 contain framework: a guide for local decision-makers  

Key points
 Many of the groups who face disproportionate impacts from COVID-19 are likely to be underserved by national activity, and we need local insight, and 

targeted, culturally competent action to engage them.
 LOMPs continue to be central to the ongoing response, and will be regionally supported and nationally enabled
 Vaccines are significantly reducing the link between infections and severe disease and death.
 people will be asked to make informed decisions and act carefully and proportionately, to manage the risks to themselves and others
 The biggest risk is a variant of concern (VOC) which fully or partially escapes immunity.

Locally lead -  DPH / LA (LOMP) will need to ensure Nationally lead
5 key areas of government action:
Reinforce the country’s vaccine 
wall of defense through booster 
jabs and driving take up

 drive up vaccination rates among those groups with lower 
uptake

 ensuring second vaccinations are administered
 Booster vaccinations (likely to be needed and DPH/LA to assist 

NHS to ensure max uptake)

NHS England has recently published guidance to local authorities 
on surge vaccination in response to the prevalence of the delta 
variant.

Enable the public to make 
informed decisions through 
guidance, rather than laws

 support their local communities to understand and manage 
risk, to make informed choices, and live safely with COVID-19 
as national restrictions are lifted.

 Community engagement will potentially be even more critical 
for the next phase of the response.

 Venue alerts - Although it is no longer a legal duty for venues to 
ask customers to check in, they are strongly encouraged to do 
so and local authorities can promote the continuation of venue 
alerts.

 Ensure their local response is targeted at the communities and 
settings that are at the greatest risk, ensuring that the 
underserved and vulnerable, particularly those who are 
ineligible or unable to be vaccinated, are protected. 

 Ensure they use the data and other tools at their disposal to 
best understand which individuals and communities they 
particularly need to focus their efforts on. 

 Continue to work with and through trusted local voluntary and 
community sector partners to support engagement and 
outreach.

The following will also remain in place (but kept under review)
 symptomatic testing and targeted asymptomatic testing in 

education and high risk workplaces
 self-isolation for positive cases (or if advised) 
 border quarantine
 cautious guidance for individuals, businesses and the 

vulnerable

P
age 93

https://www.england.nhs.uk/coronavirus/wp-content/uploads/sites/52/2021/06/C1320-covid-vaccinations-surge-response-guide-june-2021.pdf


Retain proportionate test, trace 
and isolate plans in line with 
international comparators

Test
 Symptomatic testing will remain critical and a top priority
 When demand for PCR testing is high, or for reasons of reach 

or epidemiology, symptomatic testing may be flexed to LFD 
provision, as clinically appropriate.

 A range of asymptomatic testing offers will be available over 
the summer whilst the adult population is given access to 
vaccination

 Asymptomatic testing in vulnerable and higher-risk 
settings will be continuously reviewed considering the public 
health risk, as will testing in educational settings that are open.

 Targeted community testing supports local delivery of 
asymptomatic testing to disproportionately impacted and 
underserved groups, reflecting local priorities and insight. 

 Local authorities can draw on the contributions of the voluntary 
and community sector to encourage and support priority 
populations, using trusted partners, to increase access to 
testing and develop tailored communications.

 Educational settings that remain open over the summer 
holidays will be provided with kits to continue regular testing. 
Secondary school children will be asked to complete 2 onsite 
tests on return in September and then to continue home testing 
until the end of September. University students will be asked to 
test before travelling to university for the autumn term and to 
complete 2 LFD tests at home or at an asymptomatic testing 
site (ATS) site on return.

 Keeping under close review the need for asymptomatic 
testing considering prevalence levels and continued roll out 
and uptake of the vaccine.

 LFD home testing will continue to be available through 
gov.uk and pharmacy collect but will be targeted at those 
individuals, communities and settings that are at greater risk 
of transmission and will experience worse outcomes from 
COVID-19.

 Most regular workplace testing will finish at the end of July 
as previously announced and the online ordering system 
closed on 19 July. We are currently considering the potential 
use of assisted daily contact testing in some workplaces.

 To proactively mitigate exposure and outbreaks in high-risk 
and vulnerable settings (such as the NHS and adult social 
care) we will continue to provide tests in these settings, 
proportionate to the epidemiology and public health risk.

Trace
 Contact tracing a priority, and all positive cases, regardless of 

age or vaccination status, will be contacted for CT. 
 Local – 4 model has been adopted by many LAs. LTPs take 

responsibility for contacting new cases as soon as they are 
referred to the contact tracing system, rather than only those 
who cannot be reached by national tracing teams.

 Contacts will not need to self-isolate unless, or until, they 
become symptomatic, but – as now – they will be asked to 
take a PCR test

 Work is underway to pilot Local Contacts, a scheme which 
enables local authorities to trace contacts of cases without 
them being passed through the national system.

 Daily contact testing will be rolled out to some critical 
workplaces in England so that contacts who would otherwise 
be self-isolating can instead take daily tests. The contact 
tracing process will therefore remain vital as a way of ensuring 
that people receive appropriate advice on self-isolation, PCR 
testing or daily LFD testing (depending on circumstances).

Isolate Since March 2021, the government has provided monthly funding 
to support local authorities in arranging support in line with the 
framework, and this is currently scheduled to run until the end of 
September 2021.

P
age 94



Manage risks at the border 
and support a global response 
to reduce the risk of variants 
emerging globally and entering 
the UK

Support compliance with testing and quarantine regimes for those 
passengers still bound by them

Retain contingency measures 
to respond to unexpected 
events, while accepting that 
further cases, hospitalisations 
and deaths will occur as the 
country learns to live with 
COVID-19

 Providing ongoing advice and support will remain critical, as will 
a rapid response if outbreaks occur

 Ability to respond swiftly and robustly to a variant outbreak must 
continue to be a priority

 The No 3. Regulations which enable local authorities to impose 
restrictions, requirements or prohibitions on individual premises, 
events and public outdoor places will continue until 27 
September.

 OIRR (Outbreak Investigation and Rapid Response) 
intelligence used to support outbreak detection includes 
backward contact tracing data gathered from cases. These data 
are used in analytical reports and tools to identify ‘clusters’ of 
new cases linked to a common setting which may be an early 
indication of a larger outbreak. Combined with local intelligence, 
this information is routinely assessed and prioritised for 
investigation by local public health teams and HPTs to assess 
whether an outbreak is associated with the location and to take 
public health control measures.

See OIRR intelligence note in previous column (is this the 
common exposure reporting?)

Additional guidance in the contain plan
Surveillance Robust population surveillance programmes are essential to understand the rate of COVID-19 infection, and how the virus is spreading 

across the country.

Wastewater monitoring Wastewater monitoring is carried out on an ongoing basis 
across around 70% of the population of England.

Enhanced support UKHSA will provide enhanced support to local areas facing 
sharply rising levels of transmission, where the evidence suggests 
short-term additional support could slow or bring rates down.

Enduring transmission Areas experiencing enduring transmission require a sustained 
approach, with national and regional support to enable and 
enhance the work of local government.

VUI and VOC outbreaks Local authorities will play a critical role in responding to VUI and 
VOC outbreaks, building on their LOMPs, to identify and isolate 
positive cases, while working with their communities to help support 
local responses, ensuring communities are safe and supported.

P
age 95



Events The NHS COVID Pass is a tool which shows proof of vaccination, 
a recent negative test, or natural immunity as a means of entry. 
The government is urging nightclubs and other higher-risk venues 
with large crowds to make use of the NHS COVID Pass. Although 
this this will initially be voluntary the government has announced 
its intention to introduce mandatory vaccine-based certification 
from the autumn for nightclubs and other high-risk settings.

Outbreaks The majority of COVID-19 outbreaks will be best dealt with at a 
local level. Local authorities have a range of existing powers, such 
as enforcement of deep cleaning or temporary closure, to ensure an 
appropriate response.

Detailed guidance in the accompanying Outbreak Management 
Response Toolkit (OMRT)

Updates for specific settings
Setting Update
Settings with risk of rapid spread For individual settings where the risks of rapid spread are particularly acute, DsPH, in consultation with setting operators and relevant 

departments, will be able to advise that social distancing is put in place, if necessary, to control outbreaks.
Education settings From 16 August 2021, children under the age of 18 will no longer be required to self-isolate if they are contacted by NHSTT as a close 

contact of a positive COVID-19 case. Instead, children – or a parent or guardian – will be informed they have been in close contact with a 
positive case and advised to take a PCR test. Attendance restrictions will always be a last resort.

Adult Social Care In exceptional circumstances, fully vaccinated frontline NHS and social care staff in England who have been told to self-isolate as a close 
contact will be permitted to attend work. This will only apply where the individual’s absence may lead to significant risk of harm.

Changes to COVID-19 infection prevention control (IPC), personal protective equipment (PPE), visiting, testing and isolation guidance in 
adult social care settings – including those recently announced for step 4 of the roadmap

Workplaces Regulations that place COVID-secure requirements on businesses are no longer in place. The working safely guidance issued by the 
government has been updated to provide examples of sensible precautions

Enablers
Enablers Update
Staffing / capacity It is vitally important that the local teams keep their capacity and capabilities under active review. Local authority activity, using local 

resources in line with individual LOMPs, will remain the first and primary mechanism to respond to incidents and outbreaks of COVID.
It is expected that all funds will be spent by the end of March 2022.

COMF It is expected that all funds will be spent by the end of March 2022.
Self isolation fund Finance made available to support payments to those who are self-isolating to reduce the financial hardships, and practical support 

payments and medicines delivery services also. These schemes are currently funded out to September 2021, and further analysis will be 
undertaken to ascertain funding requirements for the remainder of the year in line with the ‘roadmap’.

Communications Communications/engagement strategy will be at forefront of ensuring the public understand how to go about their daily business safely
Plans - LOMP It is therefore important that LOMPs set out an effective response to outbreaks, including of VOCs, and in higher risk settings. LOMPs 

should reflect the core ongoing response including the national UKHSA tool and services that effectively support and enable this local 
response.

P
age 96

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/covid-pass/
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/coronavirus-covid-19-social-care-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/working-safely-during-covid-19/events-and-attractions


Quarter 1 2021/22

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 1 2021/22.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Adult Social Care – Commissioning 3
Adult Social Care  Delivery 4
Prevention, Wellbeing & Communities 5
Public Protection, Parking & Libraries 7
Strategic Risk Register Summary 8

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny
Committee

1

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 9



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
Risk Value Decreasing
No Change

Measure Symbols
Performance Better than Target
Performance Worse than Target
Performance significantly worse than Target
No information
Missing Target
No Value

Bigger is Better A bigger value for this measure is good
Smaller is Better A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 98



Commissioning  Adult Social Care

Cllr Kathy Williams

Mental Health

% of referrals for an AMHP assessment that led to support or
protection being put in place

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 58.5% 60.0%
Of the 366 AMHP Assessments completed in the
period; 214 resulted in detention or other support
being put in place.

n/a

% of Individuals with a second or subsequent AMHP
assessment with 12 months

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 25.1% 40.0% n/a

% of Adults receiving secondary Mental Health services in
settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.0% 87.0% 88.0% 89.0% 89.0% 85.0% 55.2%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Learning Disability

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 79.3% 79.4% 79.2% 79.1% 79.1% 78.0% Figure as at March 2021 73.1%

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 8.7% 6.8% 6.4% 3.1% 0.8% Relates to March 2020 figure 4.3%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar16 Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Actual Mar20 Comments
Comparator
Group

Adult Social Care Transformation

% of GCC Commissioned Providers judged to be Good or
Outstanding by CQC

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 94.1% 90.0% n/a

Permanent admissions 1864 to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.7 8.9 10.8 9.7 18.0 13.8

This data has been taken from the new case
management system and there is some evidence of
inappropriate use of SALT categories which may be
inflating permanent admissions. It is not clear if this
can be retrospectively corrected or will continue to be
erroneously reported as permanent admissions as
this measure will continue to include 12month rolling
data.  There is also a lag in updating the case
management system with some cases starting in Q4
2020/21 not recorded until late in Q1 2021/22. As this
measure looks at a rolling 12 months, newly added
legacy cases from previous quarters will show in this
quarters data giving the perception of a sudden
increase. However, note that the rate is similar to that
over the same period to June 2019 (preCOVID) and
has historically been off target.

13.8

Permanent admissions aged 65+ to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 461.1 439.2 472.7 433.4 472.7 579.2
This equates to 659 admissions in the rolling year to
30 June 2021. Note this is draft information from LAS.

579.2

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Carers

Average waiting time for a Care Act Compliant Assessment (in
working days)

Smaller is Better Snapshot 29.0 19.0 17.0 14.0 15.0 30.0 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 99

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Delivery  Adult Social Care

Cllr Carole AllawayMartin

Adult Safeguarding

% of Section 42 enquiries this quarter where the risk was
reduced or removed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 90.1% 88.0% 87.3% 93.1% 83.3% 85.0%

New categories on LAS are in use from Quarter 1.
The proportion of S42 closed where the risk remained
was 1.9%, but there were also 14.8% of Enquiries
where the outcome was Inconclusive.

84.5%

% of S42 Enquiries open for more than 26 weeks Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 36.1% 32.5% 22.6% 32.4% 48.3% 30.0%
This proportion may have been adversely affected by
the bedding in of processes on LAS.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Adult Social Care

% of Service Users who have had a review/ reassessment of
their needs within the last 12 months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 33.1% 48.0% 52.0% 53.0% 43.6% 50.0% Draft report from LAS n/a

% of all ASC Contacts with a decision within 1 working day Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 94.2% 93.5% 95.0%
This can be broken down as 96.1% of contacts
received via the CSC and 86.8% of all other contacts

n/a

% of ASC contacts signposted or closed Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 33.0% 31.0% 33.0% 33.0% 39.4% 33.0%
Draft report from LAS. This is the sum of contacts
which were closed as No Further Action,
Signposted or Information & Advice

n/a

% of clients who need no long term care after their period of
reablement

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 90.1% 91.1% 85.1% 85.6% 92.7% 85.0%
Also note that 7.3% of individuals leaving reablement
had no outcome recorded on LAS.

n/a

Delayed transfers of care from hospital due to Adult Social
Care per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.70 3.50
DTOC Measures were suspended from 1 March 2020
and there is no data available at present.

3.50

Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.4 19.7 19.1 19.6 19.6
Relates to March 2020 figure. Next update due in late
2022 as ASCOF Service User Survey did not go
ahead in 2020/21 due to the COVID19 pandemic.

19.1

Carer reported Quality of Life Bigger is Better Annual 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 Relates to March 2019 figure 7.4

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar20 Jun20 Sep20 Dec20
Actual
Mar21

Target
Mar21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar16 Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Actual Mar20 Comments
Comparator
Group

FAB

Average number of working days to complete a FAB
assessment

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 16.2

New Indicator for 2021/22. This is calculated by
measuring the average number of working days from
referral to the FAB team to the assessment being
completed.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Actual Jun21 Comments
Comparator
Group

4

P
age 100

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')


Prevention, WellBeing and Communities

Cllr Tim Harman
Public Health

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

38.8% 37.4% 36.8% 31.2% 28.1% 35.0%

The Q4 performance is 28.1%, this is a reduction
from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance will continue
to drop reflecting a full year of performance affected
by the pandemic.  There are multiple reasons for the
severity of this drop including the halt on discharges
as a safety measure in response to the Pandemic.  81
further completions would be required to bring this to
LA family comparator top quartile.

36.9%

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

6.2% 5.9% 5.4% 4.6% 5.1% 6.3%

The Q4 performance is 5.1%, which is slight increase
from previous quarter, and is currently above the
national average of 4.86%. It would require 19
further completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.  However projecting forward
by six months we anticipate that performance is likely
to drop, reflecting a full year of performance affected
by the pandemic; there are a number of reasons for
this anticipated drop, but it is primarily driven by the
halt on discharges introduced as a safety measure as
a response to the pandemic.

5.7%

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

32.5% 32.2% 29.8% 25.7% 25.3% 33.2%

The Q4 performance is 25.3%, this is a reduction
from last quarter; projecting forward by six months
we anticipate that the performance will drop further
reflecting a full year of performance affected by the
pandemic.  There are a number of reasons for this
drop, being primarily driven by the halt on discharges
introduced as a safety measure in response to the
pandemic.  A further 72 completions would be
required to bring this into the LA family comparator
group top quartile.

33.2%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

94.0% 88.0% 83.0% 80.0% 87.0% 70.0% n/a

Number of customers who achieve a significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

513 480 735 619 763

The numbers of people that achieve a significant risk
factor improvement is considerably impacted on by
the loss of any SW data given that this contributes
significantly to this KPI. The outcomes for those
receiving support from HLS remains positive (510/670
= 76%).

n/a

Good Performance High/Low
Reporting
Basis

Mar20 Jun20 Sep20 Dec20
Actual
Mar21

Target
Mar21

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Covid19 cases referred for Contact Tracing that have
been completed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 86.4% 95.4% 88.7%
For the period 1 Apr  30 June 2021:
3,288 were completed (88.7%); and
421 were classified as failed/error (11.3%)

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Actual Jun21 Comments
Comparator
Group

% Reception Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Annual 22.2% 24.3% 23.8% 22.0% 23.8%

This latest data is for academic year 2019/20. The
NCMP programme was paused in response to Covid
19 and the subsequent published data (released
during Q3 20/21) has been deemed sufficient for
publication but unreliable for benchmarking purposes.
It is anticipated that the measurement programme
will not be reinstated until early 2021.

% Year 6 Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Annual 32.1% 31.1% 32.1% 31.9% 32.3%

Data shown here is for the academic year 2019/20.
Gloucestershire is in the upper middle quartile of the
comparator group.NCMP data for this indicator was
deemed reliable at publication and the comparison
measure is made against only those comparators with
reliable data (n=11)

32.1%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep16 Sep17 Sep18 Sep19 Actual Sep20 Comments
Comparator
Group

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population Smaller is Better 3Year Average 10.6 10.8 9.8 10.4 10.2 10.1

The figure reported covers the three year period
(20172019). The Gloucestershire rate is in line with
the national average; and has remained relatively
steady since the 201315 reporting period. The
Gloucestershire  suicide prevention  strategy is due to
be refreshed in 20/21 and will be informed by the
findings of the suicide audit (covering deaths from
suicide between 2016 and 2018).

10.9

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec15 Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Actual
Dec19

Target
Dec19

Comments
Comparator
Group

5

P
age 101

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')


Prevention, WellBeing and Communities

Cllr Tim Harman
Public Health

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

38.8% 37.4% 36.8% 31.2% 28.1% 35.0%

The Q4 performance is 28.1%, this is a reduction
from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance will continue
to drop reflecting a full year of performance affected
by the pandemic.  There are multiple reasons for the
severity of this drop including the halt on discharges
as a safety measure in response to the Pandemic.  81
further completions would be required to bring this to
LA family comparator top quartile.

36.9%

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

6.2% 5.9% 5.4% 4.6% 5.1% 6.3%

The Q4 performance is 5.1%, which is slight increase
from previous quarter, and is currently above the
national average of 4.86%. It would require 19
further completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.  However projecting forward
by six months we anticipate that performance is likely
to drop, reflecting a full year of performance affected
by the pandemic; there are a number of reasons for
this anticipated drop, but it is primarily driven by the
halt on discharges introduced as a safety measure as
a response to the pandemic.

5.7%

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

32.5% 32.2% 29.8% 25.7% 25.3% 33.2%

The Q4 performance is 25.3%, this is a reduction
from last quarter; projecting forward by six months
we anticipate that the performance will drop further
reflecting a full year of performance affected by the
pandemic.  There are a number of reasons for this
drop, being primarily driven by the halt on discharges
introduced as a safety measure in response to the
pandemic.  A further 72 completions would be
required to bring this into the LA family comparator
group top quartile.

33.2%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

94.0% 88.0% 83.0% 80.0% 87.0% 70.0% n/a

Number of customers who achieve a significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

513 480 735 619 763

The numbers of people that achieve a significant risk
factor improvement is considerably impacted on by
the loss of any SW data given that this contributes
significantly to this KPI. The outcomes for those
receiving support from HLS remains positive (510/670
= 76%).

n/a

Good Performance High/Low
Reporting
Basis

Mar20 Jun20 Sep20 Dec20
Actual
Mar21

Target
Mar21

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Covid19 cases referred for Contact Tracing that have
been completed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 86.4% 95.4% 88.7%
For the period 1 Apr  30 June 2021:
3,288 were completed (88.7%); and
421 were classified as failed/error (11.3%)

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Actual Jun21 Comments
Comparator
Group

% Reception Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Annual 22.2% 24.3% 23.8% 22.0% 23.8%

This latest data is for academic year 2019/20. The
NCMP programme was paused in response to Covid
19 and the subsequent published data (released
during Q3 20/21) has been deemed sufficient for
publication but unreliable for benchmarking purposes.
It is anticipated that the measurement programme
will not be reinstated until early 2021.

% Year 6 Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Annual 32.1% 31.1% 32.1% 31.9% 32.3%

Data shown here is for the academic year 2019/20.
Gloucestershire is in the upper middle quartile of the
comparator group.NCMP data for this indicator was
deemed reliable at publication and the comparison
measure is made against only those comparators with
reliable data (n=11)

32.1%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep16 Sep17 Sep18 Sep19 Actual Sep20 Comments
Comparator
Group

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population Smaller is Better 3Year Average 10.6 10.8 9.8 10.4 10.2 10.1

The figure reported covers the three year period
(20172019). The Gloucestershire rate is in line with
the national average; and has remained relatively
steady since the 201315 reporting period. The
Gloucestershire  suicide prevention  strategy is due to
be refreshed in 20/21 and will be informed by the
findings of the suicide audit (covering deaths from
suicide between 2016 and 2018).

10.9

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec15 Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Actual
Dec19

Target
Dec19

Comments
Comparator
Group

6

P
age 102

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')


Public Protection

Cllr Dave Norman

Libraries

Number of lighttouch business interactions supported by the
Growth Hubs

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0 5 1 4 27 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Actual Jun21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Road Safety

Number of killed and seriously injured people Smaller is Better Calendar Year
to Date

85 133 216 277 39 71

This reporting period relates to January to March
2021. Covid lockdown restrictions have led to a low
number of casualties.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis
Actual Jan 
Mar 20

Actual Apr 
Jun 20

Actual Jul 
Sep 20

Actual Oct 
Dec 20

Actual Jan
 March 21

Forecast
Jan 
March 21

Comments Jan  March 21
Comparator
Group

7

P
age 103

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR5.3 Provider failures result in the council being unable to achieve
its strategic objectives

Scott, Sarah High 25 Moderate 10 High 15 High 20 High 20 High 20

Continued pressure for the impact of the pandemic and demands for the system
have raised the level of this risk. The provider market in both residential and
home care are seeing a rise in the number of cases and the demands for system
flow have also remained high. We are encouraging providers to implement their
BCP's and to inform Commissioning when doing so in order that we can seek
additional support from system leaders.

SR7.1
Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from
abuse neglect in situations that potentially could have been
predicted and prevented.

Scott, Sarah High 20 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate
10

The GCC safeguarding team is experiencing an exceptionally high workload at
present, leading to a backlog of cases. Risk mitigation actions are being put in
place, including moving resources within the team to help address the cases
awaiting a decision and contacting the referrer to ensure that protections are in
place for the individual in the interim.

The Safeguarding Adults Board is commencing the consultation on the new three
year strategic plan, which will include working with people with complex needs
who pose a high risk of harm to themselves and are refusing the support
available to them.

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity. Resulting in the reliance on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Scott, Sarah High 20 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 High 16

Home Care capacity is currently being strained due to staff shortages due
isolation, sickness or increased childcare demands all of which we feel will
increase over the next quarter. We have also added an additional strain through
using guaranteed hours to support the capacity in the  Home First service, whilst
also trying to deliver a standard home care offer that supports the locality teams
and the progression of people coming off of the Reablement pathway.

We are actively working with the market to try to minimise the number of
providers working in one areas with the aim of maximising the sustainability of
individual providers  whilst minimising wasted resource through lost care hours.

SR7.8

Risk of legal action being taken against the Local Authority due
to failure to complete a Deprivation of Liberty assessment
within the stated time lines. Since a significant and sudden
change in the law due to a Supreme Court Judgement in
March 2014 there is an excessively high demand for best
interest assessments to be carried out for Deprivation of
Liberty (DoLS) authorisations.

Scott, Sarah High 20 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9
Moderate

9

The management of the backlog continues by ensuring that cases are triaged in
line with the ADASS prioritisation tool. The practitioners work to ensure that
cases where the person is objecting to their placement are prioritised and speedy
referrals to the Court of Protection are facilitated.

Strategic Risk 5: Organisational Change Programmes

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

DoT Jun
21

Comments

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children, Young People & Adults

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

DoT Jun
21

Comments

8

P
age 104

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')


Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2021/22

1

7 September 2021 9 November 2021 25 January 2022

Scrutiny items

1) Market Management Overview
2) Gloucestershire Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report 2020/21

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 1 2021/22 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

1) Contain Outbreak Management Funding 
2) Adult Social Care (Care Act) Three Tier 
Offer

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 2 2021/22 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

1) Domiciliary Care Report

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report

15 March 2022 (Joint Meeting with HOSC) 10 May 2022 5 July 2022

Scrutiny items

1) Winter Plan Review (ASCC members to be 
invited to attend the HOSC meeting in 
October 2021 for the item relating to 
proposals on the Winter Plan proposed by the 
NHS CCG)
2) System Flow (New Guidance)
3) Health Inequalities 

Standard items 
Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report 
Community Safety Report

Scrutiny items

1) Covid-19 Funding/Community Grant 
Schemes Overview

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 3 2021/22 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 4 2021/22 Performance Report

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 10



6 September 2022 15 November 2022 Jan 2023

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report 
Community Safety Report

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 3 2020/21 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 4 2020/21 Performance Report

7 September 2021

P
age 106


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2020/21
	5 Market Management Overview
	6 Adult Social Care Report
	7 Chief Fire Officer Report
	CFO Report - (ASCCSC) September 21
	APP 1 TSIO Data
	APP 2 TS Performance Indicators
	APP 3 Scorecard Coroners Q1

	8 Public Health Report
	9 Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021/22
	10 Work Plan



